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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company” and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as the “Group”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Financial Highlights

As at As at
30 September 30 September As at 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
W-8-%F H-2-N% Rt=A=1-A
AA=tR  AAZtE  ZE-0\E —E—+F C—T-KE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEL FHL FET FHT FEL
Results £5
- Revenue - 42,734 35,925 108,716 49,749 36,379
- Loss -B# (274,163) (63,662) 88,431 (39,998) (39,189)
- Loss per share -BhRER
Basic (in HK cents) 2R (GBAL) (132.01) (48.46) (5.89) (2.94) (0.62)
Diluted (in HK cents) &35 (81L) (132.01) (50.77) (5.89) (2.94) (0.62)
(represented) (restated)
(mE7) (@Eit)
Financial Position B R
- Non-current assets ~ERBEE 184,615 436,512 488,312 516,382 457,038
- Current assets eIV 41,053 58,809 65,605 17,124 25,695
- Current liabilities -nEERE 118,415 110,412 61,903 51,169 53,765
— Non-current liabilities -kRBaE 73,506 107,126 134,599 261,230 206,611
- Equity —Ex 33,747 277,783 357,415 221,107 222,357
Financial Ratios L E
— Current assets/Current liabilities ~-RYEE/RBDAR 0.3 05 1.1 0.3 05
- Assets/Equity -EE/ i 6.7 18 15 2.4 22
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information

NR-ZFBE-FE+-A=-+=-H Asat 22 December 2020

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk

STOCK CODE ON GEM
8007

INFORMATION AND ENQUIRIES
Unit A 11/F Neich Tower

128 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

e-mail: info@globalstgr.com.hk
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CEQ’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”), | am hereby
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as, the “Group”) for the year ended
30 September 2020 for your review.

OVERVIEW

During the year, the Group’s revenue was approximately
HK$42.7 million, of which the natural gas business recorded a
segment revenue of approximately HK$38 million, accounting for
approximately 89% of the Group’s revenue. The Group recorded
a loss of approximately HK$274 million for the year (nine months
ended 30 September 2019: HK$66.33 million). The increase in loss
was mainly due to the recognition of impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and loan receivables.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

2020 is a very challenging year for the global economy due to the
outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”), the ongoing trade
disputes between China and the United States, and the uncertainties
brought about by the United States’ Election. Those has a negative
impact on the global economy.

Even though the external economic environment continues to be
weak, since the target customers for the Group’s key business of
natural gas supply is mainly domestic business, the management
remains optimistic about the prospects of the natural gas business.
In the natural gas supply business, the Group holds the exclusive
right to supply natural gas in Yichang, Hubei for 30 years. With
this advantage, the number of potential customers has increased
correspondingly with the continuous expansion of the industrial park.
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CEQ’s Statement

In October 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of a
company engaged in insurance brokerage business and became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The Group aims to actively
develop local sources of income through the insurance brokerage
business. Due to the anti-amendment campaign in 2019 and the
continuation of the local COVID-19 epidemic, the local economy has
deteriorated, and potential PRC customers cannot visit Hong Kong
and seek professional advice on insurance plans from the Group, the
performance of the insurance business segment not as expected.

Due to the rapid changes in the commodity trading market and the
uncertain prospects, the management terminated the commodity
trading business during the year after careful consideration.

The Group will rigorously seek new potential growth opportunities
through mergers and acquisitions, business mergers and expansion
to maintain the growth and profitability of the Group.

ANKNOWLEDGEMENT

Here, on behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby wish to
extend my gratitude for the hard work contributed by all staff and
the Directors, as well as the support to the Company from all our
customers, creditors, business partners and the shareholders. We
will adhere to proven management strategy, grasp market trend
and opportunities, and endeavor to bring greater value to our
shareholders and make new contribution to the community.

Wang Wenzhou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 December 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group regarded the trade of
copper and petrochemicals (“Trading of Goods”) as discontinued
operation. No revenue contributed from Trading of Goods for the
year ended 30 September 2020 (“YE2020”) as compared with
approximately HK$295,070,000 for the period from 1 January 2019
to 30 September 2019 (“9M2019”). In addition, as set out in note
2 to the consolidated financial statement, the Group changed its
financial year end from 31 December to 30 September in 2019. The
comparative amounts may not be entirely comparable.

As a result of the above changes, the continuing operations of
the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$42,734,000
for YE2020 as compared with approximately HK$35,925,000 for
9M2019, gross profit of approximately HK$12,987,000 for YE2020
against approximately HK$11,742,000 for 9M2019 and net loss
of approximately HK$266,818,000 for YE2020 as compared to
approximately HK$59,963,000 for 9M2019. The discontinued
operation recorded a net loss of approximately HK$7,345,000
for YE2020 as compared with approximately HK$3,699,000 for
9M2019.

Analysis on the performance of the Group including revenue and
results of natural gas operations, leasing business and independent
financial advisory before allocation of the corporate overheads is set
out in note 11 “Segment Information” to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group generated revenue from sales of natural gas and
pipeline installation services of approximately HK$37,438,000 and
HK$563,000 respectively for YE2020 as compared to approximately
HK$29,833,000 and HK$1,090,000 respectively for 9M2019.
Revenue generated from leasing business and independent
financial advisory business were in aggregate of HK$4,234,000 and
HK$499,000 for YE2020 respectively as compared to 9M2019, it
recorded HK$5,002,000, in aggregate, from leasing business. No
revenue from independent financial advisory business generated in
9M2019 as it was acquired in YE2020.

The total operating expenses, including selling and distribution costs,
general and administrative expenses and finances costs, for YE2020
was approximately HK$60,020,000 as compared to approximately
HK$49,222,000 for the 9M2019, representing a increase of 22%
which was resulting from the change of reporting period end from 31
December to 30 September in 2019.
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BEENWR DN
Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance costs of the Group were approximately HK$8,440,000 for
YE2020 (9M2019: approximately HK$8,184,000), which consisted of
the imputed interest expense on non-current interest free loan from
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related parties,
interests on bank borrowings, non-convertible bonds and convertible
bond designed at fair value through profit or loss.

Loss for YE2020 was increased by 331% to approximately
HK$274,163,000, compared with loss of approximately
HK$63,662,000 for 9M2019. The significant increase in loss for
YE2020 was mainly due to the net effect of impairment losses made
on both current and non-current assets (i.e. property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, goodwill as well as
trade receivables and loan receivables) and the reason as aforesaid.

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

The Group acquired HEMEZEBR KA KRB HR A (Yichang
Biaodian Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang Biaodian”),
which is engaged in natural gas supply operation, in 2016. However,
Yichang Biaodian has suffered losses since acquisition resulting from
the following reasons:

()  the pipeline installation in Yaojiagang Chemical Zone has been
substantially completed in 2018, which covered most area
of the zone to supply natural gas to factories operating in
the zone. However, due to the slow progress of the chemical
enterprises’ removals and construction of new factories in the
zone, some potential customers did not engage with Yichang
Biaodian for natural gas supply;

(i) some customers delayed the transformation from coal-boiler to
natural gas boiler as they concerned that the unstable supply
of industrial natural gas happened in 2018, will continue in
2020; and worry that due to the peak period of winter gas
consumption in recent years, the government’s policy of
restricting natural gas to civilian use will affect business.
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BEER W R DT

Management Discussion and Analysis

(i) Impact of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”)

Due to the outbreak of the COVID-19 at the beginning of the
2020, Hubei Province’s industrial operations were suspended
until the full return to normal in April. In order to alleviate the
impact of the epidemic on the industry, the local government
reduced the sales price per m® of non-residential natural gas
from RMB3.18 to RMB2.8 from 1 April 2020.

By considering the reasons as aforesaid, the management of the
Group performed impairment testing in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets” (“HKAS 36”) on the
assets belongs to Yichang Biaodian.

The key assumptions used in the value in use (“VIU”) calculation
for impairment assessment based on a valuation prepared by an
independent valuer are those regarding the expected average
revenue growth rate, expected average net profit margin and
discount rate for the next five years:

- Expected average revenue growth rate and expected
average profit margin for the next five years were based on
past practices and management’s expectations on market
development; and

- Discount rate was estimated using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the cash generating unit (“CGU”), i.e. Yichang
Biaodian.

The key assumptions used in the impairment assessment in 2020
changed from that of 2019:

— In 2020, the expected revenue growth rate estimated for
the next five years was 22%. In 2019, the expected revenue
growth rate estimated for the next five years was 54%; and

- In 2020, the expected average negative net profit margin
In 2019, the
expected average positive net profit margin estimated for the

estimated for the next five years was 4%.

next five years was 13%.
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BEER W R DT

Management Discussion and Analysis

The valuation method of discounted cash flow was adopted for the
calculation of the VIU of the CGU. In accordance with HKAS 36,
the recoverable amount should be the higher of (i) the fair value
less costs of disposal, and (i) the VIU. After assessing both the VIU
and the fair value, the valuation opted for the VIU because it was
the higher between the two figures. VIU is based on the estimated
future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate of 12.05% (2019:
16.44%) that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU. There is no change to
the valuation method adopted in 2019 and 2020.

Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of Yichang
Biaodian was approximatley HK$156,184,000 and impairment losses
on property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-
use assets of approximatley HK$132,902,000, HK$106,934,000 and
HK$887,000 were recognised respectively in 2020.

UPDATE ON INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL
ADVISORY BUSINESS

The Group acquired LW Insurance Brokers Limited (“LW Insurance”),
which is engaged in insurance brokerage, in 2019. However, LW
Insurance has suffered losses since acquisition resulting from the
following reasons:

(i) keen competition from the competitors in the industry;

(i) the worsened local economy as a result of political unrest in
Hong Kong;

(i)  the impact from the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic,

that less potential customers seek professional advice from the
Group.

By considering the reasons above, the management of the Group

performed impairment testing in accordance with HKAS 36 on LW
Insurance.
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BEBNWR DN
Management Discussion and Analysis

The fair value calculation based on the valuation prepared by an
independent valuer is mainly determined by the fair value calculation
according to the market method. The main assumptions of fair value
calculation are the assumptions about multiples of enterprise value,
control premium and discounts that lack of marketability.

Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of LW
Insurance was HK$516,000 and impairment losses on goodwill, of
HK$1,958,000 was recognised for the year ended 30 September
2020.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s operation is being financed by internally generated
cashflow, bank borrowings and external financing. The Group
follows a policy of prudence in managing its working capital. The
management will continue to closely monitor the financial position of
the Group to maintain its financial capacity.

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties

As at 30 September 2020, the amounts due to Hubei Biaodian
Natural Gas Co., Ltd* (“Hubei Biaodian”) and its subsidiary and
Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”) and his controlled entities were
approximately HK$26,160,000 and HK$14,281,000 respectively,
when comparing approximately HK$25,439,000 and HK$18,150,000
at 30 September 2019 respectively. Hubei Biaodian owns 20.92%
of Yichang Biaodian and Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of
Hubei Biaodian.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The advance made by the above non-controlling shareholders of
the Group during the year was used for Yichang Biaodian’s capital
expenditure purpose.

Bank and other borrowings

The bank borrowings assigned RMB18,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$20,601,000) carry an interest at a variable rate, with an effective
interest rate of 7.10% to 8.01% per annum. The bank borrowings
are guaranteed and pledged with several properties owned by Mr.
Xiong, his spouse and a company held and controlled by him.

As at 30 September 2020,

(@) the Group’s aggregate amount of bank and cash balances
was approximately HK$1,978,000 (as at 30 September 2019:
approximately HK$3,325,000).

(b) the Group’s total borrowings comprised () amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related
parties; (i) bank borrowings; (i) due to directors; (iv) non-
convertible bonds; (v) convertible bond designated at fair value
thought profit or loss; (vi) lease liabilities; and (vii) due to related
parties totalling approximately HK$127,657,000 (as at 30
September 2019: HK$120,120,000).

(c) the Group’s total gearing ratio was approximately 374% (as at
30 September 2019: 42%). The gearing ratio was calculated as
the Group’s borrowings net of cash available divided by total
equity of the Group.

(d) the current ratio of the Group was approximately 0.35 (as at
30 September 2019: 0.5). The management will continue to
closely monitor the financial position of the Group to maintain
its financial capacity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Placing of shares under general mandate

On 16 March 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Rifa Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) under which
the Placing Agent agreed to place up to a total of 13,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each (with a total nominal
value of HK$6,500,000) in the Company (the “Placing Shares”)
to independent third parties on a best effort basis at a price of
HK$1 per Placing Share. The closing price as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 16 March 2020, being the date of the placing
agreement was HK$1.04 per share. The placing of all 13,000,000
Placing Shares to not less than six independent placees was
completed on 27 March 2020 and raised net proceeds, after
deducting related placing commission, professional fees and all
related expenses, of approximately HK$12,180,000 which were
intended to be used for redemption of bonds of the Group and as
the Group’s general working capital.

On 9 April 2020, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Rifa Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) under which
the Placing Agent agreed to place up to a total of 13,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each (with a total nominal value
of HK$6,500,000) in the Company (the “Placing Shares”) to
independent third parties on a best effort basis at a price of HK$0.58
per Placing Share. The closing price as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 9 April 2020, being the date of the placing agreement
was HK$0.68 per share. The placing of all 13,000,000 Placing
Shares to not less than six independent placees was completed
on 5 May 2020 and raised net proceeds, after deducting related
placing commission, professional fees and all related expenses,
of approximately HK$7,026,000 which were intended to be used
for redemption of bonds of the Group and as the Group’s general
working capital.

Further details of the above placing were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 16 March 2020, 27 March
2020, 9 April 2020, 23 April 2020 and 5 May 2020.

Note: The number of share and share price have been adjusted pursuant to
the share consolidation effective on 24 August 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 31 October 2019, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
acquired 100% equity interest of LW Insurance at a consideration
of HK$2,373,000. LW Insurance was engaged in insurance broker
business.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Digital Commerce Limited

On 7 January 2020, the Company entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party to dispose its 100%
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary for a cash consideration
of HK$2,500,000. The disposal was completed on 14 January 2020.

Hong Kong King Sailing Limited

On 29 September 2020, the Company entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party to dispose its 100%
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary for a cash consideration
of HK$100,000. The disposal was completed on 29 September
2020.

LITIGATION

Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co., Ltd

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Yichang Biaodian
entered into disputes with one of its suppliers regarding the quality
of work performed by such supplier. Legal proceedings were initiated
by the supplier (the “Yichang Plaintiff’) and on 14 December 2018,
pursuant to the application from the Yichang Plaintiff, the Court in
Yichang granted an order to preserve the bank deposits of Yichang
Biaodian amounted to approximately RMB478,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$544,000).
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On 13 March 2019, the Court issued civil mediation agreement
which set out that the Yichang Plaintiff and Yichang Biaodian
agreed with the repayment terms in relation to the aforesaid
amount. Yichang Biaodian is required to repay RMB200,000 on
or before 30 April 2019 and an order could be applied to unfreeze
the bank accounts; and Yichang Biaodian was required to settle
RMB2,000,000 on or before 30 September 2019 and the remaining
outstanding amount on or before 30 March 2020. The Yichang
Plaintiff has the rights to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang
Biaodian to settle all its debts if it fails to repay RMB2,200,000 to
the Yichang Plaintiff on or before 30 September 2019. Amount of
RMB8,787,000 (equivalent to HK$10,006,000) are fully provided as
liabilities of the Group at 31 December 2018. The restricted bank
balance was released on 11 April 2019 upon agreement between the
Yichang Plaintiff and Yichang Biaodian.

On 20 November 2019, the Yichang Plaintiff has exercised its rights
to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian for settlement
of amount overdue. Yichang Biaodian only repaid RMB200,000
up to 30 September 2020. The management of the Group was
assessing the possible outcome that bringing to Yichang Biaodian.
The directors of the Company considered that as the full amount of
the debts of RMB8,587,000 (equivalent to HK$9,828,000) claimed
by Yichang Plaintiff are fully provided as liability of the Group as at 30
September 2020, no further liability will be incurred.

Global Billion Trading (Shenzhen) Limited

During the year ended 30 September 2020, RIEEZ 5 CFRII)
B BR A Al(Global Billion Trading (Shenzhen) Limited*) (“Shenzhen
Global”) has been in dispute with a former director of the Group
regarding the ownership of the building located in the PRC classified
as held for sale. Legal proceedings were initiated by the former
director (the “Shenzhen Plaintiff”) and on 8 July 2020, pursuant to
the application from the Shenzhen Plaintiff, the Court in Shenzhen
granted an order to preserve the building classified as held for sale
of Shenzhen Global from being sold by the Group during the period
from 9 July 2020 to 8 July 2023.

Since the case was at preliminary stage, the management of
the Group was assessing the possible outcome that bringing to
Shenzhen Global.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged a property approximately amounted to
HK$2,237,000 to an independent third party for obtaining an
advance of HK$114,000 as at 30 September 2020 (2019:
HK$2,304,000).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 September 2020 (period from 1 January 2019 to
30 September 2019: Nil)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any other significant contingent liabilities at
30 September 2020 (2019: Nil).

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the business and operation environments of
the Group will remain challenging due to the global outbreak
of coronavirus disease, and the dramatic escalation in tensions
between the PRC and the US, the overall market is expected to be
volatile. The Directors expect that there are still uncertainties and
adverse effects on the overall business of our Group with the weak
economic conditions, both in Hong Kong and worldwide. As a result
of the above, in particular the outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic
which continues to affect the business operations as well as the
corporate transaction of our clients, the performance of our Group in
the coming year will be very challenging.

Given the challenges mentioned above, the Directors will be more
cautious and conservative in seeking new potential merger &
acquisition, business integration and expansion in order to sustain
the growth and profitability of the Group.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Proposed Capital Reorganisation and Rights Issue

On 20 November 2020, the Company proposed to implement
the following capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”)
involving (a) the reduction of the issued share capital of the Company
by cancelling the paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.49 on each
of the then issued Existing Shares such that the par value of each
of the then issued Adjusted Shares will be reduced from HK$0.50
to HK$0.01 (the “Capital Reduction”); and (b) immediately following
the Capital Reduction, each of the authorised but unissued Existing
Shares of par value HK$0.50 each be sub-divided into fifty (50)
ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01 each. At the same time,
the Company proposed, subject to the Capital Reorganisation
becoming effective, to implement the Rights Issue on the basis of
four (4) Rights Shares for every one (1) Adjusted Share held on the
Record Date at the Subscription Price of HK$0.16 per Rights Share,
to raise approximately HK$58.35 million by issuing 364,688,000
Rights Shares to the Qualifying Shareholders. Details of the Capital
Reorganisation are disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 20 November 2020. The Capital Reorganisation has not been
effective as at the date of this report.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 September 2020, the Group employed 50 staff members
(at 30 September 2019: 56 staff). Remuneration is determined
with reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications
and experience of the individual employee. Remuneration includes
monthly salaries, performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits
schemes and other benefits such as medical scheme and share
option scheme. The Group’s remuneration policies and packages
are reviewed by management on regular basis. The Company has
established a Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. The
Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’
duties, responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms have been translated into English in this report. In the event
of any discrepancies between the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms and their English translation, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Wenzhou (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wang Wenzhou (“Mr. Wang”), aged 48, has over 25 years of
experience in textile industry and in-depth knowledge in products
operation, import and export trading and supply management. He
also has practical experience in corporate operation management.
Prior to joining the Company, he was a general manager of Shanghai
An Lin Trading Limited* (_E/8&ME S ER2AF]) and he also worked
as a general manager at Shanghai Lan Hao Clothing Limited* ( /&
EZRHAARAA) .

Mr. Wu Guoming

Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), aged 54, has been the executive
Director since 30 April 2018. He holds a degree in Business
Management from Wuhan University, a degree in Civil Engineering
from China University of Petroleum and a degree in Economic
Management from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Mr. Wu was the
engineering manager and the deputy general manager at Shanghai
Guangda Construction Decoration Engineering Company* ( /&
KIZEFEMTIEAF]) . Since 2001, Mr. Wu has been the general
manager and the chairman of Shanghai Guangda Basic Engineering
Co., Ltd ( EBEREM TIEEMR A A]) . Furthermore, Mr. Wu is the
director of China Civil Engineering Society (Bl + K Ti2& € ) and
a construction technology committee member of Chinese Institution
of Soil Mechanics and Geotechnical Engineering — China Civil
Engineering Society (FEI X AR TREEE€+ NERAETTESE) . Mr.
Wu has vast experience in business management and construction
business development.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Duan Fanfan

Mr. Duan Fanfan (“Mr. Duan”), aged 37, has been the executive
Director since 8 November 2019. He holds a bachelor degree in
International Business from Charles Sturt University and a master
degree in Professional Accounting from Deakin University. Mr. Duan
was General Manager in Victoria & South Australia of Domino’s Pizza
Enterprises in Australia. He was granted with various Leadership
Awards in the years from 2009 to 2013. He was Chief Executive
Officer of ATI International Trading Pty Ltd from 2014 to 2019,
specializing in the business development for bilateral import and
export trading between China and Australia. Since 2020, Mr. Duan
has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Wuhan Kai Rui Pu
Information Technology Co., Ltd. * (BUZSL 8 LE S EMER AR,
and is committed to promoting the development of smart health
management equipment. Mr. Duan has vast experience in retalil
hospitality services sector and international trading.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin (“Mr. Leung”), aged 40, has been the
independent non-executive Director since 16 October 2014. Mr.
Leung has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of KNT Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1025) since 31 January 2019.
Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’'s Degree of Commerce in Accounting
and Finance from the University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. Leung
is the general manager of TL Property Consultants International
Ltd. (“TLP”), a consultancy group principally engaged in asset
management of real estate sector. Prior to joining TLP, he had
worked at a multinational accounting and auditing firm for about 8
years. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun (“Mr. Sun”), aged 53, has been an independent
non-executive Director since 24 August 2015. Mr. Sun graduated
from Shanghai Medical Instrumentation College in the PRC in 1988.
Mr. Sun currently serves as Director of Strategy and Business
Development for Deep Voxel Intelligent Technology (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd* (FESERR (LE8)BRAF), a company specializing in
artificial intelligence development in the medical field in PRC.

Ms. Huang Yu Jun

Ms. Huang Yu Jun (“Ms. Huang”), aged 62, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 24 August 2015. Ms.
Huang was a financial manager of a branch office of Shanghai
Electric International Economic & Trading Co., Ltd. ( L /BEREH
B mE HER AR, a subsidiary of Shanghai Electric Group
Company Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2727). Ms. Huang obtained a certificate
of accounting profession from Ministry of Finance in the PRC. In
2005, she graduated from Shanghai TV University (now known as
Shanghai Open University) in the PRC with a professional certificate
in business administration.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Yin Fung

Mr. Tse Yin Fung (“Mr. Tse”), aged 35, is the company secretary of
the Company and one of the authorised representatives since 23
December 2019. Mr. Tse obtained his Bachelor of Laws from City
University of Hong Kong in 2011 and was admitted as a solicitor in
Hong Kong in 2014. He is now a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong.
He also serves as a company secretary of Shineroad International
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1587).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Nip Chi Kin

Mr. Nip Chi Kin (“Mr. Nip”), aged 40, is the Financial Controller of the
Group since June 2018. He had 20 years’ experience in auditing,
accounting and financial field.

For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms have been translated into English in this report. In the event
of any discrepancies between the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms and their English translation, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 66 and 67.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the reporting period are set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements. Shares were issue during the year on placing
26,000,000 shares to independent third parties. Details about the
issue of such shares are also set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statement.
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Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The share premium of the Company is available for paying or
distributions of dividends to its shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
payment the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the
profits, special reserve and share premium of the Company. No
distribution reserves of the Company was recorded as at 30
September 2020 (as at 30 September 2019: HK$21,713,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Wenzhou, Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on 24 January 2020)

Mr. Wu Guoming

Mr. Duan Fanfan
(appointed on 8 November 2019)

Mr. Li Wentao
(appointed on 11 October 2019 and
resigned on 24 January 2020)

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting
(resigned on 24 January 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun
Ms. Huang Yu Jun
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Wenzhou, Mr. Leung Oh Man Martin and
Ms. Huang Yu Jun will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
No director has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation). Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has a service contract with the Company for a term of
one year commencing on the date of their respective appointment
but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section titled “Connected Transactions”
below, no Director or connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the holding company of the Company, or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 September 2020, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

Interests in the Company

The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company held by the
Directors and chief executives of the Company:

BEERBETHAEREXATH
HEBEENRGD  EERORE
AR RARE (#)

RARATF 2

TR ARREZRERITHRABAFHAR
NERD  HEROD RMEF IR AR

Long (L) or
Corporate short (S) Percentage
Directors/chief executive interests position of interests
EE BETHRAR AT Em #F A (L) KA (S) X =l
Mr. Wu Guoming 3,687,500 L 4.04%

RE L
L: Long position
Note: These interests represented the interests in underlying shares

in respect of the share options granted by the Company to the
directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 September 2020, other than the interests and short
positions of the Directors disclosed above, the following person (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the share or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREMALIREAQFR
DREBRD 2EERXR

R-FB_ZFFNA=ZTH KREXAREZ
EEREIORRIN TOAL (LFARFE
ERRBTRAR) RARQ BRI HARRAD
THRALERARAREES KRB GEIE
BIFRERATHEZERMZBETORE

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROEE SO RERNEE

Approximate

Directly Through percentage of
beneficially controlled the issued
Name of shareholder owned corporation Total share capital
HEBRTRE
BREE/ A8 EREHZER EAZZAEE wE BREOH
Hong Kong Hao Yue International Trading Co., Limited 11,005,500 (L) - 11,005,500 (L) 12.07%
(Note)
ERBBBARESBARAA (Btat)
Mr. Zhang Hai Ping - 11,005,500 (L) 11,005,500 (L) 12.07%
(Note)
RETEE (Ki3)
L: Long position L HE

Note: Hong Kong Hao Yue International Trading Co., Limited is wholly-
owned by Mr. Zhang Hai Ping.

Save as disclosed above, none of the substantial shareholders
or other persons (other than Directors and chief executive of
the Company) had any interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company according to the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO as at 30
September 2020.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (THE “SCHEME”)
Scheme 2020

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders in the extraordinary
general meeting on 20 August 2020. The Share Option Scheme
is a long-term incentive scheme of the Company to reward it's
employees, Directors and other eligible participants for their
contributions to the Group and to assist the Group in its recruitment
and retention of high-calibre employees and other eligible
participants who are instrumental to the growth and development of
the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include: (a) any
employee or proposed employee (whether fulltime or part-time and
including any executive Director), consultants or advisers of or to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity; (b) any non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity; (c) any
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
invested entity; (d) any customer of the Group or any invested entity;
(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any invested entity; and (f) any
shareholder of any member of the Group or any invested entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or
any invested entity, and any company wholly owned by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes.

Subject to the earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in
accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force for a period of ten years commencing from the date
of adoption.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)
Scheme 2020 (Continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time.

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options (excluding for this purpose options which have lapsed)
which have been or may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 40,000,000 shares, representing 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option
Scheme and as at the end of Reporting Period and the date of
approval of this report. The maximum number of shares to be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)
Scheme 2020 (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the Directors, which period may
commence from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends
on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of grant
of the share options subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer; (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

As at the date of this report, no share option had been granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

Scheme 2012

The share option scheme which had adopted on 30 November
2012, was terminated following the adoption of a new share option
scheme on 20 August 2020.

During the year, 2,110,000 share options had been

cancelled/lapsed. Details of specific categories of options, please
refer to note 44 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)
Scheme 2012 (Continued)

Details of the movements of share options cancelled/lapsed during
the review year and outstanding as at 30 September 2020 are as
follows:

Number of share options

BRETE (2)
—E-CFEHE(H)

BEFENTH AEER T _2FNA
STHRHERTEBRENESFBENT

BREHE
Outstanding Closing price
At Cancelled Lapsed as at immediately
1 October during during 30 September Exercise period Exercise before the
2019 the year the year 2020 (both dates inclusive) price date of grant
R=B=%F b3
=t SSE b ES N _ BHAHA
+A-H FREH FRAR HATE  EH(BEEEWA) fTEE kmfE
HKS HK$
BT BT
Directors 2
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin REEE 30,000 - 30,000 - 21 December 2017 to 11.12 1
21 December 2019
“Z—+F+-A-+-HE=%
“hE+ZA=+-H
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun BEELE 30,000 - 30,000 - 21 December 2017 to 11.12 1.1
21 December 2019
“E-t5+-A=t-REZ%
-NE+ZR=t-H
Ms. Huang Yu Jun EFRLL 30,000 - 30,000 - 21 December 2017 to 11.12 1.1
21 December 2019
“E—+5+-A-+-HBEC%
—-NE+ZA=t-H
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting FnsiE 300,000 - 300,000 - 21 December 2017 to 11.12 1.1
21 December 2019
“Z—+F+-A-+-HE=%
“hE+ZA=Z+-H
Mr. Wu Guoming RERLE 300,000 300,000 - - 9 October 2018 to 9.32 9.5
9 October 2020
“Z-\£tAnAZE
ZZZZFTANA
Total Directors EEFaa 690,000 300,000 390,000 -
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BREE (o)
—ER-CFHE ()

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Scheme 2012 (Continued)

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding Closing price
At Cancelled Lapsed as at immediately
1 October during during 30 September Exercise period Exercise before the
2019 the year the year 2020 (both dates inclusive) price date of grant
e 33 Rz
RZZ-n¥ hAZtH i B A
+A-H FREH FRER HATE  EH(BEERMA) TEE K E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Employees & 20,000 - 20,000 - 18 January 2018 to 15.7 14.4
18 January 2020
“2-\¥-AtN\BZE
—E-ZE-A1+N\H
1,400,000 1,400,000 - - 9 October 2018 to 9.32 9.5
9 October 2020
—Z2-\¥tANAZE
“ZZZFTANR
Total Employees Eh 1,420,000 1,400,000 20,000 -
Total All Categories FEERIEE 2,110,000 1,700,000 410,000 -

BB RBREERER_-Z_FF/\A
“TEAEMNBRDEGHEHARE-

Note: The number of share and share price have been adjusted pursuant to  Ff&E :
the share consolidation effective on 24 August 2020.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 57% of the turnover of the Group and the largest customer
of the Group accounted for about 18% of the total turnover.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
about 100% of the purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for about 85% of the total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital), has an interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

Details of the subsidiary’s controlling shareholder’s beneficial interest
in the Group are further explained in the section titled “Connected
Transactions” below.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 September 2020, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions, details of which were
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

On 25 March 2019, Yichang Biaodian and Yichang PetroChina
Kunlun Natural Gas Co., Ltd* (“Yichang Kunlun”) entered into the
upstream natural gas sales agreement (the “Upstream Gas Sales
Agreement”) pursuant to which Yichang Kunlun agreed to supply
and Yichang Biaodian agreed to buy natural gas for the period from
1 January 2019 to 31 March 2019. On 29 March 2019, Yichang
Kunlun and Yichang Biaodian signed a confirmation to confirm
that the pricing basis as set out in the Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement shall apply to the period from 1 April 2019 to 29
April 2019. On 17 December 2019, Yichang Kunlun and Yichang
Biaodian entered into the Supplemental Upstream Natural Gas Sales
Agreement pursuant to which both parties agreed to revise the
pricing basis and include another contract period from 30 April 2019
to 31 December 2019 in addition to the existing contract period of
1 January 2019 to 29 April 2019 under the Upstream Natural Gas
Sales Agreement.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The transaction amount and remaining of annual cap (“Annual Cap”)
amount of such transaction for the year ended 30 September 2020
are about RMB3,051,000 and RMB4,772,000 respectively.

As Yichang Kunlun is owned as to 49% by Hubei Biaodian and
Hubei Biaodian is a substantial shareholder (within the meaning of
the GEM Listing Rules) of Yichang Biaodian holding 20.92% equity
interest in Yichang Biaodian, whereas Mr. Xiong, is the ultimate
controlling shareholder of Hubei Biaodian and a former director of
Yichang Biaodian, each of Yichang Kunlun and Hubei Biaodian,
is connected person of the Company and the transactions (the
“Continuing Connected Transactions”) contemplated under the
Upstream Gas sales Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

Given that: (i) Yichang Kunlun is a connected person of the
Company only at the subsidiary level; (i) the Board has approved
the Continuing Connected Transactions; and (iii) having considered
the terms of the Upstream Gas sales Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the Annual Cap),
all the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that
the terms of the Continuing Connected Transactions are fair and
reasonable, the Continuing Connected Transactions are on normal
commercial terms or better and in the interest of the Company
and the shareholders of the Company as a whole, the Continuing
Connected Transactions (including the Annual Cap) are exempted
from the circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 20.99 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The continuing connected transactions are subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The management has monitored and ensured that (a) the continuing
connected transactions have been conducted in accordance with
the pricing policies or mechanisms (if applicable) under the Upstream
Gas Sales Agreement, as appropriate; and (b) the Company’s
internal control procedures are adequate and effective to ensure that
continuing connected transactions are so conducted.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions under Upstream Gas Sales
Agreement and have confirmed that such continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

RSM Hong Kong, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. RSM Hong Kong have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosures
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms have been translated into English in this report. In the event
of any discrepancies between the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms and their English translation, the Chinese version shall
prevail.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 30 September 2020.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 September 2020, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in note 51 to the
consolidated financial statements. Apart from the items disclosed in
the section “Connected Transactions”, all other material related party
transactions did not constitute non-exempt connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issue
shares as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective associates had any business or interest which competed
or might compete with the business of the Group nor had any other
conflict of interest with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
year.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors were recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company
after considering factors such as the Company’s Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 53 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the reporting period.
Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been provided by the Company to cover potential legal actions
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duties.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &

¥ B BOR

AEBE2EMHKE LIZREEEAZ
KRR BEEMEHETREEFM-

AATANBERGMERER
EE RE ECRAEEZE
ERRBEENS -

$EBA DT
ER[ER

KARIERMZAEIERHESEREGEKE
B R FEFBHRN G BRERW T
44 o

BEHREIE

WMEBRBEECERETEFRINGATE
WK HTEESS ©

= A AR AR 3L

BERESMNTAIREBKREIEERRNE
BHREHER - ARRERAEERRRBER
HEZEARR URBEEZTHRNES
e BERBRE FREEXRSENES
IETEBEREMEL BENERKT
EBMBBREZNAEFA-BA WE-
BX BERRAIEZEMES

EERAR ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4F ¥

39



40

EEEHRE
Report of the Directors

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), who was the auditor of
the Group from 2000 to 2017, has resigned as the auditor of the
Group with effect from 30 January 2019. Deloitte, in their letter of
resignation, confirmed that there were no matters in connection
with their resignation that needed to be brought to the attention of
holders of securities or creditors of the Company. The Board also
confirmed that there was no disagreement or unresolved matter
between the Company and Deloitte, and that they were not aware
of any matters in relation to the resignation of Deloitte as auditor of
the Group that needed to be brought to the attention of holders of
securities of the Company.

The Company has appointed RSM Hong Kong as the auditors
of the Company for the Year with effect from 30 January 2019.
RSM Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution
to reappoint RSM Hong Kong and to authorise the Directors to fix
its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Wenzhou
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

22 December 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules in the year ended 30 September 2020 except
for the following deviation:

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company did not appoint a chairman
from 19 April 2018. The Board will keep reviewing the current
structure from time to time and appoint candidate with suitable
knowledge, skill and experience as chairman of the Company, if
identified.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Required
Standard during the year ended 30 September 2020.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules,
and considers that the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of Directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities and lead the Group’s management team through the
Directors with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.

During the year ended 30 September 2020, the Board’s composition
and the individual attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, board committee meetings and shareholder meetings
during the year ended 30 September 2020 are set out in the table
below:

BExg

ARAXEZEE ([EX8])EE- =}
2%%&&T$&T E=ZRRRTRER
AEEzEH ARTEAKEERMKY - E
%ﬁﬂEKElﬁﬁzﬁW&ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁ
EZREAEENEREEER EXBKEN
EREBEFARREE-

®EFA

BE_FT_ZFFNA=ZTHLEE E=§
ARRENEERBE_ZT_TFAA=F
ALSELRESE RS EFZE283
EERAEHBERENTX:

Attendance/Number of Meetings held

during the tenure of his/her office in the year

HERE/ FRERANETEEAY

Human
Resources &
Board  Remuneration Nomination Audit Shareholder
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ADERR
Ezeel ¥MzEE RZZEE EREES RRAE

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Wang Wenzhou, EYHS‘EE ff/B? &% 5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
Chief Executive Officer (R=Z-24-A=+@EA TER TER TEA
(appointed on 24 January 2020) BZH)

Mr. Wu Guoming REMELE 5/7 N/A N/A N/A 2/2

TBA TEA TEHA

Mr. Duan Fanfan BANLE 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 1/2
(appointed on 8 November 2019) (RZE-NF TER TER TEA

+-A\BEZF)

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting RmTE4 2/2 N/A N/A N/A N/A
(resigned on 24 January 2020) (R=Z-%F TR TER Tam TER

—AZTEARHT)

Mr. Li Wentao FNERE 11 N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 11 October 2019 and (F:?*ﬂﬁﬂﬁ +-A TER TER TEA TER
resigned on 24 January 2020) BZAERR-E-ZF

—AZTEARHE)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board
Meeting
EE 4]

Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BYXHTEE
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin 2ENEE 2/7
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun REERE 5/7
Ms. Huang Yu Jun BEERT 6/7

N/A: Not applicable

EEg(#)

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of his/her office in the year

HWERE/ FRERENETEERY

Human
Resources &
Remuneration
Committee
ADERR
yHzES

Nomination
Committee

BtZEE

Audit Shareholder
Committee Meeting

ENZRE RRAE

4/4 12
3/4 1/2
3/4 2/2

During the year ended 30 September 2020, the Board held seven HE-ZE-_ZTFAA=1+HIIFE EFg

Board meetings to review, among other matters, the Group’s
financial and operating performance and discuss the business

direction and strategy. Agenda and accompanying board papers ﬁ

were sent to all Directors in a timely manner.

Directors who could not attend in person could participate the Board
meetings and Shareholder meetings through other electronic means

of communications.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management” on pages 21 to 24 in this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 30 September 2020 and up to
the date of this report, Mr. Wang Wenzhou, Mr. Wu Guoming, Mr.
Duan Fanfan, Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin, Mr. Sun Zhi Jun and Ms.
Huang Yu Jun engaged in business activities in their respective fields
as continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contributions to
the Board remain informed and relevant. Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin
has participated in continuous professional development programs
required by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Directors also participated in other trainings and professional
developments such as attending seminars, studying reading
materials relating to the Group or its industries and businesses; rules
and regulations; business management; or the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for
setting its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) held one meeting during the year
ended 30 September 2020. The Remuneration Committee has
reviewed and approved the Group’s remuneration policy, including
that for the executive Directors, and the levels of remuneration
paid to executive directors and senior management of the Group.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the
guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other
things, making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
The remuneration paid and payable to the Directors for the year
ended 30 September 2020 is set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The remuneration paid and payable to the senior management
excluding directors by band for the year ended 30 September 2020
is set out below:

FrieE

Remuneration of band

HK$0 - HK$500,000 07 7T £500,0007% 7T

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarized as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business. When
deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy of the
Company to consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, and other qualifications, skills and experience which the
Company considers that it will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY (continued)

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews it from time to time and shall bring to the
attention of the Board any significant issues or recommendations
as and when necessary and appropriate. Any reviews, updates and
amendments to the Board Diversity Policy shall be approved by the
Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential
new directors and making recommendations to the Board for
decision. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-election
by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after his/her
appointment. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every 3 years. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, one third of the directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at each annual general
meeting of the Company.

Potential new Directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy whenever necessary and appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
30 September 2020 and work performed included reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and the nomination of new
Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set out
in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other
things, having relationship with the Company’s auditors, reviewing
the Group’s financial information and its financial reporting, financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
corporate governance, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit
Committee reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its
terms of reference.

During the year ended 30 September 2020, the Audit Committee
held four meetings and work performed included reviewing the
Group’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, its risk management
and internal control systems, and corporate governance matters for
inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit and non-
audit services for the year ended 30 September 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$1,000,000 and approximately HK$442,000,
respectively.

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit and non-
audit services for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September
2019 amounted to approximately HK$1,100,000 and approximately
HK$417,000 respectively. The non-audit services provided by RSM
Hong Kong to the Group were in relation to the review service
on taxation, quarter results, and limited assurance services on
continuing connected transaction.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &

EERBRE

E=ZeCRMTRMAEHELEEAHE
BEaE YOS AKREZEXE RS
ETARAREZZBE ([E%EXEBE])-

b
2
b
b

7N

Bt
I\
YA
il

=r
=

¥
WA
m

A

S RREE (ERECXERR
STRIFE 2t SIHE - BRERE A
B ERRBZBENEBE T
Z%ﬂ“‘éﬂ&ﬁﬂﬁ“#&i B 75 A
f DEBERABEENEARER
ﬁﬂfﬂa%KEIE BRSGIR EEEE
TEHNER BTEERER URBTHE
JRELAHEE RO RA - BERREEN
EFSEREMNEABRESERBC ERS

~
ot
Ir
NN

QS

ﬁ%“
%FFF/_E_D

ﬁL\

M}m+&m¥§m};%}mH+%§%}

E_THENA=TRHLFE BERE
! BUORER LEEREHNAKE
ZEE-FEFEREFRE RREERAR
ERERG RTBERARAFRAZILEE
BEH

BB AT &

1 i
g H
SH \ I

Et

HE_Z-_ZFNAZTHLEFE BEZK
IBEERBENEREGHMELKAZEE
2 Bl 49 1,000,000/ 7T M £49442,0007%8 7t °

BE-_E—hF—A—BE=-FT—hFANA
:+E|Hﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁ&%%%‘ﬁlﬁkaﬁzﬂﬁ
SR E AT 2 Bl £ 9 549 51,100,00078
TT R A B417,000/8 7T - & R X S ETRD B AT
RETAEENIEEZRBIRBRGE FTE
EBENEARBERFEAERHNBRIZE
AR 7 o

EERAR ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4F ¥

47



48

AN A 5 3/
fl= E/ﬁ#&%

Corporate Governance Report

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 30 September 2020, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Company
on a going-concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report attached to
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 September 2020.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets in compliance with the
provisions of the Code. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements, errors,
losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
achieving the Group’s business objectives.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Group’s assets.
The Board also acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management, financing reporting, and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and reviewing their effectiveness at
least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance
roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk
management and internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance
and internal audit functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

To this end, appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered
to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on
the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
Besides, management continues to allocate resources for the risk
management and internal control systems to provide reasonable,
though not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has delegated the internal
audit function to an independent external assurance provider, who
has conducted a review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 30 September 2020. The Board considers that the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

The Board, through the Audit Committee,
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing

leads and provides
their implementation by management, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound risk
management and internal control systems are in place.

The Board reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes,
on the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions.

The Board, through delegation of its authority to an environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) working group, is also responsible for
reviewing the Company’s corporate social responsibility strategies,
principles and policies; setting guidelines, direction and overseeing
practices and procedures; and monitoring progress on the
Company’s corporate social responsibility and related activities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

The following highlights the key risk management measures under
the Group’s “Three Lines of Defence” model and enhancements
made by the Group for the period.

1st line of defence - Risk management

° Management conducted an annual Internal Control Self-
Assessment for the period. Management confirmed that
appropriate internal control policies and procedures have been
established and complied with.

° Various policies, procedures and guidelines are in place with
defined authority for effective segregation of duties, controls
and risk management, and they are subject to regular review.

° The Group’s anti-bribery and anti-corruption guidelines
are in place to set out minimum standards in recognizing
circumstances which may lead to or give the appearance of
involving corruption or unethical business conduct, to help
avoid conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to encourage
everyone in the Group to seek appropriate guidance promptly
when needed.

° The Group’s whistleblowing policy is in place to facilitate
internal reporting of any malpractice and unethical conduct
within the Group without fear of reprisal and victimization.

2nd line of defence - Risk oversight

o The Group’s Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Policy
is developed to outline the principles, governance, roles
and responsibilities, and approach within a coherent risk
management framework that addresses and prioritizes risks
that are material and relevant to the Group’s corporate goals.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

2nd line of defence - Risk oversight (Continued)

° The Group’s ERM Framework aims to help management
assess and manage risks arising from and associated with
new business activities and environments, including emerging
risks. An integrated risk assessment approach was adopted
to address risks across various subsidiaries of the Group, to
assess those risks on an integrated group-wide basis.

3rd line of defence - Independent assurance

° The external assurance provider takes up the internal audit
function, who is responsible for conducting independent
reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems and reporting the review results
regularly to the Board through the Audit Committee.

For internal audit, a risk-based approach is adopted. The three
years’ work plan of external assurance provider for internal audit, is
subject to review annually, covers major activities and processes of
the Group’s operations, businesses and service units. The results of
these audit activities are communicated to the Audit Committee and
key members of senior management of the Group. Audit issues are
tracked, followed up for proper implementation, and their progress
are reported to the Audit Committee and senior management of the
Group (as the case may be) periodically. The external assurance
provider for internal audit provides independent assurance to the
Board, the Audit Committee and the senior management of the
Group on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the
Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

The Group’s ERM Policy is established by the Board as an effective
and adequate approach to be applied across the Group to manage
the risks associated with its business and operations. This policy
is designed to enhance enterprise risk management of the Group
through a holistic and integrated framework so that all material risks
faced by the Group are identified and appropriately managed to:

(i) promote consistent risk identification, measurement, reporting
and mitigation;

(i) set a common risk language to avoid any conflicting
terminology or confusion in risk reporting;

(i) develop and communicate policies on enterprise risk
management and controls aligned with the business strategy;
and

(iv) enhance reporting to provide transparency of risks across the
Group.

The Company has adopted policies and procedures for assessing
and, where prudent, improving the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control systems, including requiring the
management of the Group at least annually to assess whether
the risk management and internal control systems are functioning
effectively in the belief that this will enhance the corporate
governance of the Company and its business practices in the future.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the Code of Conduct to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Yin Fung, the company secretary of the Company, has
complied with the relevant professional training under Rules 5.15 of
the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 30 September 2020.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Wang Wenzhou is the compliance officer of the Company. His
biographical details are set out in Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management on page 21 of this report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting the
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to
allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including the Company and the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the Group’s current and future operations,
the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, liquidity position and
capital requirement of the Group, general market conditions and any
other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains an on-going dialogue with its shareholders
through various channels including announcements and annual,
interim and quarterly reports published on its website at www.
globalstrategicgroup.com.hk and the Company’s general meetings.
All shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings and
they may put to the Board any enquiries about the Group through its
website at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk or in writing sent to the
principal office of the Company at Unit A, 11/F., Neich Tower, 128
Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Directors, company
secretary or other appropriate members of senior management
respond to enquiries from shareholders promptly. The Chief
Executive Officer, chairmen of board committees (or their respective
delegates) and external auditors attend the annual general meeting
and are available to answer questions raised by shareholders.
Shareholders may also access the Company’s corporate website for
the Group's information.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business (including
any proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
the same manner.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board is not aware of any significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 30 September
2020. Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
is available on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group (the “Consolidated
Financial Statements”) which give a true and fair view and are
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear
and understandable assessments of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in financial reporting. Accordingly,
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; judgments and estimates made are prudent and
reasonable.

The statement of the Company’s auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 56 to 65.

The auditors has stated in the financial statements that there is
material uncertainty related to going concern and note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements indicates that the Group incurred
a net loss of approximately HK$274,163,000 for the year ended 30
September 2020, and, as of the date, the Group has net current
liabilities of HK$77,362,000. In addition, as at 30 September 2020,
the Group had capital commitments amounting to HK$9,567,000.
Besides, the Group was in default of non-convertible bonds of
approximately HK$13,046,000 which were overdue as of 30
September 2020. These events and conditions indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 228, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30
September 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw your attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates the Group incurred a net loss of
approximately HK$274,163,000 for the year ended 30 September
2020, and, as of the date, the Group has net current liabilities of
HK$77,362,000. In addition, as at 30 September 2020, the Group
had capital commitments amounting to HK$9,567,000. Besides,
the Group was in default of non-convertible bonds of approximately
HK$13,046,000 which were overdue as of 30 September 2020.
These events and conditions indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

FRARETEE

PSRBT F IR AR BEAREEN T F E A E
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statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we TS HZEEEIEHBINE R o Frk 5l

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit

matters we identified are:

BMREL FENT -
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Key Audit Matter
BERETSE

Impairment assessment of intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

BREE Y BERIRFEURFERAEEERE
WP fk

We identified the impairment of intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets arising from Yichang Biaodian Natural
Gas Utilisation Co., Ltd (“Yichang Biaodian”) as
a key audit matter due to the fact that Yichang
Biaodian incurred net loss of HK$16,391,000,
before impairment, in the current year which
increased the risks of impairment.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
ARBATHETNNEEBRENSEE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
included:
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- Assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management’s independent
valuer, and verifying the qualifications of the valuer;
discussing the scope of their work with management
and reviewing their terms of engagement to
determine that there were no matters that affected
their objectivity or imposed scope limitations upon

them;
- FEEEEBLAEMMNBEES EEEHDLRESH

MW ERBEEMOER BEREBHRE TIFEE
FMEMEZBER UEFTESEYEHETEHEK
Ep iy EE]EEE

= Assessing whether the value in use model adopted
was in compliance with the requirements of Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of
assets”;

— FHMEFERANEREEEIZE
365k [EERE| HEXK:

ERABR G ERE
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Key Audit Matter
HAEETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AR THENNMEERERNEE

1. Impairment assessment of intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets (Continued)

BREEE VX BERRBURCERAREERE
Rtk (&)

As stated in note 24(a), the Group engaged
an independent professional valuer to assist in
an impairment assessment by estimating the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
with reference to value in use calculation, which
required significant judgement on assumptions
and inputs adopted in the underlying cash flows
and in selecting an appropriate discount rate.
WM EE24()frit - BHREERBE T EEMLER -
BR2EEREBENEREAREELEUNT
Wo&B(EFZENEHERSRER RNER
BEERXREANRI LB ABIERELERH
&) - % B EITRVE R -

Based on the assessment, impairment losses of
HK$240,723,000, in aggregate, were recognised
on the intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of Yichang
Biaodian for the year ended 30 September 2020.
EReft BE_Z_TFNA=THLLFE 5
HERAZEBLEE ME BELKRBALER
AR ERRBRERES H£240,723,000/ 7T °

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

Assessing the reasonableness of the assumptions
underlying the projected cash flows including
revenue growth rate and operating margins by
comparison to industrial performance and based on
our knowledge of the business and industry;
FRBEITERRE R RER R ZEATEHER RITE
T FHERARERE (BRKREERERE
EMER)BENRRNSIENL:

Involving our internal valuation experts to evaluate
the methodology of the valuation, inputs used for
the cash flow forecast and factors considered in the
discount rates and assess these rates; and
ZRAAZEMITHABEEER2ETGEET A
BeRnERAMABABBALRRBRERREENHR
E WABZELE R

Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relation
to the impairment assessment.

A R EF A AR RENT S M-
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key Audit Matter
BAEESSE

2. Allowance for expected credit losses

(“ECLs”) on trade and other receivables, loan
receivables and bond receivables
EBRESREMER BERERRERESNE
HEEFR ([FHEEBR])BE

Refer to note 5(ii)(e), 6(b), 28, 29 and 30 to the
consolidated financial statements

Z UL IR ALAR S B T R M EE5 (i) (e)  6(b) 28 ~ 29 %
30

The Group has recognised allowance for ECLs
of HK$12,665,000 in aggregate on trade and
other receivables, loan receivables and bond
receivables in the current year.
EEERAEERERES REMERR B
EXRENEFERBHCEEEERELRR
12,665,000/ 7T °

As set out in note 4(aa) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group always
recognises lifetime ECL for all trade receivables
and estimates the ECLs using historical credit
loss experience adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors. For other non-trade
receivables, the Group recognises lifetime ECL
when there is significant change in credit risk
since initial recognition otherwise the Group
reoognises 12-month ECL.

WER A M HmEK F4@a)fislr E£E—EF
RBEEEFRLRAMARKEZRIERE
HEREEERARGATERAEEER URER
AR ERAZRELFAE -REMIERKE HER
M5 EBEEEREERREVIERARDR
BEARFEHER %HHTEHHF%EE?E - HA BEEE
ER1I2E R EREEEE-

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AR THETNMEERERNEE

Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

ARBMITEBZERNEFBRE:

Understanding of the Group’s credit risk
management and impairment allowance policy;

TR BEXEEERREENMBERBREK:

Evaluating the independent external valuers’
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

AHA SN R E R R BS(ERE 0 - BE D B BIE -

Understanding and challenging the judgements
made by management in calculating the ECL
allowance;
THRITEREEENTEADREEBRRBRMEDL
B 1
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Key Audit Matter
HAEETSE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AR THENNMEERERNEE

2. Allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) on trade and other receivables, loan
receivables and bond receivables (Continued)
BUEZREMER BERERRERESNE
HEEFR((AHEEEHE])BE (&)

Management was required to exercise significant
judgements and estimations in grouping debtors
with similar loss pattern and determine whether
a particular debtor is considered as default.
The impact of economic factors, both current
and future, historical experience and forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors were also
considered in management’s assessment of the
likelihood of recovery from debtors. Accordingly,
these areas are considered a key audit matter.
EEENHEERXNEUNEBAETOERA
TREERHE LG VEEREEBARTR
BRRED -BEETMHBERAWEKIEL A8
MEKEEREAMIAKRLERZ BELRNIE
BABENRELERZNTE - Bt ZEHHEE
REBAREFEIE-

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

Assessing the relevance and reliability of
the data used to determine loss rates and
the appropriateness of any adjustments for
forward-looking factors or factors specific to the
debtors; and

AHEAREETERXNEERMNEE ML R ENL
AIEMRERNESARENEZNE MR E
MKk

P54
s,
[==]

Assessing the adequacy of the allowance recorded
by reviewing subsequent settlements after the
reporting period.
BRENDRSHENEESAETHSHBENTRE
o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Hitv & #

ESAHEMENARE EMENBREFR
NAER A ER EFEEMBEHRERRAK
ZEDTTEN E P R BB SRR O -

AZBMITHEAVBRRNERLTIRE
HMER AZBMIT T T HZEEMER
BREMTZANREBES

RAZBMITHEAVBRROBAMS
AZBETHEEDABNEMER  Fibid
B ZEREMEN RS MWK AANZ
BEMITEEABRETANTNEAREFE
EREBREBEUFEEANHERBRML - ERA
ZEEITEMITH TR AR EBEITRR
HiERFHEEANSHRRL  NEZHENTH
BREZEE - AZBEDTTRLU Y EAE(T =
HBHRE -

EENGEMBRRARENS
£

EXRAAERBEESHMAGRMNEE
s SR R E B R AHED M B R AR E R
HEEMAFHESMBERR ULHEZR
BRESEMBRERNEBHIEFEHNKE
X $5 BR 1T 28 B B A 85 AR PR P 75 O R BB B2

2B H-

EREGEAVBRARE EFRETE BE
BisEKENE N YEBRIBER T HER
FEKLZEHENER URERAKELER
SRER RIEFEEN ESEBRAE
ERE R BEEMERNBRTER

ECZEEWMPDESTRETEE EEENH
%
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

BBENHE T RS MWK AR
EHEE

AZBMITHNERDEEAMBEHRRERR
ETNFEARKFRERMERWERHER
ARG ERE Y ABEARZEATT
BERNOZBERE - AZBEVTER BT
(1EREER) ME - BR UL Z SN AR & Bl
B AEZBENTTH A AREN AR EE
MEMATBTHEAESRT

BERIFRBKFHNREZ BTEREZRR
FRBEAETHNERBREBRENER
BRO - #5 AR PR AT DA i R FE Bk #E AR 5l A8 - 1R
FEEREEERELAERAETESRSY
BHRERERBLEAVBERRAIEHOL
FORTE - BB B RO 88 AR R AT AR EE K

ERRBE LB EMNETEFET R
AZBEMTEREEHE RIFFXERRERE
JE o RAZ BTN -

o BRIRFERARKMFRBERMERES
MBRRFEEANBRRAAER -
AARBMITEAEFARYZERER -
REBREMEENESRE (FAN
BT B R BT - RN HGF AT B
REFR mE EBER ERRL %
EERAREREZ b Rt ReEHRRA
BRFEMEREBRERERRANERS
MAEZERFERMEBHBREANER
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AEER TBEENEEF R

WY BEEEAMEENBAREER
BR-
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

e HMAEEMERASFEERAEEENAR
ER At AR EN A ENE -

s HEERAKEKLLSHERMNEET
fElL & - WRIBFTERHEERE
BERAFEESHABREMNEX
THREME HmMAEEHYE EREN
SEELERNELBERRE - WMAKRK
MITRREFEEATHEL MABE
ERBMBRETRBEREIESEY
BHRRTPOEERE BREERNKE
TR BT AZBEMITHNER A&
BENTTAER N ENEE XA RS B
LSBT /RE A REKFIA
HIENAEEH EEETREFELE
Ev R

o HAREMBHROEBIRIA &
BRAT(BREEE)ZFEUREAY
BHRERERFRBABERXZ REE-

e B BEEERNEBIEXBEDHHNE
ERNERETEENENLRE UEY
REMBBRRERBR -ARBETE
B BEEETFWLIME EBERHRT
AZBMTRBEABRARZMEE-

AZBMTEEZZEQBBETNTEE®E
BERERNAREREFERST HPFEEA
ZHETEEF TR D ABEENERNE
APNRZER

AZBETTRAEZEZESRIEH KA
AZBMITECNEERBL ENERERE
BER TRFEBAAESERRD/ET
EXRZEBMITBELENMERREREMER
AR EBER BT R AR 815 It -
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Wo Cheung.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

22 December 2020

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_ZT—

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE BE-_Z—NF
—E-EHF ==
hA=+8 —T-NF
ILEFE NA=1+HHM
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FHET FHT
(Re-presented)
(&&E5)
Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue g 8 42,734 35,925
Cost of sales $HE A AR (29,747) (24,183)
Gross profit EF 12,987 11,742
Other income Hpie A 9 3,939 6,199
Other gains and losses Hpb W s R E 1B o 10 827 (117)
(Loss)/gain on fair value change on BEZ A FEF ABS
convertible bond designated at fair (MBERAFEABE])
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) < AI#RES 2 A FEE
B (&8 M 40 (399 3,940
Selling and distribution costs HEMDHKA (19,389 (16,706)
General and administrative expenses —MRNMTHH (32,191 (24,332)
Impairment loss on property, W% WE &R ERESE
plant and equipment R o r 21 (132,902 (18,127)
Impairment loss on intangible assets & & E R EEE 25 (106,934 (15,057)
Allowance for trade receivables R 5 RS 6(b)(i) (4,304 (29)
Reversals of allowance/(allowance) for & U & 3k 8 {f % o]
loan receivables (Bw) 6(b)(i) 3,097 (4,115)
Allowance for bond receivables W B 2 B 6(b)(ii) (10,758 (177)
Allowance for other receivables i fE YR8 B 6(b)(ii) (700 =
Finance costs B 7 X 7R 12 (8,440 (8,184)
Loss before tax BREBRIE IR (295,167) (64,963)
Income tax credit St 13 28,349 5,000
Loss for the year/period from RERFECEER T B
continuing operations N E 18 14 (266,818) (59,963)
Discontinued operations E%JJ:%@‘%%?%
Loss for the year/period from RECDRIECEERZF/
discontinued operations BN Es 18 18 (7,345) (3,699)
Loss for the year/period F/HAEE (274,163) (63,662)
Other comprehensive income Hin2mEUW =R (BRBLE)
after tax
Items that may be reclassified to AREEEN DB
profit or loss: IHH
Exchange differences arising on B BRARERESNE
translation of financial statements BEACZEREZR
to presentation currency 11,639 (16,303)
Exchange differences reclassified HEB RIS ER
to profit or loss on disposal of ENoEEER
discontinued operations EEHER (731) -

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BE-_Z - ZFNA=ZTHILEE

For the year ended 30 September 2020

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
ﬁ: BN
ﬂﬁ +E —ZE—NF
IEFEE NA=+HHEMH
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FET FH T
(Re-presented)
(&&E5)
Other comprehensive income FHREMEERE
for the year/period, net of tax (EHNH) 10,908 (16,303)
Total comprehensive income FE/HRNEEBERE
for the year/period (263,255) (79,965)
Loss for the year/period LT ATEERE
attributable to: HAESE:
Owners of the Company PIN/NETE ¥ =N
— continuing operations —FHEKEER (94,502) (27,889)
- discontinued operations =B ZQJJ:%“ BT (7,334) (3,696)
(101,836) (31,585)
Non-controlling interests JEPE PR
- continuing operations —FHRKEET (172,316) (32,074)
— discontinued operations —BRIEREER (11) (3)
(172,327) (32,077)
Total comprehensive income UTATEMGE HRE2E
for the year/period attributable to: #4828
Owners of the Company AREEE A (96,391) (38,745)
Non-controlling interests ey (166,864) (41,220)
(263,255) (79,965)
Loss per share BREE 20
From continuing and discontinued REFERKERCKRILERE
operations
Basic (HK cents per share) ER (RE) (132.01) (48.46)
Diluted (HK cents per share) 3 (FRBI) (132.01) (50.77)
From continuing operations REFELSCEER
Basic (HK cents per share) AR (ZRREAW) (122.50) (42.79)
Diluted (HK cents per share) g (SR (122.50) (45.26)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &

EHRAE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZE-ZFFNH=+H As at30 September 2020

2020 2019
—ERF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 TET FHT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WEREE 21 108,168 242 422
Right-of-use assets ERERE 22 1,948 4,811
Goodwill kS 24 580 -
Intangible assets mEAE 25 69,507 178,685
Deposits for acquisition of WENBARES
subsidiaries 28 - 6,830
Deposits for acquisition of property, U BEW % - B E K& &1
plant and equipment e 4,412 3,764
184,615 436,512
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 27 766 370
Trade and other receivables JE W E 5 Ko H At BR R 28 9,849 22,783
Loan receivables JE W B K 29 21,944 12,799
Bond receivables FEWEFH 30 - 9,710
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable A Y [@] 3 & F
(MEEHR]) 6,516 6,940
Current tax assets mERIEEE - 161
Bank and cash balances RITRIBSER 31 1,978 3,325
41,053 56,088
Assets classified as held for sale 2EBBELEERE 32 - 2,721
41,053 58,809
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZE-ZFTFNHA=+H As at30 September 2020

2020 2019
—EZEHF —NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FE T FAT
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 I H AR 3K 33 43,155 50,537
Contract liabilities =N N=K 34 3,732 2,396
Lease liabilities HEAE 35 1,103 2,705
Due to related parties JE 1~ B Bt 5 RRIE 51(d) 2,254 554
Due to directors JETZESE A 36 3,969 347
Non-convertible bonds NI ]RES 37 56,190 31,885
Bank borrowings WITEE 38 8,012 2,216
Convertible bond designated EEZAFEFABREZ
at FVTPL AT ES 40 = 19,771
Current tax liabilities mERIEAE - 1
118,415 110,412
Net current liabilities REBAETRE (77,362) (51,603)
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERABHARGE 107,253 384,909
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Due to non-controlling shareholders of &1t — k@ A
a subsidiary and its related parties eS| Eﬁy 39 40,441 43,589
Lease liabilities HEHE 35 393 540
Non-convertible bonds Tl E S 37 2,706 3,000
Bank borrowings RITEE 38 12,589 15,513
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 41 17,377 44,484
73,506 107,126
33,747 277,783

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZZE-ZFFNH=+H As at30 September 2020

2020 2019
—E-%F —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Bt & FHT FH&TT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRRFE
Share capital &N 42 45,586 32,586
Reserves G 43(a) (55,787) 34,398
(Capital deficiency)/equity attributable ZNA ml1#E A A E1L
to owners of the Company (BAREHM) S (10,201) 66,984
Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) IEVE IR M =
([FErERRfER]) 43,948 210,799
Total equity S 33,747 277,783

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 December 2020 and are R-ZE_TF+ A+ _HE=SFgE

signed on its behalf by: WHTIHESRERES:
Wang Wenzhou Wu Guoming
EFxA 5 E ¥
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREE AR
Subsidiary
Share Capital Share Other  Translation ~ Share options sharesto  Accumulated
capital reserve premium reserve reserve reserve be issued losses Total NCI Total equity
BF8f2
B ErEh RHER AR BERE  MRERE WELERR 2itEE at  FERER BEAE
(note42)  (ote 430)i)  (ote 43plfil)  (ote43pliv)  (note 430)l) (note 44)
(W) (Weeasp)  (Wsesomm)  (REkaaping)  (KEE43) GEZD)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TR TRE AR TAR TR THR  TER  TAR  THL  TER AR
At 1 January 2019 32,686 7540 267,434 32,072 (3,551) 9,457 163,377 (265,882) 263,933 93,482 357,415
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - - (7,160) - - (31,689) (38,745) 41,220) (79,965)
Subsicfiary shares issued to NCI - - - 30,145 - - (183,377) - (123,232 123,232 -
Deemed disposal of interest to NCI (note 461f)
- - - (50,945) 1179 - - 14711 (35,095) 35,065 -
Forfeiture of share options granted (note 44) - - - - - (3,491) - 3,491 - - -
Deemed capital contribution arising from non-
curent interest-free loan fomnon-controlling.~~ EBE A REFAHEEER
shareholders of a subsidiary and fs related EE 7B
parties note 39) - - - 83 - - - - 83 250 333
At 30 September 2019 RZZ-AEAAZTR 32,586 7540 287 434 12,29 (9532 5,966 = (269,265) 66,984 210,799 217,783
At 1 October 2019 RZZ-NF+A-A 32,686 7540 267,434 12,255 (9.532) 5,966 - (269,265) 66,984 210,799 207,183
Total comprehensive income for the year FRRERALE - - - - 5,445 - - 101,836) 96,391) (166,864) 263,255)
Issuance of ordinary shares 13,000 - 6,206 - - - - - 19,206 - 19,206
Forfeiture of share options granted (note 44) | - - - - - (1,527) - 1,821 - - -
Cancellation of share options granted (ote 44 HEER 1 HAE (Hika) - - - - - 44%9) - 4439 - - -
Disposal of discontinued operations (note 46() £\ ER 451 &5 (ikep)) - - - - - - - - - 13 13
At 30 September 2020 R-Z-EEAAZ1A 45,586 7540 293640 12,285 (6.087) e 2 (365,139) (10.201) 13,918 B747
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_ZT—

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
Bz BT hEF
—E-EF = §l={Ez
hB=+H —E-hF
IEEE NAZ+HHM
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=2 FHET FET
(Re-presented)
(gE9)
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHMEBRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BBl AT A A
Continuing operations FELEER (295,167) (64,963)
Discontinued operations B IEEE X (7,345) (3,680)
(302,512) (68,643)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- WE k&
equipment e 16,018 13,530
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 3,084 2,074
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 6,458 5,711
Finance costs B FS B AR 8,446 8,203
Interest income F B U A (3,388) (2,295)
Loss/(gain) on fair value change EERAFEFABRE S
on convertible bond designated G fof%"‘fzﬂifﬁ
at FVIPL .. o @ Wy % 2HER (K 399 (3,940)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - -HE& uxf%
plant and equipment 18 (4) 5
Loss on written off of property, WIEY % K E L&k
plant and equipment BB 16 =
Loss on disposal of HEBERIEEEEK
discontinued operations 518 5,910 =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary oS — B R R (1,576) =
Loss on de-registration FT B~ RIUE FE B 18
of subsidiaries - 94
Loss on waiver of loan receivables MW E R EE 552 =
Impairment loss on intangible assets 2 & & F{E &5 18 106,934 15,057
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 1,958 4,207
Impairment loss on property, Y% BB R ERE
plant and equipment 518 132,902 18,127
Impairment loss on FRREEREESE
right-of-use assets 887 117
Allowance for trade receivables U E 5 AR F h 4,304 50
(Reversals of allowance)/allowance FEWE R (B
for loan receivables Bm) B (3,097) 7,138
Allowance for bond receivables FE U (& 5 10,758 177
Allowance for other receivables ot JE R IB B 700 =
Other receivables written off EL b 8 L 3k TE 1 8 - 10
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE—ZT—

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE BT —NF
—B-EF —B—B=%
hA=+8 —E-NF
IEFE NA=Z1+HBHH
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5 F&T FH T
(Re-presented)
(geE9)
Operating cash flows before working ‘&8 & & &A1 2
capital changes KEIRPRE (11,251) (383)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEUWE 5 R EABRFUR D
other receivables () 1,095 (11,238)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BE (&M R (396) 122
Decrease in restricted bank deposits = [R %R 1717 ZUR 2 - 544
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FETE 5 B HL h BR 3K
other payables G /180 (823) 1,918
Increase/(decrease) in aHaEEm CRd)
contract liabilities 1,336 (455)
Increase in amount due to 7E 1T B Bk 05 SR IE 38 0
related parties 1,647 554
Cash used in operations KEME RS (8,392) (8,938)
Income tax paid BERAES (1) (18)
NET CASH USED RETHIEZREFH
IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (8,393) (8,956)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHFESRLRE
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and WEEM % B E K& 15
equipment (1,911) (6,182)
Proceeds from deposits for disposal &9 sz% REBz
of property, plant and equipment ?E/i\ﬁﬁ S FIE - 2,884
Interest received 2 U H B 5,494 1,823
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE HWE&
plant and equipment HAE 2 TS RE 50 =
Increase in loan receivables FE UL E FR3E N (21,420) (15,580)
Receipt from repayment of WEIEREFUER
loan receivables 11,750 24,850
Increase in bond receivables JE Uk & 2532 N (80) (3,000)
Receipt from repayment of I 2| fE I EH B
bond receivables - 6,500
Deposits paid for acquisition WEHRBARIBEMN 2i&e
of subsidiaries - (6,830)
Deposits paid for acquisition of B ZE - B MR
property, plant and equipment REN PR & (4,320) (3,764)
Cash outflow arising from acquisition 4 ﬁ% BB AREEZ
of a subsidiary IR &m 46(a (760) =
Cash outflow arising from disposal HEERICEEREE Y
of discontinued operations WEm 46(b) (3) =
Cash inflow arising from disposal of ~ H&—HEMEBARELZ
a subsidiary REm 46(c) 1,427 =
Decrease in VAT recoverable A 4 [ 3% (& iR 516 843
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE B-ZT—NF
—ECEF =JF—18%
hB=+8 —E-hE
IHFE NLA=+HHMA
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E FE T FAT
(Re-presented)
(&LEY)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED 3RX&;EE (FriE),
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES FBBEEFHE (9,257) 1,544
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ®EFEHFEHEESHKE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of new ordinary 317 ¥ & @A AT 15 OB F 5
shares, net of 19,206 -
Repayment to non-controlling BRTF-—HKNBRARZ
shareholders of a subsidiary and its ~ JF#% B I 3R & H Bt 75
related parties, net of FER (6,378) (1,598)
New bank borrowings raised EESHILRITEER 4,482 -
Increase/(decrease) in amounts JEES BN
due to directors CRA) 3,557 (1,757)
Repayment of lease liabilities EHEHEAE (2,451) (2,161)
Proceeds from non-convertible bonds & B 7~ A] # A% {& %5 2
Fr 1S 3018 7,012 20,748
Repayment of non-convertible bonds 1B & 1~ A] A f% (& % (7,442) (296)
Repayment of bank borrowings EBERITEE (2,241) (1,160)
Interest paid EEREPS (2,214) (1,404)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RMEETHREREFHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 13,531 12,372
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ReRBESLEHE(RD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B hnF 5 (4,119) 4,960
Effect of foreign exchange INEEXREBE) B
rate changes 2,772 (3,932)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS % BB ¢RBESZHE
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR/PERIOD 3,325 2,297
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS # HIAXBEE¢RBESZEHE
AT END OF YEAR/PERIOD 1,978 8828
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

GENERAL INFORMATION

Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place of
business is Unit A, 11/F., Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 30
September 2020, Hong Kong Hao Yue International Trading
Co., Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is
the ultimate parent and Mr. Zhang Hai Ping is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

—REH

REEBEBREBERAR ([RAARI)E
HEHSRERNSHESREAAE
M RERRBR A A i
% FZ i ik A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands - £+ Z %
E M B 2t A BB EFE T ITE128
FHEEREEAE AR 2 RH
EEBMERIMARRNE ([BEAZA])
GEM ETi»

ARBH—HREERRAR KRB A
AZEBEBHNGEE M B RERME
26 °

ARREERR R_ZE_TFhA
=TH - REBEMKLZ ARERR
BEREZERABSRETIRTE M
RKEFRERRARRMZEERT

RO

ZESAVBBRRDIRETESHMA
g([ERefmAag)BEMZABEE
REEM GRS EL ([BRPBRELE
AR -FEYHRELANBEERE
MG REER ([FEMBREER])
BAGEN(TEEGHER]) &
B ZFEREMBRRNNT S BN
GEMRE 7 £ 5 Al 2 i F 4% BB 153U |
BERAGD (BB EPIF6228 ) 2 W
BRE - AKSHEMRAZERZSHTRR
RERE M TSR M AW E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The Directors have given careful consideration to the use of
the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group in light of the fact that the Group
incurred a net loss of HK$274,163,000 for the year ended
30 September 2020, and, as of that date, the Group had
net current liabilities of HK$77,362,000. In addition, as at
30 September 2020, the Group had capital commitments
amounting to HK$9,567,000 as disclosed in note 49.
Besides, the Group was in default of non-convertible bonds of
approximately HK$13,046,000 which were overdue as of 30
September 2020.

These events and conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. In view of these circumstances, the directors have
estimated the Group’s cash requirements by the preparation of
a Group cashflow forecast for the coming 12 months and have,
during the year and up to the date of the approval of these
consolidated financial statements, instituted the following plans
and measures to mitigate the liquidity pressure, to improve the
financial position of the Group and to restructure its financial
obligations:

WEEXE &)

BFEGTMASTHME THA LEE
RIRBMBREEA YNAKEZA
SR AR ERL A HREERA - W
RN A G S I AT &5 B
RApEREAEEREATMELS
AARREHER AREHEH B

RZFHREMBHRR -

ENAREERBE_T _TENA=T
B I Z E 4 B8 % §8274,163,000%
T REBEZA AEENRBEETF
B A77,362,0008 L  EEETFHAEE
REHEREENTBREEERFEL
R o W AN AN FEA9FT IR EE A T
T_ZFNA=TH AEBENERNK
¥& 59,567,000 Lo N BHEZT =
TEENA=ZTH AEENEBHELN
DA AR E 5 4 513,046,000 T ©

REFHRBERABTEFEERTEE
M AREHASERELLENRNERE
BRETEREEREERABNENE
EEARBE-ZERNZE/N EFCRE
PBREANEERRFI2EANRSRE
BRAXRGHASENRSFT R BER
FARBEREZFHEEVHERE B H
BEA T B RIERAEERSE S E
N HMAEARENRBERRAREER
HYMBEL:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continuead)

WEEXE &)

(@ Mr. Wu Guoming, a shareholder and a director of the @ RZZEZZEFAA=+AH AR
Company, and Mr. Wang Wenzhou, a director of the Hxﬁ&i%é&ﬂﬁﬂf‘ﬁiﬁzﬁun
Company, as at 30 September 2020, agreed to provide EEIXALEEREBERASEIRE
sufficient funds to the Group so that the Group will be HERE S UEAREEERER
able to meet all current obligations as they fall due in the RZZEZZEFNA=THERK
coming twelve months after 30 September 2020. T & A R AR P B RN AR -

(b) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, holders by RBEBHREBE XeBEHNA
of non-convertible bonds with principal amounts of 33,186,000 7T #) 1~ A # J% & %
approximately HK$33,186,000 have signed letters of WA ABEARRRZEMN
intent with the Company agreeing to extend the maturity EEREHIHREIHELR
date by one year once the bonds mature. — %o

(c) On 20 November 2020, the Company announced that it () RZE_ZEF+—A=+8 AR
will implement a rights issue fund raising exercise to raise AEMERETHREEES U
net proceeds, after deducting the estimated expenses, EEMEFHIEFE (NBRETAX

of approximately HK$55.32 million (the “Rights Issue”).
The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from
the proposed Rights Issue as to (i) approximately HK$48
million for redemption of outstanding bonds issued by
the Company; (i) approximately HK$3 million for payment
of outstanding professional fees; and (iii) approximately
HK$4.32 million as general working capital of the
Group. On 20 November 2020, the Company entered
into an underwriting agreement, pursuant to which
the underwriter has conditionally agreed to underwrite
50% of the total Rights Issue, subject to the terms and
conditions of the underwriting agreement. The Rights
Issue is required to be approved by the shareholders
in the Company’s extraordinary general meeting to be
convened. Details of the Rights Issue are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 20 November 2020.

The Group has been taking various cost control measures
to tighten the costs of operations.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &

EHRA R

&) #55.32E 8 AT (THERR]) -
NN AR RS AR 2 P18 RUE
FE(N4SEEBTTARELOAR
AIEBITZRIZNES ()37
EETARINARETEEER:
K(inf4.32B8 BA TREASE
—REBES R-_T_TF+—
BZ+8H XRREZ—HEHEH
#FOBL BERERERERE
HARBE50% WA BHEHE
iR B AR P AR PR o AR ZE AR R
RARFETAEANBRERERAKR
@ ERE IR BEH N AAR]
HfA-—_T-_ZTF+—A=+H

Z/\tl:o

7N £ B 2 BRER 2 T8 B A 4R il 4 e
WEEERA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The Directors of the Company therefore consider it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. Should the Group
be unable to operate as a going concern in the foreseeable
future, adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities respectively. The
effect of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

In the prior period, the Group changed its financial year end
date from 31 December to 30 September in order to avoid
competition of resources with other listed companies during
the peak reporting season and remove uncertainty from the
variation in the dates of the Chinese New Year Holiday which
put pressure on the workflow. The Board considered that the
change of financial year end date facilitated the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
current period of consolidated financial statements covers the
year ended 30 September 2020 and the comparative financial
statements cover a nine-month period from 1 January 2019 to
30 September 2019. The comparative amounts are therefore
not entirely comparable.

WEEXE &)

Rt ARAEZERR ®EZEEA
MEBRRERATELEEETNBE
B MARERARRLRREEFEL
2 AIEFHABRUABAREEEZ KR
EEMREE R KRE SR AR AT AL
EREAE - P REERE WA
MBEEFGERBREDIHNEFHIER
MBEENABRBE -REAENTE
WERZFEREMBEHRR AR -

RE—HF AEEKEMBRFESR
HHTZA=+—REHBR/RAA=T
B oA RERREERERLMEHA
AINERBEF ARFERTPERERF
RUPBHMEIERNTHERNR ER
THERESREN -BEFERR BEX
MBRFEEEREPIRREASERS
MBmE -HFEMBBREROANAERE
BE_T_TFNA=THLEEFE M
KB BHRRREE _FT—NF—A—
BE_Z-AFNAA=TENAEAH
e Ut LERBARY A e 2 AT o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

(a)

(b)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

None of the developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 October 2019. These new
and revised HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

3.

BRANRNR] R AMER] B B M B,
3 |

A=A

(a)

(b)

B PR 37 4T R AR A5 5T B 8 B RS R o5

2 5

EREHTHACEEMRAEE
& 5 R B 0k A AR B B A

BRI SIS T -

MEZRSHNAREKZINA
SERAHEICBE BN XA
FHBRRELERTE - AKH
I % & A E R R A S R R
ERRE AT R

B EMEERERZHETREEZ
ABEBMBEREER

AEBYTERFEAR-_F N
FHA-—BHRBZMEFELED
AR R A Z #R] R ER]
BREMBRELER - ZFHAT L
EIRABMBREERBEUAT
AIBE B ARS E AR 2 £

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

RT3 B
ZERRZ

i HBEX

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition
of a business
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

EE

Definition of material (BEIR)BEANTES
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 BB RS AR

and HKFRS 7 Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

ERMBREEREIR (BFTA) ZHH
FEEMEAFIRLE LGSR
|SEO5% - BB AT ER

FIR R BB B MG ERNETHR
(ERTAN) M R B

1 January 2020
—ZET-ETHF—-H—H
1 January 2020
—_E_FTF—H—H
1 January 2020
—_ET-_TF—-H—H

R FE 85
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. EAFIRRBIETEBYER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HXA (7)
STANDARDS (continued)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) CHEMEERERZHTRLEE
effective (Continued) AIEBUMKEREER (&)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after
RT5 B8R
ZEEBZ
B HBEEX
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19- & B B M EERF165 (E5T4) 1 June 2020
Related Rent Concessions 20197k w5 B R F & Rl —EZZFRA—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BAVBEHRELERNBITHRRERE L 1 January 2021
—F-—%—H—H
Annual Improvements to BEAUBRELEN =T —NEE 1 January 2022
HKFRSs 2018-2020 —T_TFEFENRE —T=-=F—A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, BBV B EERFENR BB S LR 1 January 2021
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 395  BEUBWMELAE7TR A T -_—F—H—H
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — SRS R E4HE R BB SRS %
Phase 2 AIZE165% (85T A ) Il R R F —
E2MEER
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to & M 53Rk S 2RI 358 (BRI A) Bt 1 January 2022
the Conceptual Framework HE R 42 i —E-%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, BRI ERE165E (B R)WE - 1 January 2022
plant and equipment: proceeds MEREE BEFERAACHAERE Z—T-_—_F—H—H
before intended use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous BB SR EITHE (BE]AXN)EE 1 January 2022
contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract & #)—B1TE& KA —E-F—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification & @ 2RIE 15 (BFIRN) BABEHE 1 January 2023
of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current A7 813k FE 7 & —E-=F—H—H
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment) &M W E L F105 R B A28 To be determined
Sale or Contribution of Assets F28% (BRIA) A& EERE N F] FE
between an Investor and its REECEIRACEENESREE

Associate or Joint Venture
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continuead)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new or revised standards, interpretation
and amendments, certain of which are relevant to
the Group’s operations. According to the preliminary
assessment made by the Directors of the Company,
no significant impact on the financial performance and
position of the Group is expected when they become
effective except for HKFRS 3. Amendments to HKFRS 3
clarify and provide additional guidance on the definition of
a business. The amendments clarify that for an integrated
set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 October 2020.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

3.

BRANFR] RAMER] B R M B 3R

SR (&)

A=A

(b)

B EMEERERZHTRESZ
AEBUMBHREER (&)

AEBERABTHZETT L
BTN R REFA (A E
THRAEEZERBA) HTE-R
BARRESELNVBTME &
HEARETEHAEB B
RARMRERERATE  EBES
BA RS SRS E B 35RO BB B
B R FE35 (BETA) BF

REBEEB TR 2EIMNES| - Z
ZEIARE RERABERZ—
BETHREEMS  ENVEARD
PREIERABEEREEFL ZEA
REE I - EBABEBRIERE
ERMEEBRARTRF - Z25E
AABEH IS 2BERT AR
NESEBUEEELES 2
fe-MMRZ FEIFRERFZERA
MTESRETIFR2E A XRHA
EREER -ZEBIIANBEE
ErEE FEIRNMEFRECE
MR - B AT B EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZT

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 30 September. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

EESTEE

SERAVBEHRRCBRIBE S KX AL
LTRSS AR ERIN (I
BATEAENETERIA)-

=Y

RRGA BB RS R AN B
BEMETEARI G NBEEE
BRI R AEE Y & EE 2B
S8 o B P RS A S S
B Y HANBREMEBEAY
2 BR R R RSN RS-

RAEZEHEAMBHRREERANER

ABEREN T X
(a) #HREEKRE

A BHRRBEAR T K EH
BRARABENA=1TH KR
R MBRRIEAEERR 2
ZER - BERAEEAXNZHAZHNE
BERFEHAI Mm% BAENE
ﬁ ERNOENITZEZZOR
B AREEEGIZEB - EXE
BERREEFNAE TEZERR
BREBNEN (AREZEER
@#&ﬁ]%ﬁk)ﬁi AIRNEEERY
ZERNEN -

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating
to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
|dentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUSs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is the
Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The directors consider that choosing HK$ as the
presentation currency best suits the needs of the
shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueqd)

(c) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of

(c)

all the Group

entities that have a functional currency different from

the Company’s presentation currency
into the Company’s presentation
follows:

are translated
currency as

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continueq)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(d)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

2.5% - 20%
20% - 33"/3%
12.5% — 33"/5%
20% - 60%
20% - 25%

5% - 20%

10% - 20%

Buildings

Computer system and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Pipeline and equipment

Plant and machinery

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily car parking
spaces. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(e)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment properties
and lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(e) Leases (Continued)

(ii) The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

(f) Intangible assets

()

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii) Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(h)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised. When the contract includes
a significant financial component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective interest
method.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(k)

U]

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Trade and other receivables, loan receivables and
bond receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”).

4., EEGITEHE (&)

(k)

U]

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ %

BWEZRHEMERR BRERK
& W 1 2

& L B R AN £R B R B AR 1 R
B (B A M B AR - (B B HIX
A1 - WER (B /Y 1 ) (2 7B BE RS 1]
HERB BI AT AR A B AGRAT © N SR B R
B (5 4 ) BN AK (B B RE AR LR
@ ERANERRENEE-

& R SR PR B B M) ORI 8 3
AR ASRAE B B 1R R R DI Bk

RERREEH

ReMReFTRBRBRITRTHA
Re FHRERTREMSBHEE
BE B 17 SR A SR B A = R B 1
MIRE - ELRE A AR ERS
ERMBENRES  BEZHERT
RN WEBAR=ERAZH R
R eERTEIEAREES
B(EREERE]) NG



e SRR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EESITEHE &)

(Continued)
(m) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued (m) BELHEXRBEEREARLER
operation K

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. The Group must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of the asset’s or
disposal group’s previous carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the component is abandoned.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(m) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

(n)

(o)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

operation (Continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings and bonds

Borrowings and bonds are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings and bonds are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The
liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently
at the higher of:

- The amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9; and

- The amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised
as part of the cost of the investment.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert
the bonds into equity instruments, other than into a fixed
number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price,
are regarded as combined instruments consisting of a
liability and a derivative component. The entire convertible
bond is designated as a financial liability at FVTPL.

Transaction costs are charged directly to profit or loss.
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HE_ZT

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(r)

(s)

®

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from the trading of copper and petrochemicals
and sale of liquefied natural gas in bulk are recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the customer’s
specified location (delivery), and the agreed service
performed. Following delivery, the customer has full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling
the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss
in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised by
the Group when the goods are delivered to the customer
as this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the

passage of time is required before payment is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZT

BB HRRNET

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from pipeline installation services is recognised
at a point in time when the installation completed and
the government inspected and issued approval report.
Payment for installation services is not due from the
customer until the installation services are complete.

The performance obligation of sale of natural gas through
pipelines to the customer are satisfied over time as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits of the natural gas provided by the Group as
it performs, therefore, revenue arising from the sale of
natural gas through pipelines is recognised over time. The
revenue from sale of natural gas is based on the price as

set out by the government.

The Group provides leasing of steel support axial force
servo system and related installation services and
technology support to customer. Leasing income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term
in accordance with the accounting policy in note 4(e).
Installation services and technology support services
income are recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits of these services

provided by the Group as it performs.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

®

(u)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Leasing income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

(w) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain directors and employees. Equity-settled share-
based payments are measured at fair value (excluding
the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the
equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(x)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Any specific
borrowing that remain outstanding after the related asset
is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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HE_ZT

BB HRRNET

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year/period. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BB HRRNET

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

()

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written
down as an expense through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or
the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.
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TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(aa)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on
trade and other receivables, loan receivables and bond
receivables. The amount of ECLs is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continueqd)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(aa)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

= significant deterioration in external market indicators

of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

= existing or forecast adverse changes in business,

financial or economic conditions that are expected

to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability

to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial

instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change

in the regulatory, economic, or technological

environment of the debtor that results in a significant

decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,

the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial

asset has increased significantly since initial recognition

when contractual payments are more than 30 days past

due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

() the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EESITEHE &)

(Continued)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(aa) EMEERME (£)

Credit-impaired financial assets EERELHEE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the =
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due =
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or —
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will i
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that =
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the
exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, EESITEHE &)

(Continued)

(aa) EMEERME (£)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining the ECLs
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueqd)

(ab) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(ac)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

(i)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the

directors have made the following judgements that have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in

the consolidated financial statements (apart from those

involving estimates, which are dealt with below).

(a)

(b)

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which depends upon measures taken by the
Directors to improve the Group’s financial position,
cash flows and profitability and the financial
supports from two directors of the Company, at
a level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group as explained in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation of entity with less than 50%
equity interest holding

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the
equity interest in EEMIZRXARTFHAERA A
(Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co. Ltd.)
(“Yichang Biaodian”), Yichang Biaodian is treated as
a subsidiary because the Group is able to control
the relevant activities of Yichang Biaodian as a result
of the shareholders’ agreement among the Group
and other shareholders of Yichang Biaodian. The
assessment on the control is set out in note 26(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continueq)

(i)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage
2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk.
In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a)

Depreciation and impairment on property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
and residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned.

5, FEHERERMGEF (2)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continueq)

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a) Depreciation and impairment on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether property, plant and
equipment and construction in progress have
any indication of impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been
determined based on value in use calculations
of each CGU the property, plant and equipment
belonged, which requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the

present value.

Impairment losses of HK$132,902,000 and
HK887,000 (period from 1 January 2019 to 30
September 2019: HK$18,127,000 and HK$117,000
respectively) were recognised for the year ended
30 September 2020 to write down the carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to the recoverable amount
of the CGUs belonged respectively. The carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 30 September 2020 was
HK$108,168,000 and HK$1,948,000 respectively
(2019: HK$242,422,000 and HK$4,811,000

respectively).
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (continued)

5, FEHERERMGEF (2)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in
several jurisdictions. Significant estimates are
required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made. During the year ended
30 September 2020, HK$28,349,000 (period
from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019:
HK$5,000,000) of income tax was credited to profit
or loss based on the estimated assessable loss from
continuing operations.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The carrying amount
of goodwill at the end of the reporting period was
HK$580,000 (2019: Nil) after an impairment loss of
HK$1,958,000 recognised during the year ended
30 September 2020 (period from 1 January 2019 to
30 September 2019: HK$4,207,000). Details of the
impairment loss calculation are provided in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements.

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continueq)

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Amortisation and impairment on intangible
assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group’s intangible
assets. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite, based on
the expected usage and technical obsolescence
from the changes in the market demands or
services output from the assets. Intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised over the
expected useful economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible assets may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method
for the intangible assets with a finite useful life are
reviewed by the management at least at the end of
each reporting period. The Group assesses whether
any indication of impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of
intangible assets have been determined based on
value in use calculations of each CGU the intangible
assets belonged which requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order

to calculate the present value.

Impairment loss of HK$106,934,000 (period
from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019:
HK$15,057,000) was recognised for the year
ended 30 September 2020. The carrying amount
of intangible assets at 30 September 2020 was

HK$69,507,000 (2019: HK$178,685,000).
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BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Impairment of trade and other receivables, loan
receivables and bond receivables

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade and
other receivables, loan receivables and bond
receivables based on the credit risk of these
receivables. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due
to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 30 September 2020, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was HK$3,822,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$4,424,000
(2019: HK$11,243,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$48,000).

As at 30 September 2020, the carrying amount
of other receivables was HK$6,027,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$700,000 (2019:
HK$11,540,000).

As at 30 September 2020, the carrying amount
of loan receivables was HK$21,944,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$1,017,000
(2019: HK$12,799,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$7,003,000).

5. FEHEREKXRMGE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. TEHEREAMES ()
ESTIMATES (continueq)
(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (i) FHEFTHBAEZNEZERE
(&)
(e) Impairment of trade and other receivables, loan (e) EWREZFREMEB EK
receivables and bond receivables (Continued) EXREKESHE (£F)
As at 30 September 2020, the carrying amount R-—E-_ZEFNA=+8"
of bond receivables was nil, net of allowance FRESFNERBEAES
for doubtful debts of HK$10,935,000 (2019: (B R AR 1%10,935,000
HK$9,710,000, net of allowance for doubtful debts Bmw) (ZF — L &F
of HK$177,000). 9,710,000/ 7t (#1Bk R AR B

#177,00087T) ) °

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBERER

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: AEBZEBKSHEBHZHS AR :

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest SNERBR - EERR - - RBESRER K

rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme PR AR EEREREETE

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks SHPREeRMB 2 TR WSk

to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial REREREAEEUBRREETT

performance. A -

(a) Foreign currency risk (a) HhEERB
The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk HRAEBZHBLOEBRR S BE
as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities RBRDUAEEERB ZNEEE
are denominated in currencies other than the functional ANz B (mET(1ET]) R
currency of the Group entities such as United States BILEHE - NEBERE TINER
dollars (“US$”) and HK$. The Group currently does not g o NEE[E B BTN EBLINE R 5 -
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of BE KRB ESE] M HINEE IR
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Ko AREERYEE BINERE R
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely BREFERZREEREKRNZH
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency s 3 B o

exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 30 September 2020, if RMB had weakened 10%
against the HK$ with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have been
HK$2,782,000 (2019: HK$2,550,000) higher, arising
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange loss on non-
convertible bonds and other payables denominated in
HKS$, but partly offset by loan receivables denominated
in HK$. If RMB had strengthened 10% against HK$ with
all other variables held constant, consolidated loss after
tax for the year would have been HK$2,782,000 (2019:
HK$2,550,000) lower, arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange gain on non-convertible bonds and
other payables denominated in HK$, but partly offset by
loan receivables denominated in HKS.

At 30 September 2020, if RMB had weakened 10%
against the US$ with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have
been HK$541,000 (2019: HK$460,000) higher, arising
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange loss on non-
If RMB had
strengthened 10% against US$ with all other variables

convertible bonds denominated in USS$.

held constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year
would have been HK$541,000 (2019: HK$460,000) lower,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gain on
non-convertible bonds denominated in HK$.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 97%
(2019: 87%) of the total trade receivables were due from
the Group’s three (2019: two) largest customers as at
30 September 2020, of which 67% (2019: 47%) came
from the largest customers of the Group and all of the
customers are located in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”).

(i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
180 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 3 to 6 months past
due are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

6. HKEABRER &)

(b) EERR (&)

Trade receivables (Continued) () EUREZER(Z)
The Group measures loss allowances for trade AEBZRERNZHEHRE
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, EEHEZ%%%*EJEH&%
which is calculated using a provision matrix. R EEEE ENEA
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience ?ﬁé‘ﬁ%ﬁ@iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁhﬁézﬁ
does not indicate significantly different loss EERATZEEBBIL AR
patterns for different customer segments, the TRAEFPHSHBBETREKRTF
loss allowance based on past due status is not BEEX ERa ke 2
further distinguished between the Group’s different EEEETGNAREARR
customer bases. EPEM EE—FED -
The following table provides information about the TRIIWR=ZZE=ZZFFNA
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade = THAXSERERE SR
receivables as at 30 September 2020: NEGZEERBRRIEHRE
BEEEBZER :
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEER IRMEAE EiERE
% HK$’000 HK$’°000
% FHET FET
2020 —E-EE
Current (not past due) BNER (R HE) 4.29% 1,638 70
1 — 90 days past due #HI1 —90H 6.07% 94 6
91 - 180 days past due #HI91 —180H 6.07% - -
181 — 366 days past due #HI181—366H 15.47% 2,562 396
More than 366 days past due #8366 H 100.00% 3,952 3,952
8,246 4,424

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ %
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BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBEBRER 2
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EERK(£)
(i)  Trade receivables (Continued) () EREZKRZ (E)
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TE RS 1A X REARE E RS
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FAT FAT
2019 —E—hE
Current (not past due) BVER (R#H) 0.42% 7,247 31
1 — 90 days past due B HI1 —90H 0.42% 67 -
91 — 180 days past due #HI91 —180H 0.42% 2,819 12
More than 180 days past due #3188 #8180H 0.42% 1,158 5
11,291 48

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past three years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which
the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = 2R & i &= @ 5 [R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect

of trade receivables during the year/period is as

follows:

6.

MERRERE #)

(b) EERR (&)

() EKREZKRZ (E)

FHAEKRE SRR ZE

BREER

T

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE BZZE—NF
—B=-FF —A—B=E
hB=+H —E-hF
LEFE NA=+HHH
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHETT
At beginning of RE /B 7]
the year/period 48 —
Impairment losses F/HRERBEER
recognised for
the year/period 4,304 50
Disposal of discontinued % B 4 |F A& & ¥ 75
operations (note 46(b)) (Ff5¥46(b) ) (20) =
Exchange differences E N E58 92 2
At end of year/period RE,/HR 4,424 48

The loss allowance increased drastically in 2020
because of the increase in days past due over
1 year resulted in an increase in loss allowance
HK$4,304,000.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

T EEEBERNIEIL
m-REZ&HIFEIA LR
S N 8 B A 18 B E 1T 0
4,304,000 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuead)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Bond receivables, loan receivables and other

receivables

The Group transacts only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Bond receivables, loan
receivables and other receivables are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The credit quality of the financial assets included
in bond receivables, loan receivables and other
receivables is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED Iz BR & B%

6.

MERRERE #)

(b)

FERR (&)

(i)

SEERDF

BUES BREFREM
EWHE

AEEERAREREER
2B HRITRS K
8% - 8 I B R L R
HIET R AR R -

Bt ARKES BRER
REMBRRAZEBEE
TARBHAR Y EEHBE TS
MEEZEERRBMHEE
E%J\LX%EKVPBJE?JD HEER
BERHEERIERE] TR
CREEZEEIRRAR
[AI&E] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BIKRAKRERE &)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(b) EERR (&)

(ii) Bond receivables, loan receivables and other

(i) ERES BREFRAM

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

receivables (Continued)

The loss allowance account in respect of bond
receivables, loan receivables and other receivables
during the year/period is as follows:

WS E (E)

F/OHRAERES BRE
IR E e IR 2 B 1B B
EERmT

Loan Bond Other
receivables receivables receivables
ERER EWES HttERTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THAT FHET FHT
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—-NE—H—H - - -
Impairment losses recognised HARANAEER
for the period 7,138 177 -
Exchange differences fE N Z8 (135) - -
At 30 September 2019 RZF-AFNA=THK
and 1 October 2019 —Z-h&E+HA-R 7,003 177 -
Impairment losses recognised FARRNAEER
for the year 763 10,758 700
Disposal of discontinued operations Hi& 2 & |HE & ¥ 7
(note 46(p)) (P 5E46(0)) (2,921) < =
Reversals [ (3,860) = =
Exchange differences fE X Z 5 32 - -
At 30 September 2020 RZE-ZFNA=1H 1,017 10,935 700

The management of the Group assessed the risk of
default based on both quantitative and qualitative
information on hand after initial recognition. Based
on their assessment, there was a significant
increase in the loss allowance in bond receivables
because of the increase in default risk that certain
bond receivables have been overdue since maturity
as they have financial difficulty to repay or the
debtor has been under litigation process.

REEE R EER 5 ER
BREBEETEREMLEEHF
HEORR - ERKEEZF
- ARETERKESE
BAEAMBGNEHAEERE
5 A B H#E AR Fr M 281 58
B E AR R0 RUE S
B R B AR B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BA SR AR

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

(c)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBEBRER 2
Liquidity risk (c) H"BESER
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current AEBCHERTEHERERR
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it FEHRBESFR  URBERT
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity ErHeREENECSBEERE
requirements in the short and longer term. ZRBESHE K-
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEBCRABERESORMIE
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: RenedE8 2B OT :
Total
Less than Between Between Over undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
RER
PIME 1-26 2-5% 5 F BERBAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THEx THx TER TER TR
At 30 September 2020 R-ZZB-EERA=1H
Trade and other payables EHESREMERR 41,209 - - - 41,209
Lease liabilities HEERE 1,203 415 - - 1,618
Due to related parties JER B 3R 2,254 - - - 2,254
Due to directors ENEEFE 3,969 - - - 3,969
Non-convertible bonds Ta#RES 57,146 3,160 - - 60,306
Due to non-controlling ER—EHBAREERRER
shareholders of a subsidiary EB@B A 2B
and its related parties - 40,686 - - 40,686
Bank borrowings BITEE 9,385 5,382 8,114 - 22,881
115,166 49,643 8,114 - 172,923

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE

(c)

(d)

“EFAR=+THIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2020

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBEBRER 2
Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) wBELRAK (Z)
Total
Less than Between Between Over  undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
KRB
P 126 2-5% 5800 F HERERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT FET ThAT
At 30 September 2019 RZB-hERA=1A
Trade and other payables ERESREMER 47,653 - - = 47,653
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,837 546 - - 3,383
Due to a related company JER—RE%ARRE 554 - - - 554
Due to directors T REEHHE 347 - - - 347
Non-convertible bonds MakES 33,502 3,180 - - 36,682
Due to non-controling T*FWT% AFERRE R
shareholders of a subsidiary EHE A 2B
and its related parties 45,567 - 45,567
Bank borrowings RITEE 3,541 4,441 13,067 - 21,049
Convertible bond designated RERATEABREZ THRRES
at FVTPL 21,372 - - - 21,372
109,806 53,734 13,067 - 176,607
Interest rate risk (d) FIE@K
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly AEEZRERENXRBREE

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

concentrated on the fluctuation of benchmark interest

rate of the People’s Bank of China arising from the

Group’s borrowing denominated in RMB.

Other than bank borrowing mentioned above, the Group’s

loan and bond receivables, non-convertible bonds and

other borrowings bear interest at fixed interest rate and

therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

The Directors consider the Group’s exposure to interest

rate risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity

analysis has been prepared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. BIKRAKRERE &)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 30 September (e) R-ZE-EFHAA=tHZEH
2020 ITESHE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TATT
Financial assets: SEEE:
Financial assets measured BEBHENATEZEHEE
at amortised cost 30,526 38,812
Financial liabilities: SRAaE:
Financial liabilities RBHEKAIEREzeMAE
at amortised cost 167,370 144,757
Convertible bond BERAFBEFABERZZ
designated at FVTPL AR E = 19,771
(f) Fair values fH 2FE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets BEMBRARMRB 2 AEH
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated cREEMEMBECREEHR
statement of financial position approximate their BESAZRAFEEES -

respective fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Group can access at
the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

AV EHE

RFERMSELEENAERNETZ
BFRXHTFHEBEMBREREAE
2B -UTRFEAERER
AZRAFEER #tEAFEZMEE
iR ABES R =AFR:

F—RBA AEERFTERHAIRSE
2R HRAEEXABRE
BhiEzRE (REH

) -

F_RBA BELRBEUERAHEE
2R BRZ2BABE % —
RBIEZ BRI

F=RBA BELABZTUBRR
2z ABUE -

AEE 2 BRASERBEREHIGN
BEHEYZER AL ZEF=AFR
ZIEFRBARER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy:

7.

NFETE (&)
(a) AVFEERRE:

Fair value measurements
using level 3

ERE=RzAFEFE

2020 2019
—EZRF —ZET-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Recurring fair value BREMAFETE:
measurements:
Financial liabilities A =R
Convertible bond designated EEBRAFEFABEZ
at FVTPL AR E 75 = 19,771

Reconciliation of liabilities measured at fair value
based on level 3:

(b) BREF="RRLAFLEFEZER
HER

Convertible bond designated

at FVTPL
EERAFEFAERZZ
GE:Y 3¢
2020 2019
—E-FF —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET
At beginning of year/period R, ERF) 19,771 24,186
Total losses or (gains) RERERZEEN
recognised in profit or loss* (W) sazge 399 (3,940)
Settled by issuance of non- I HARS B R BT
convertible bond upon maturity RNA[IEREHEE (20,000) =
Exchange differences N =5 (170) (475)
At end of year/period RE/HR - 19,771
# The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss at end i G BARNERER KRk

of reporting period are presented in the face (2019: face)
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

BRAEENGEEANEMEE
WaHXPEREEZS (ZE-N
FREEBELY)) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair
value measurements at 30 September 2020:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the financial controller and the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

For Level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts with
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial liabilities are determined, in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and input used.

Level 3 fair value measurements

Unobservable

7.

NFETE (&)

(c)

R-—E-BEAA=+A *E£H
EREERFRANAFE
BYGERTRGANBRE:

AEEMBRERBENBREN
FTEENRBBEZAFEFE B85
FZBRAFEFE MHREEER
MEEFERZELTFEFE Y
GRERESEFELRMGEE
B R AERETMIRT W

RE=ZMAFEAEMS  A5H
BRERFARERAICEXE
REIHER I BEEERE
IfhE - TREI 2ER BRI
MEETZETRABZATE L
HZ - FrERZ A ERMkE AR
e

E=RAFEFTE

Effect on fair value

Description Valuation technique inputs Range for increase of inputs Fair value of liabilities
BARBEM
it fh B i TTBEBARE #E HATENTE ATE

2020 2019
ZBZBf  T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT
Convertible bond designated  Trinomial Option Pricing Model Stock price volatility 39.47% Increase - 19,771

at FVTPL
BERAFEFARELZ
AR A

ZRARERERR B ERE

#10
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products or service line for the year/period from

continuing operations is as follows:

B

i

W 28

s

z

BE/HARBHBECEEB I EE
mEARBRERAEFE N 2 RS D
LIRNE

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE BE-ZT—NF
—E-EF —H—B=%
hB=+8 —E-NF
IEFE NA=+HEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T &
(Re-presented)
(&g&:75)
Revenue from contracts with ERMBHREER L1555 EE
customers within the scope of ARBEFEHZKE
HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products or &2 E B E R REZE D
service lines
— Sales of natural gas —HEXAR 37,438 29,833
- Rendering of services —RHER 2,966 2,353
40,404 32,186
Revenue from other sources H R R 2 Wi
— Leasing income —HEWA 2,330 3,739
42,734 35,925

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and
services over time and at a point in time in the following major

product lines and geographical regions:

8.

Wz =)

gD (&)

AREBE AT T BE AR N R BE
KRB R EEEm MR ES

Sales of Pipeline installation Provision of technology Independent financial
natural gas services support services advisory Total
HEXRE BERERE REKHRERE BUNBER a3

Period from Period from Period from Period from Period from

1 January 1 January 1 January 1 January 1 January

Year ended 201910 Year ended 201910 Year ended 201910 Year ended 201910 Year ended 201910

30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

#2 5-T-0F B2 E-ENF B2 5-T-0F% B2 E-ENF B2 5-%-NF

ut Jut 22 —A-RE =t =t 23 -A-RE mt Jat 23 —A-HE =t St 22 -A-HE =t dud 23 —A-HE

hBZ1R =t K3 hAZ+R Z2-hE RAZtR = k3 hAZ+R —E-hE RAZ1R = k3

LEE AA=tEHH LFE AAZTREM LEE AA=+EEH LEE AA=TREH LEE AA=+EER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

TiEn TEn TiEn TiEn TiEn T TiEn TiEn TiEn T

(Re-presented)

(&85))
Primary geographical markets TEHETH

- The PRC except Hong Kong -$8 (FaEER) 37,438 29,833 563 1,090 1,904 1,263 - = 39,905 32,186

- Hong Kong -&# - - - - - - 499 - 499 -

Revenue from external customers RENPRE 2l 37,438 29,833 563 1,000 1,904 1,263 499 - 40,404 32,186
Timing of revenue recognition hEBREE

Products transferred at a point in time RERREBZER 157 738 563 1,090 - = 499 = 1,219 1,828

Products and services transferred over time B8 % 2 ER R BH 37,281 29,095 - - 1,904 1,263 - - 39,185 30,358

Total it 37,438 29633 563 1,090 1,004 1263 499 - 40404 32,186

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HMWA
Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
Bz BT —NF
—ECEH =F=E=
hA=+H —ZET-NEF
IEFE NA=+HHMH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
(Re-presented)
(g&E5)
Continuing operations BEKEER

Bank interest income H|ITH B WA 1 2
Interest income from bond receivables & U & % 2 F B U A 968 863

Interest income from loan to third RETE=ZFERZFBEEA
parties 2,419 1,429
Net exchange gain M 5 Uk 555 58 - 3,624
Government grants (note) AT e AL (P RE) 512 =
Others EAb 39 281
3,939 6,199

Note: Government grants mainly comprised the first tranche of financial
support provided to the Group under the Employment Support
Scheme, for retaining employees who may otherwise be made

redundant in Hong Kong.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = 2R & i &= @ 5 [R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Htt = KR8
Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
HZE BT —NEF
—ECEH = S =
hA=+H —ZE-NEF
LFE NA=1+BHME
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
(Re-presented)
(g£E5))
Continuing operations FREREER
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EM BRI
(note 46(c)) (Kt3E46(c)) 1,576 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWME - HWE KEH S
plant and equipment 4 =
Loss on written off of property, WEEME  BE K& EEE
plant and equipment (16) —
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets 1 [ 1 & 2 Rl (B &5 18
(note 24(a)) (MF7E24(a)) (887) (117)
Others Hith 150 -
827 (117)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_Z-_ZFAA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2020

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three (period from 1 January 2019 to 30
September 2019: two) operating segments as follows:

Natural gas operations - including investment in natural gas
projects, sales of natural gas,
natural gas cooking appliance
and accessories and pipeline
installation

Leasing business — including services rendered
from leasing of steel support
axial force servo system and
technology support

Independent financial — including services rendered from
advisory independent financial advisory
and insurance brokerage

business

Two operating segments (trading of copper and trading
of petrochemicals) were discontinued in current year. The
segment information reported does not include any amounts
for these discontinued operations, which are described in more
detail in note 18.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

11.

7 EBEHR
AEEZ=A(E-F—hF—A—H
E-F-AFAAZ+EHR: WE)E
A EMT -

RAREYE — PREEREXARE
B HERAR
RKARKAR @
HAREER

HEXH - EEREEHE
& A BR & A &
T TR 2
AR %5

BYMBER — BEREHBIMY
B R A5 Mo fR B

RAEE MELEHIM(EERANME
BEOLEMR)KILERE - RENDHLER
T HAERZFCRIELEEGNEIMNE
B EEFBHNKEI8 -

AEE2AIRED B RRETFERR
R REMEEFEL - ANEXEHF
BT RBAM R IG5 ERE WG
BB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 11. 2 ER (&)

144

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include amounts
for discontinued operations, unallocated corporate expenses,
certain other income, finance cost and income tax. Segment
assets do not include assets of discontinued operations or held
for sales, bank and cash balances and unallocated assets.
Segment liabilities do not include liabilities of discontinued
operations, convertible bond designated at FVTPL, non-
convertible bonds, some other borrowings and unallocated
liabilities. Segment non-current assets do not include deposits
for acquisitions.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as
if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current
market prices.

REDF < @t IR BEEM B REM
FEARTRI EFRE - 2 & E A KB E Y T
BRERIEREXH 2R Kokd
ERX B TEMYA BB R
BHR-DHEELTEECRIELEE
BAFIELENEE RITRBESER
RARDEEE - DHEBRYLFIEREEK
EREXBEE HERAFEFAR
m A BRES THRRES BT
HMEERARDERE DEHIERBDE
EXTEBRKREZTEZIRE

AEBEKG D EBEHEREEK BN
ZEHEXERERAF =T (ARBRKH
B)fEde
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

11. 2 ER (&)

Information about operating segment profit or loss, (a) ERAREBELEER2LEST
assets and liabilities from continuing operations: EAREE - BEEREBBEZER:
Independent
Natural gas Leasing financial
operations business advisory Total
RRARER HEER BYMKER @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TER TER TET
Year ended BE-_Z-E5hB=1H
30 September 2020 tEE
Revenue from external REMDEP 2 W5
customers 38,001 4,234 499 42,734
Segment loss S HEE (257,072) (2,539) (2,857) (262,468)
Interest revenue 8 Mz - 1 - 1
Interest expense FIEHEX (3,210) - - (3,210)
Depreciation and amortisation 47 Jz # 4 (20,199) (1,086) - (21,285)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 1% B E & E K% 4 - - 4
Net foreign exchange loss ERERTEE 1) - = (41)
Income tax credit EHER 28,348 - 1 28,349
Other material HtEANEREER
non-cash items:
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREESR - - (1,958) (1,958)
Impairment loss on property, Y% BERXEREESSE
plant and equipment (132,902) - - (132,902)
Impairment loss on intangible & B EREFE
assets (106,934) - - (106,934)
Allowance for trade receivables &K Z 5 8 5 & (6) (4,297) 1) (4,304)
Allowance for other receivables X & 4t 78 & 4 (8) - - 8)
Additions to segment RENBIERDEE
non-current assets 635 4,612 - 5,247
As at 30 September 2020 R-BE-ZEFhA=1H
Segment assets DEEE 176,382 20,108 616 197,106
Segment liabilities SBERE (119,808) (6,095) (710) (126,613)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

11. 2 ER (&)

Information about operating segment profit or loss, (a) ERAREBELCEER2LEST
assets and liabilities from continuing operations: EAREE - BEEREBBEZER:
(Continued) (&)
Natural gas Leasing
operations business Total
AARER MEE£H @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETL FEL FAT
(Re-presented)
(&=51)
Period from 1 January 2019 to BE-Z-N§5-f-HZ
30 September 2019 “E-RAEAA=TRHER
Revenue from external customers RENMDEL 2 Wi 30,923 5,002 35,925
Segment (loss)/profit AB(BR)/EH (53,965) 3,390 (50,575)
Interest revenue kAl 1 1 2
Interest expense FERX (4,597) = (4,597)
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH (17,396) (587) (17,983)
Net foreign exchange gain B 5 W 5 138 = 138
Income tax credit FEHES 5,000 - 5,000
Other material non-cash items: HthEXFREEE -
Impairment loss on goodwil HERBEER (4,207) = (4,207)
Impairment loss on property, ¥ BERSEBERESE
plant and equipment (18,127) - (18,127)
Impairment loss on intangible assets BRAEREEE (14,287) = (14,287)
Allowance for trade receivables EWE FETAE o (29) (29)
Additions to segment non-current assets RENBERBEE 4,425 410 4,835
As at 30 September 2019 RZB-hERAZTH
Segment assets PHEE 421,901 17,981 439,832
Segment liabilties Tyt (146,245) (1,343) (147,588)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

(b)

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 7 EBE R (2)
Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or REFELEEL 25 Bk EE
loss from continuing operations: BEEYER:
Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE BE-_ZT—hF
—ECEF —A—H=%
hA=+8 —ZE-NEF
IEEE NA=+BHME
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
(Re-presented)
(&)
Revenue U &5
Consolidated revenue from REABBEEEBZEREARE
continuing operations 42,734 35,925
Profit or loss B
Total profit or loss of AR5 E0 s ok s R B 5R
reportable segments (262,468) (50,575)
Unallocated amounts: ROBL SR :
General and —MRITEEZ
administrative expenses (24,130) (16,031)
Impairment loss on EREEREEE
intangible assets - (770)
Reversals of allowance/ FEWEREERED
(allowance) for (#E)
loan receivables 3,097 (4,115)
Allowance for FEWE H B
bond receivables (10,758) (77)
Allowance for H b SR IE B
other receivables (692) -
Finance costs 5 75 A AN (5,230) (3,587)
Other income H fth g A 3,845 6,352
Other gains and losses H b Y zm K 518 1,568 -
(Loss)/gain on fair value EERATEFABRZ
change on convertible bond AMRES 2 A FEZE
designated at FVTPL (E18) e (399) 3,940
Consolidated loss before tax REFELEEES ZGRBA
from continuing operations A EE (295,167) (64,963)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 11.

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or

loss from continuing operations: (Continued)

DEER (&)

(b) REFELEXB 2o BWEE

BEHER: (&)

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE B-Z—NF
—ECEF = JF 7 [ELES
hA=+8 —E-hE
LEE NA=+BHM
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
(Re-presented)
(s&E5)
Reconciliations of segment 2SI EEHEBBEYER:
assets and liabilities:
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable AREDHBREE
segments 197,106 439,832
Assets relating to BRI EER 2 EE
discontinued operations - 13,428
Assets held for sales BIELEEE - 221
Unallocated RKOER 28,562 39,340
Consolidated total assets REBEE 225,668 495,321
Liabilities aE
Total liabilities of reportable AREDHBREE
segments 126,613 147,588
Liabilities relating to discontinued BB & LXK 2 BE
operations - 6,286
Unallocated AOE 65,308 63,664
Consolidated total liabilities mEBEE 191,921 217,538
Geographical information HhEEH

All of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by

location of customers or by location of assets are within

the PRC, including Hong Kong.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

Revenue from major customers:

An analysis of revenue from major customers which
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is

11.

DEE R (&)
(c) REXTEEFEFZWE:

REEFBRFEZWZE (EREE W
#=10% A ) 25T

as follows:
Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE B-Z—NF
—E-EF —A—B=%
hA=+8H —ZE-NEF
FFE A=+ HHMHA
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
(Re-presented)
(KeE5))
Customer A ZPA 9,029 8,504
Customer B ®FB 8,164 6,693
Customer C 2EC 5,185 -
Customer D EFD - 4,833

Each of the major customers represents a single external
customer whose transaction is generated from natural
gas operations segment (period from 1 January 2019 to
30 September 2019: natural gas operations and leasing
business segment).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

12. FINANCE COSTS

12. BF R A

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
Bz BE-Z—NF
—EB-EF —B—B8=%
AB=+A —NE
EFE NA=1+HHM
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHT
(Re-presented)
(g&E5)
Continuing operations FREREER
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF A 1,450 1,176
Imputed interest on loans from 3H’§ B BB N KB 5 et 2
non-controlling shareholders BEEF B
and its related parties 1,760 3,421
Interest on convertible bond BEZAFEFABRZ
designated at FVTPL MR ESZFE 1,348 1,497
Interest on non-convertible bonds AR ES 2 F B 3,681 1,881
Interest on lease liabilities HERBZHE 201 209
8,440 8,184
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

13. INCOME TAX CREDIT 13. FTEHE R

Income tax relating to continuing operations has been
recognised in profit or loss as following:

ERESTRAZBERFALLERH 2
FrEmiaT:

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
HZE BE-E—NF
—EC-EH —H—HZE
hB=+8 —E-NF
LEFEE NA=1+TBHHME
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Current tax — Hong Kong BVEATIE — B
Over-provision in prior years MEFEHBERE (1) -
Deferred tax (note 41) BERIA (FEE41) (28,348) (5,000)
(28,349) (5,000)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
Samoa, Seychelles and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the
Group is not subject to any income tax in these regions.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)
and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (period from 1 January 2019 to 30
September 2019: 25%). The tax rate of Hong Kong Profits Tax
in respect of Hong Kong subsidiaries is 16.5% (period from 1
January 2019 to 30 September 2019: 16.5%).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since
the Group has no assessable profit for the year ended
30 September 2020 (period from 1 January 2019 to 30
September 2019: Nil).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

RENSNS EED ESBREE
ERES ((HBELHS])HARE
31 AR B RS E BRI (I
B hie

BEPECEMREH ([DEMRER])
ERTEMSHEAERMA - FEWE
NAMBE /2% (AT —NF— A
—HBEZZT-NAFAA=1+HHM:
25%) - BB BEWBRARNEBFE
M ER165%(BE=FE—NF—A
—HBEZZT-NAFAA=1+HHM:
16.5% ) °

HRARERBEZE_Z_TFNA=T
BLEFEYEERBFEN (BTN
F-—HA—BE_Z-NFNAA=+EH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

13. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as

follows:

13. FIBHIER (&)

PIEHE e BRHAEBRRATEEE
PRSI 2B ZHERMT

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE B-Z—N%F
—E_EE A=
hB=+H —E-hF
LEFE NA=Z1+HHM
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
(Re-presented)
(J&E75)
Loss before tax from REFEEEEBZ
continuing operations BRELRIEE (295,167) (64,963)
Tax credit at PRC EIT rate of 25% B BB EEHRE25%
(2019: 25%) ZE-NF:25%)2
HIEHE R (73,792) (16,241)
Tax effect of expenses that are not TR B2 E
deductible 9,213 7,829
Tax effect of income not taxable RRBA T FHE (880) (1,333)
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary &R IBEE X
differences not recognised TRMEBo g s 33,052 3,581
Utilisation of tax losses not previously Eh F %t Al ok #E 52 2 T 78 /&5 18
recognised (344) -
Effect of different tax rates of REA AR L&
subsidiaries operating in MEARZ
other jurisdictions TR Kz 2 4,403 1,164
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEHERE (1) =
Income tax credit for the year/period F " HIRNBRAFEKEEL 2
relating to continuing operations s i e (28,349) (5,000)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

14. REZEKEER2E HRA
&ia

14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

AEEREFELCEEBZF /HAE

The Group’s loss for the year/period from continuing operations

is stated after charging/(crediting) the followings:

BTN, (FEA) AT EIHETIER :

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZ BE-_Z—NF
—TE-EHF —HA—HB%
hA=+8 —ZET-NEF
IEFE NA=+HHH
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT FHET
(Re-presented)
(g&E5)
Amortisation of intangible assets mREESRE GTAHER
(included in selling and D EEKA)
distribution costs) 6,458 5,711
Other receivables written off L th JRE SRR TE i 3R - 10
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 256 37
— Audit service —F %R
- Current — BN HA 1,000 1,100
— Under-provision in —BAFHABETR
prior year/period - 105
— Other services — H fth AR 75 442 282
1,442 1,487
Cost of inventories sold BEERFEAR 27,350 22,849
Depreciation of property, M- -WERZEITE
plant and equipment 16,010 13,526
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE (FA—MK
(included in general and TEEZ )
administrative expenses) 2,928 1,922
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - HWE KE#H S
plant and equipment (4) -
Loss on written off of property, WMEWE BE REEEE
plant and equipment 16 =
Impairment loss on goodwill mEREEE (GTA—KEK
(included in general and TR H)
administrative expenses) 1,958 4,207
Net exchange loss/(gain) BN &R, (W) FE 3,627 (3,243)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

15. EEEABEX

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE B-Z—-N%F
—EZEF = =l
hBA=+H —ZE-NEF
LEE A=t AHR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
(Re-presented)
(g£E5))
Continuing operations FREREER
Employee benefits expense EERMNAX (BREEEHM)
(including directors’ emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e TE4 K ERL 8,895 5,491
Retirement benefit scheme RRAE N ET Bl 5Kk
contributions 363 302
9,258 5,793
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 15.

None of the Directors (period from 1 January 2019 to
30 September 2019: Nil) included in the five highest paid
individuals in the Group during the year. The emoluments of the
five (period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019: five)
individuals during the year/period are as follows:

EBEERBABEX (&)

FAREELEHERTMALTBES
Z(BZE—NF—-—A—HE=-Z—
FALA=+EHM - ZR)EF-F 1
NAER(BEZE—NWF—A—HEZZE
—NENRA=ZTHHAE: AE) AT 2B
SWT:

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
B2 4-TNF
—E_EE /A =FE=
hB=+H —E-hF
LtFEE NA=1+HHM
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
(Re-presented)
(f&&751)
Salaries, allowances and e RMREYWEF
benefits in kind 2,151 1,260
Retirement benefit scheme contribution iR k43 F| 51 21 4 5% 90 50
2,241 1,310

Number of individuals

AE
Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
B=E B-ZZT—h4F
—E-EHF —H—B=%
hWA=1+H —ZT-NEF
LtFEE NA=+HHMHE
The emoluments fell within FrENRL R AT (&
the following bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 5 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)

During the year/period, no amount was paid or payable by the

Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals

set out below as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office.

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each director is set out below:

15. EEEABEX (#)

FHA - AN 5 B AR S A S BN R IE

FTTIXAHEEELTSE

REHFMALH

MER—RAL ERRIIEFMAK
RINAA SR B B 2 228 - S E R B B B

ZHfE-

16. EE 2B AN R F =

(a) EEMS

BEEFZMEHIOT

For the year ended 30 September 2020

HE-R-RERACTALEE

Retirement
Salaries and  benefit scheme  Total directors’
Fees other benefits contributions emoluments
Be HEREMER BRABANGEER ExpenE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Name of director =g TER THERT THERT TAER
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Wu Guoming REBEE - 120 6 126
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting (note (a))  Fin S %4 (M) - 76 4 80
Mr. Li Wentao (note (b)) FORLEAE (M) - 35 2 37
Mr. Duan Fanfan (note (c)) BAMEAE (H3() - 108 6 114
Mr. Wang Wenzhou (note (d)) EFXA%E (M) - 331 13 344
Independent non-executive BUFHITES
directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin RN EE 120 - - 120
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun BREBLAE 120 - - 120
Ms. Huang Yu Jun BERELL 120 - - 120
Total BEr 360 670 31 1,061
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 16. EE /AR FZ (&)

DIRECTORS (continuead)

ExME (&)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a)

For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019
B-E-hE-A-BE-ZE-hEAA=1+BHH

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme Total directors’
Fees other benefits contributions emoluments
e HeREMEN RIKEAGEEK Exiens
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Name of director ERiN THAT AL AT AT
Executive directors ITEE
Mr. Long Wenming (note (g)) BEXH LA (M5 E) - 89 - 89
Mr. Chen Hualiang (note () BRE R A& (IREE) - 57 = 57
Mr. Han Leiping (note (g)) BERETEE (HiFQ) - 86 - 86
Mr. Wu Guoming REBEE - 90 95
Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting RimFEE - 180 189
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin RENELE 90 - - 9
Ms. Kwan Sin Yee (note (h)) BB Rt (Msh) 57 - - 57
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun BREBLAE 90 - - 9
Ms. Huang Yu Jun EXENL 90 - - 90
Total et 327 502 14 843
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continuead)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Mr. Cheung Tuen Ting resigned on 24 January 2020.

Mr. Li Wentao was appointed on 11 October 2019 and
resigned on 24 January 2020.

Mr. Duan Fanfan was appointed on 8 November 2019.

Mr. Wang Wenzhou was appointed on 24 January 2020.

Mr. Long Wenming resigned on 27 September 2019.

Mr. Chen Hualiang retired on 21 June 2019.

Mr. Han Leiping resigned on 20 September 2019.

Ms. Kwan Siu Yee retired on 21 June 2019.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no payment of the performance related
incentive payments for both year/period.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the chief executive nor
any of the directors waived any emoluments during the
year ended 30 September 2020 (period from 1 January
2019 to 30 September 2019: Nil).

16. EECR/AIRAZ (&)

(a) EE=Me (£)

GEX

(@)

()

EHERER-FTBF— A
Z+mBA#E-

EVEEER-_S—NETA
+—BEEEERR T _TE—
A-+mB#E-

BANEER=T—hE+—A
NEEZRE-

EFXRAERER=ZZT_ZTF—A
ZtmBEERE-

ENBHEER-_T—NENA
—t+tHEE-

BREREAER T —NENA
—+—HEF-

BEEEER-_T—NENA
—t+BEfTE-

BAERETR _ZE—NEXA
Z+—HEF-

EXFRRRTESEZME T EE
HEREHARBRASEER
EHEEZ R -

EXMRBIFRTESEZHE
DEBHBREER/ARAES
Z MR

L R (B4 AR e A 6
REMBES-

BREXHEREN RBEE=-F=
TENA=ZTBHLFERERS
T B sk E {1 & 5 i E 1T {7 B
® (BZT—NF—HA—HE=Z
—AWENLA=+BEHH:E)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 16. EECR/AKRFZE (&)

DIRECTORS (continuead)

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for those disclosed in note 51 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year/period or at any time
during the year/period.

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group enrolled all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a
mandatory provident fund (the “MPF”) scheme. The retirement
benefit cost for the MPF scheme charged to profit or loss
represents contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

During the year ended 30 September 2020, retirement
benefit scheme contributions paid from continuing operations
amounted to approximately HK$363,000 (period from 1
January 2019 to 30 September 2019: HK$302,000).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

(b) EZERXZ ZREIRESNTERZ
EXER

SRERAM B HRRMESIFTINES
o BLERNE S BRRF S HIRE
] B B 77 8 < Rt AN R BIHERR]
MARARREEREFTZHEE
ATREPEERBEREBEK
BEZARASEEB IERAR
5 RHRENEE-

17. RRBREFE

AEBRZINEELZMECEREES
s AES ([8ES]) T8 - 8iE
Tat &l Z BRIRBAAA - BTN B 1258
BeAtERRMEELRZH T - ER
Bas R o

FEMEARZEERTEBNARIL
BREERAKBRFEZAE - AEE
AR —EBAOHLNEE TERZERKE
MEBIHF UnEiBNEe A%
BEBZERKEMNFB 2HE—BERR
EaETElE B EHR -

HE_T-_TFNA=THILFE B
FRE S T AT B R IKAE A ET B4
KK A363,0008 L (B2 —NF—
A—REZT-NFALA=THHM:
302,000/ 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

18.

On 29 September 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose its subsidiaries engaging in trading of copper and
petrochemicals. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed
of, and the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal, are

ERIEEEER

RZFE_ZEFNA-TAA XEEH
—HBUYE=NAVEEHHRALER
HEEERMACERNHBEAR B
HEBERABZHBARKERRZ
SHE AR E46(0) B B o

disclosed in note 46(b).

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE BT hF
—E-EF —HF—B=%
hA=+H —T-NE
IEFEE NA=+AHHEMH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss for the year/period from REDRIEREER 2
discontinued operations: FEANEE:
Revenue Wz - 295,070
Cost of sales $H & B AR = (294,402)
Gross profit EH - 668
Other income H U A 2 382
Other losses H th #5418 (553) (94)
General and administrative expenses  —#& M 1T 2 (878) (1,573)
Allowance for trade receivables EUWE 5 R B E - (21)
Allowance for loan receivables JEURE SR - (3,023)
Finance costs B 7S R AR (6) (19
Loss before tax G000 R (1,435) (3,680)
Income tax expense T8 FiF X (4,869) (19
(6,304) (3,699)
Loss on disposal of operations HEEB 2 EE (M:E46())
(note 46(b)) (1,041) -
Loss for the year/period from REBRIECEER 2
discontinued operations & HRER (7,345) (3,699)
Loss for the year/period from LTHIBEEGRBEKIE
discontinued operations KEEBZF HRNES:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company IN/NETE7F SN (7,334) (3,696)
Non-controlling interests I 12 AR A 2 (11) (3)
(7,345) (3,699)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

18. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continuea) 18. ERIEREXEK &)
Loss for the year/period from discontinued operations include REBRIEKEEB2F /HANEES
the following: FEUATEIE:
Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZ BE-T—NF
—EEF —HF—B=%
hB=+8 —E-hF
IEFEE NA=+HHEMH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F& T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKAK - 294,402
Depreciation on property, ME - -REREZHITE
plant and equipment 8 4
Depreciation on right-of-use assets  ff A#EEERE 156 152
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 8K A 5 BN
— Under-provision in prior year/period —@EF " HARNBEETE - 10
Employee benefits expense: EERAMX:
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e O KRR 453 405
Retirement benefit scheme ROKAE N T B 50
contributions 20 28
473 433
Net exchange loss/(gain) EHEE (ki) FHE 94 (381)
Cash flows from discontinued ERIEREEB I RERE
operations:
Net cash (outflows)/inflows EFEHRS Ofd) RmA
from operating activities F R (359) 468
Net cash outflows from REEEIR S ML FE
investing activities (29) (23)
Net cash outflows from RLEEEIN ML FE
financing activities (163) (169)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be (R /RAFEE (551) 276
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

19. DIVIDENDS
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend

for the year ended 30 September 2020 (period from 1 January
2019 to 30 September 2019: Nil).

20. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the following:

19. B2

EETEBRUBE_T_TEFNA=T
AIEERRNEMRS (B2F—N%F
—A—BE-_F-NFALA=+THH

) -

20. SREE

>

a2

BREXREEBRRBEAT S HE
g

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZ BE-_Z—NF
—E_EE —HA—B=z
hWB=+H —E-hF
IEFE NA=Z1+HHM
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Re-presented)
(#&E75)
Loss from continuing and REBERDRLEREXEK Y
discontinued operations B8
Loss for the purpose of REAEREFEREKIE
calculating basic loss KEEB 2 BRER
per share from continuing EE S < K518
and discontinued operations (101,836) (31,585)
Effect of fair value change on BEZAFEFAEBRZ
convertible bond designated AR ESATEEZS
at FVTPL Za 399 (3,940)
Effect of interest on convertible bond 8 EZ A FEFAERZZ
designated at FVTPL BmRELRFNEZFE 1,348 1,497
Loss for the purpose of calculating REAEREFEREKILE
diluted loss per share from continuing 4% & ¥ 7§ 2 G IS
and discontinued operations EEmE 28 (100,089) (34,028)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

20. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

20. B EE (#)

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
Bz BT —NF
—EB-EF —HF—B=%
hA=+H —ZET-NEF
EFE NA=1+HHM
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHT
(Re-presented)
(g&E5)
Loss from continuing operations REZFELLEKZEHR
Loss for the purpose of calculating A EREBBELEEBZ
basic loss per share from BREAXRBEMN S 2EE
continuing operations (94,502) (27,889)
Effect of fair value change on BEZEAFEFAEBERZ
convertible bond designated ABmBEEFAFEES
at FVTPL TE 399 (3,940)
Effect of interest on convertible bond 18 E LA FEFAEBZZ
designated at FVTPL TMmBREARNEZTE 1,348 1,497
Loss for the purpose of calculating MATEREFELCEER 2
diluted loss per share from BREEEENE BB
continuing operations (92,755) (30,332)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

20. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 20. BREE (2)

Period from

1 January

Year ended 2019 to

30 September 30 September

2020 2019

BZE BZZT—hF

—E-SH —=Ie B 25

hB=+8 —T-NF

LEFE NA=+HHH

’000 000

TR F A%

(Re-presented)

Number of shares %17 8 B (J&E75)
Weighted average number of ordinary it EESREAREEMS 2

shares for the purpose of calculating & i I JnE F 159 ¢

basic loss per share 77,142 65,172
Effect of deemed conversion of REEERIEERAFEFTA
convertible bond designated at Bamz A mREsFz &

FVTPL 1,255 1,852
Weighted average number of ordinary izt EE&REEEIEM S 2

shares for the purpose of calculating & 8 I% Jn4E S 15 1
diluted loss per share 78,397 67,024

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted loss per share for both periods
presented have been adjusted for the share consolidation
mentioned in note 42(c). Basic and diluted loss per share for
the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 has
been re-presented.

SLat E P2 51 /(8 2 S A B R N 58
BRI E 2 & BN F e s
420)frit z ikt A pHEL R -5 - F
—NWE—RA—BEZT—-AFhA=+
AMEZEREARBEEREES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZT

20.

LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
30 September 2020 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options and conversion of
convertible bond, as these would result in the decrease in the
loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the period from
1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options, as this
would result in the decrease in the loss per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic and diluted loss per share from the discontinued
operations is HK9.51 cents per share (period from 1 January
2019 to 30 September 2019: basic and diluted loss per share
was HK5.67 cents per share), based on the loss for the year
from discontinued operations attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$7,334,000 (period from 1
January 2019 to 30 September 2019: HK$3,696,000) and the
denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted loss per share.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

20. B EE (#)

BE_FT_TFNA=THLFEZE
BEEERAEY NMRETEAR A

RITEBBRERFRIBRRES  REA
RS EHERERRD -

ﬂ:+5%@2ﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ$
REATERRBMARITHEERE RA
AHEBEHEREEBRD -

ERIEREXH

BERNAREREARGREB R IELE
¥ 2 FNEBE 7,334,000 T (B

—hE—A—BE-_Z—-AFhA
=+ B Efd : 3,696,000/8 7T ) & FT B &)
SR F R ERER R EEEE
Al - REERIEKEEB 2 BREARRK
BEEBASRISIBIW(BE=ZZE—N
F—A—BE-_ZT—AFAA=T+AH
M SREAREEEBATRS.67E
fili) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

21. ¥ - BERRKRE

Computer Furniture Plant
system and and Leasehold Motor  Pipeline and and  Construction
Buildings equipment fixtures improvements vehicles equipment machinery  in progress Total
ERARR
[ & #F  GRRRE BERE RE  EERARKE HERES ERIR a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAL TAL Thx TETL Thx TEL ThL TEL
(note (a)) (note (b))
(GEL) (K5 (0))
Cost [
At 1 January 2019 W=E-NE-A-H 9,642 475 1,341 1,53 7418 274,799 7197 - 302,125
Additions RE - 170 133 1,056 - 3,528 410 885 6,182
Transferred to assets classified BEZESBABENERE

as held for sale (note 32) (Ht3Es2) (2,904) - - (102) (5,900) - - - (8,906)
Exchange differences ExzE (259) 1) 3) (33) (15) (7,541) 012) (39) (8,136)
At 30 September 2019 E-AFAAZTAR

and 1 October 2019 “F-NEtA-8 6,479 644 1,438 2,174 1,503 270,786 7,3% 846 291,265
Additions wE = 33 - - - 83 4,612 552 5,280
Disposals HeE - - - - (902) o = = 902)
Written off bk - - - (25) - - - = (25)
Transferred from assets BRENFARELERE

classified as held for sale (Hi3k32)

(note 32) 2,330 - - 24 393 - - - 2,747
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - 25) - (393) - - - 418)
Exchange differences EXEE 263 - 42 36 1) 8,897 342 40 9,619
At 30 September 2020 RZE-FFNA=1R 9,072 652 1,480 2,209 600 279,766 12,349 1,438 307,566
Accumulated depreciation 3 HTERHE

and impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H 1,062 366 648 291 5,173 16,847 60 - 24,437
Charge for the period BARR 264 83 207 350 1,044 10,995 587 - 13,530
Impairment for the period ~ ERRIE{E (B (b))

note (o) 3 & 2 - 5 18,127 - . 18,127
Transferred to assets classified BEEHEAREHELE

as held for sale {note 32) (Ht3Es2) (600) - (78) (5,507) - - - (6,185)
Exchange differences ExzE 40) - 26) (16) (14) (©42) 08 . (1,066)
At 30 September 2019 RZE-AEAA=TAR

and 1 October 2019 “F-nEtA-H 676 449 829 547 696 45,027 619 - 48,843
Charge for the year ERFX 340 70 244 861 486 12,931 1,086 - 16,018
Impairment for the year FRFE (M)

(note (o) f . 4 . . 132,002 . - 132,00
Eliminated on disposals PSR E - - - - (857) - - S (857)
Written off i34 - - - 9 - - - = 9
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR = (13) = = (295) = = = (308)
Exchange differences ELZE 30 1 31 17 2 2,688 44 - 2,809
At 30 September 2020 RZZE-FFNA=TA 1,046 507 1,104 1,416 8 193,548 1,749 = 199,398
Carrying amount REE
At 30 September 2020 RZZ-ZENA=TR 8,026 145 376 793 572 86,218 10,600 1,438 108,168
At 30 September 2019 RZE-AENA=TR 5,803 195 609 1,627 807 225,759 6,776 846 242,422
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_Z-_ZFAA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2020
21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes:

22,

(@)  The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC under medium
term leases.

(b)  The Group’s pipeline and equipment belong to the CGU of
Yichang Biaodian. Details of the impairment assessment of
the CGU of Yichang Biaodian are set out in note 24(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

() At 30 September 2020, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment pledged to an independent third party
for obtaining an advance of RMB100,000 (equivalent to
HK$114,000) amounted to RMB1,955,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,237,000) (2019: Nil).

1. V¥ - BERKRE #)

fi i

(@ g%@Z@?i’:ﬂiﬂP B A AR BA 4O 45

by AEEMNEERIEBERBENESRE
ZIREELBEN -HEEHBELEL
U REFHFBHIRGETBRE
B 5E24(a)

(00 M-ZZE-TFENA=+H AEERK
A R #100,0007T (#8 & 114,000
T MEHEFBYE=HNDE  BE
MR EHREEAAR1,955,0007T
(& R2,237,0008 L) (ZT—Hh

B

8

Fofm)o
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 22. ERAEEE
Leasehold Leased Leased motor
land properties vehicles Total
HELH HENE HERE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET TER TAT
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—HA—H 1,639 2,202 = 3,841
Additions NE - 2,740 465 3,205
Depreciation e (26) (2,035) (13) (2,074)
Impairment (note 24(a)) BB (ME24(a)) 117) - - (117)
Exchange differences EHES (43) (1) - (44)
At 30 September 2019 RZE-NEALA=ZTER

and 1 October 2019 “Z-NAFE+H-H 1,453 2,906 452 4,811
Additions RE = 493 572 1,065
Depreciation e (31) (2,500) (547) (3,084)
Impairment (note 24(a)) RME (F15E24(a)) (887) = = (887)
Exchange differences EHES 41 2 = 43
At 30 September 2020 RZE-TFNA=TH 576 895 477 1,048

Lease liabilities of HK$1,496,000 (2019: HK$3,245,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$1,372,000
(2019: HK$3,358,000) as at 30 September 2020. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

RZE—FEFAA=1+H HABBE
A& EL1,372,0008 T (ZE— AN
#:3,358,000 0 ) EREEEE
1,496,000/ 7T ( == — L4 : 3,245,000
HIT) o BRI AR EE E M ERE
miN HERRYEEINERRE-AE
BETSREERERENER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE_Z-_TZFAA=+THIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2020
22. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 22, FRAREEE #)
Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE BT hF
—E-EE —Ee 52
hA=+H S — NG
EFE NA=1+HHM
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use £ A#EEEITER X
assets 3,084 2,074
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBBEMNERZ (FFAK
(included in finance costs) A ) 207 228
Expenses relating to short-term HMEHEEREANAEZ (5T A
lease (included in general and —MRERITBAE)
administrative expenses) 70 10
Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 46(g). HECHRSRLBENFBEHNMF

For the

year ended 30 September 2020, the Group leases

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

properties, a motor vehicle and car parking spaces for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of one to three years, but may have termination option to
terminate the leasing agreement of motor vehicle after one
year. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns a natural gas station and office
complex located in the PRC. The Group is the registered owner
of these property interests, including the underlying leasehold
land. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land component of these
owned properties is presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.

46(g) °

BE_T_ZTFNAA=THLFE K
%lﬁ%%%‘—%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%
LE-HEANER—E=FNEETHR
ﬂﬁ*@ﬁ%iu%%'Tﬂfié%
IR ERE R HERR T EERE

WEER SRESENRMRR LRS-

REEHEAMFEATREHENRE
B AEEERAEGHONERLEESLH
] 58 BB TT AV HARE

SESh - ﬁﬁl%ﬁﬁﬁ%qﬂlm%%ﬁiﬁ
MR- AEBEDZEMEES

Tﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ%iﬁﬂ)E@’éaﬂi‘?&*ﬁ/wﬁ%z
BREMEERS SFE —RERK-

EEFEDNONRERNEIRE  Z%58
EYMENEE LAY TEBET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

23. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s interests in prepaid land lease payments represent

prepaid operating lease payments and their net book values are

23. A LA ERE

AEERBEN I HBEENRZERIERE
& & E 50 K B AR E R E 2 AT 40

analysed as follows: ™
2020 2019
—EZRF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
At beginning of year/period R,/ B 7) - 1,639
Reclassified as right-of-use assets BB AFRAEEE = (1,639)
At end of year/period R/ HR - =
Current portion mENE D - =
Non-current portion JEMEE D - =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

24. GOODWILL 24. BHE
Yichang Shenzhen LW
Biaodian Energynt Insurance Total
3l
HEEH REREE FERR #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHET FHET
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c))
(KizE(@) (Bt3E(D)) (M3E(e)
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-—hFE—-—H—H 4,328 8,005 - 12,328
Exchange differences bE N E (116) 613) = (729)
At 30 September 2019 and 756 —NWELB=+HRK

1 October 2019 —NETHA—H 4,207 7,392 - 11,599
Arising on acquisition of Llﬂl,ﬁ% —BHBAREES

a subsidiary (note 46(a)) (HMi7E46(a)) - - 2,538 2,538
Derecognised on disposal REEERIEEEEBRE

of discontinued operations IETER (MisE46(0))

(note 46(b)) e (7,635) - (7,635)
Exchange differences ME X = 138 243 = 381
At 30 September 2020 R-ZZE-_ZFNHA=+H 4,345 - 2,538 6,883
Accumulated impairment 2 REER

losses
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—H 8,005 = 8,005
Impairment for the period HARE 4,207 = 4,207
Exchange differences b E - (613) - (613)
At 30 September 2019 and RZZE-AFHAA=TARK

1 October 2019 —NETA—H 4,207 7,392 - 11,599
Impairment for the year FARE - - 1,958 1,958
Derecognised on disposal REEERIEEEEBRE

of discontinued operations B FERR (F3E46(0))

(note 46(b)) - (7,635) - (7,635)
Exchange differences ME X = 138 243 = 381
At 30 September 2020 RZEZZFNA=1H 4,345 - 1,958 6,303
Carrying amount EEEE
At 30 September 2020 RZZE-_ZTFNA=1H - - 580 580

At 30 September 2019

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE “ZTENA=FTHIEFEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

24. GOODWILL (continued) 24. BHE (&)

Notes: Mo -

(a)

The Group acquired 49% of the equity interest in Yichang
Biaodian in 2016. The goodwill arising from the acquisition is
allocated to CGU of Yichang Biaodian.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined on the
basis of its value in use using discounted cash flow method. The
key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted gross
margin and revenue during the period. The Group estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU. The growth rates are based on long-term average
economic growth rate of the geographical area in which the
businesses of the CGU operate. Budgeted gross margin and
revenue are based on past practices and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors.
Yichang Biaodian’s cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% (2019: 3%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry in which Yichang Biaodian operates. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
revenue and gross margin, such estimation is based on Yichang
Biaodian’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. The pre-tax rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows from the Group’s is 12.05% (2019:
13.23%).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &

(a)

EHRA R

AEBR-ZE—"FHEESEZHN
A0% R - WHBEHELENEESER
HEEARGELEN -

ReEABUZAKRESBIYRERE
FRAIRREeREE 2 FABMEETE B
REERBEZBARER S R AE,
WE ERRRBEFEMNEIA R ES -
AEBECARATLL REFHRE AR
BRIMSHERSREBERRESE
A B ERRE 2 - B REDRE
ReEABUEBEEMEREZ R
Hﬁﬁi’ﬂi‘“mi'ﬁﬂfﬁ‘ﬁﬂ& BEEMER
WaE HRBEEENRETISERZ
TEEAT IE °

$EIEV§$%EZ?%Wﬁﬁ”
mEREREEN -TS1FHBIRS
ngﬁziﬁﬁ//miﬁfiﬁﬁs% _¥_ﬂ
F:3%) ZBERREHEE - ZHEEX
TRBHEETRERTBAME - B8
BEERHRLEZHBITEZTFAR
HEEX - EREEFEZEMERR
ﬂ/ﬁ&iﬁimb)\/mbﬁﬂﬁuf @?ﬁ?’ﬁg
W REME  BREMFTIRER
ﬁZ@E%ﬁ&E@@ﬂm%%@Z
EHmE - ARERASEERAIRS
MEBZBAILLER12.05% (ZF—N
% :18.23%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

24. GOODWILL (Continued) 24. & ()
Notes: (Continued) MisE: (4&)
(a)  (Continued) @ (#&)

The recoverable amount of this CGU was below the carrying
amount of the CGU of which the assets belong. Yichang
Biaodian did not perform as expected because of:

(i) slow progress of chemical enterprises’ removals and
construction of new factories;

(i) decrease in existing customers’ demand on natural gas
consumption due to slowdown of the PRC economic
growth and the impact of COVID-19; and

(i) customers’ expectation on stability of natural gas supply.

Accordingly, the Group has revised its cash flow forecasts
for this CGU. The CGU has been reduced to its recoverable
amount of HK$156,184,000 (2019: HK$404,734,000). Therefore,
impairment losses on non-current assets were recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 30 September 2020 and the
charges to profit or loss are analysed as follows:

HREELABUNAIKREESEERE
EfERSELBUNEEHE - EER
HRBARERDY RER:

()  ETREEIRER R B T RAE
REE

(i) BEFFHRATEENTRE
RO AR B TR AR 2201978 ik
BEROFZEMRL &

(i) BWPHERARMERE-

At NEBEERZACEEBMER]
HESREBA -REEELENE R
ZH AU E 4 5156,184,0005 T (=
T — fL4F 1 404,734,000 7T ) © A
HE-_Z-_ZTFNA=1+BLEE"
RBEERIERBEERMEEE TR
BEINBOBHESTWOT

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FAEIT

Property, plant and equipment (note 21)  #1% - BiE K& R & (HiE21) 132,902 18,127
Goodwill 7 - 4,207
Intangible assets (note 25(b)) mEE (ME25(0)) 106,934 14,287
Right-of-use assets (note 22) FRAEEE (M:E22) 887 117
Charged to profit or loss R Mk 240,723 36,738
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BHE

BA SR AR

“EFAR=+THIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2020

24. GOODWILL (continuea)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

:t H
o

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of &I % £ &
X BEJR A BR A A) (“Shenzhen Energynt”) in 2018, which was
expected to engage in the solar photovoltaic business. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, because of the changes
in the state government policies on the construction scale of
ordinary photovoltaic power stations, the Group revised its cash
flow forecast for this CGU that leading to the recoverable amount
became nil. The amount was derecognised upon disposal in
2020.

The Group acquired 100% of the equity interest in LW Insurance
Brokers Limited (‘LW Insurance”) in October 2019. The goodwill
arising from the acquisition is allocated to CGU of LW Insurance.

The recoverable amount of the investment in LW Insurance
is determined from the fair value calculations using market
approach by an independent valuation expert. The key
assumptions for the fair value calculations are those regarding
the enterprise value multiples, the control premium and the
discount for lack of marketability.

The measurement of the fair value of recoverable amount was
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

At 30 September 2020, before impairment testing, the
carrying amount of goodwill allocated to LW Insurance was
HK$2,538,000. The recoverable amount of this CGU was below
the carrying amount of the CGU of which the assets belong. LW
Insurance did not perform as expected because of the effect of
COVID-19 that potential customers cannot visit Hong Kong and
seek professional advice on insurance plan from the Group.

The CGU has been reduced to its recoverable amount of
HK$516,000. Therefore, impairment loss on goodwill of
HK$1,958,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 30 September 2020.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &

24. BHE (&)

BfsE: (&)

(0)

EHRA R

BEELAABR T NFURERIIZ
e A RERAE (DRIIZ

FEReR]) - REME B RFGRELINEERS -
BE_Z-\Ft+-_A=+—HL#F
V HREREATE SR A E R
RAE 2 BREY  AEBEBFIZAS
EEBMMRSRERIGHATKD
EHEAT -R_T_FF ZFEARH
BRI TR -

AEER-_ZT-NAF+ AKEBENE
RERELERRR ([FMERR]) D
100% M #E - Wi FIRE A R E o B

ENERBESELEM -
RENERROTTKE SR HBL

1Eﬁ$§}%ﬁﬁﬁi%5£ﬁ?&$%é HiE

RNFEFENERBRRSREEE
ﬁf s ERREZ TS RBE
BT H

AU [El & FE B 2
EERE=F-

FEMTEBNR AT

RZZEZZTFAA=+H EETRE
AR EEFNERBROGEREEE
#£2,538,0008 o LIRS EE B
ARESEEREENBRESELE
B ARE(E - FERBRBEREER

ARZ2019B MR EERNEE B
BREEREBERAEES KRB E
HNEZXER

ReELEMNERIEZHETHEE S
%8516,000% 7T A It - BB R EE B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 25 ML EE
Natural gas
supply
exclusive
Car license rights Total
RAR
HiE BRUEERE Mt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
(note (a)) (note (b))
(MF5E@) (P43 (o))
Cost AR
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—HA—H 1,520 224,324 225,844
Exchange differences b = - (6,028) (6,028)
At 30 September 2019 and RZFE-AFNA=+TARK
1 October 2019 —E-hFE+AH 1,520 218,296 219,816
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 46(c)) HE—MKB QR (KE46(c)) (1,520) = (1,520)
Exchange differences N =5 - 7,171 7,171
At 30 September 2020 RZE-TFNA=+H = 225,467 225,467
Accumulated amortisation A BERRE
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—A—H - 21,186 21,186
Charge for the period HIR R - 5,711 Bl
Impairment losses (note 24(a)) HEEE (M3E24(a)) 770 14,287 15,057
Exchange differences [N ZH - (823) (823)
At 30 September 2019 and RZE-NAFNLA=+HEK
1 October 2019 ZE-NEF+A—H 770 40,361 41,131
Charge for the year FRARX = 6,458 6,458
Impairment losses (note 24(a)) WEEE (M7E24(a)) - 106,934 106,934
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 46(c)) HE B AR (FE46()) (770) = (770)
Exchange differences N =5 - 2,207 2,207
At 30 September 2020 RZE-EFNA=1+H = 155,960 155,960
Carrying amount REE
At 30 September 2020 RZEZZFNA=1H - 69,507 69,507
At 30 September 2019 RZFE-NFNLA=+AH 750 177,935 178,685

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

“EFAR=+THIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2020

25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cContinuead)

Notes:

(a)

Car license represented the China/Hong Kong cross border car
license acquired from an independent third party. The Directors
are of the opinion that the car license has an indefinite useful
life as the car license is transferrable and able to renew on an
annual basis with minimal cost and hence no amortisation is
provided. The car license is carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
the car license as at 30 September 2019 and recognised an
impairment loss of HK$770,000 for car license in profit or
loss. The recoverable amount of HK$750,000 was determined
on market comparison approach with reference to market
comparison on respective car license in the market by an
independent valuation expert. There was no change in the
valuation approach for the period from 1 January 2019 to 30
September 2019 and for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The measurement of the fair value of car license was within level
2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The natural gas supply exclusive rights arose from the acquisition
of Yichang Biaodian completed on 24 February 2016 and is
amortised over the remaining years of the contractual period of
30 years till the years ranging from 2041 to 2044.

As there was continuous loss made by Yichang Biaodian and
indication of impairment exists, the Group performed impairment
assessment on natural gas supply exclusive rights and other
assets which belong to the CGU of Yichang Biaodian. Details of
impairment assessment are set out in note 24(a).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &

(a)

EHRA R

5. BIEEE (&)

B & -

ERENBYIE=TREZPBER
B -BEERR BN EEAEENRE
AR AN S4B <R - EL T8 A F 48
AR - F U AT RS o SRR TR
AR AE(E & REHRE R R R -

AEBHR _T-NFAA=1THEE
fRE) AT U O S R EIT R W E R

TSR 2 R B E518770,0007% 7T o 7] IR
6] ¥8750,000%8 7o Ty B M i EE R
KREMG CHABEEOMIS LR
EMBLEELET AT —NF— A
—BEZZT-AFAA=+HHERE
HEZZ—-/\F+-ZA=+—HLLF
B HEFEHEEH -BR2ATE
AEBRAFTEEBRE -

AARBRUBEEENAEE N =
T-RFAZtHBERKEES
YTHREEZZN—FE-ZNN
K2 FISRFE N -

Rt -

FIF30FA

HREESEAFEEE M FERED
R AEEHRARBREEEREES
RESFHRGELSUNHEMEE
HEITRE R o BUERT A BE M T
24(a) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 26. AfIBREI2RE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 September 2020 are as R-E_ZEFNA=ZTHZHERAH
follows: ERNE

Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of
establishment registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary and operation capital to the Group Principal activities
BRTR
EMAL/ BRREX/
WEARAE B RE R HEHER AEEREREE DL TEXH
2020 2019
“2-8F _T-NF
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC. BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
EERAES 1ET hig:E 37
Great China Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
EHBERANA Bk 187 WEER
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
YEEEEBRAERLA £ 2B REER
Logo Plus Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% Inactive
3 1,000/ 7T VEEH
DIGITAL COMMERCE LIMITED Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Investment holding
(note (c)) (BiizE(c)) N 2B REER
Man Kong Trading Co. Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
(note (c)) (FzE(c)) ) 18T REER
BIBEEER CRYNERAF" PRC US$1,060,000 - 100%  Dormant
(note (c)) (PiizE(c)) F 1,060,000% 1T EmER
Pickworth Limited Samoa US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EED E REZK
Rich Ascent International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
LEERBERARA Bk 1B WEEL
Calgary Investments Limited Samoa US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
(note (b)) (P& (b)) EES E REER
Global Billion Access Investments Limited BVI us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BIGERRERRAA EERAES E REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 26. RfIB AT Z2RE (#)

Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of
establishment registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary and operation capital to the Group Principal activities
BRTR
TMAL BRREX/
WEARAS BIYRE R HERER AEERERER DL TEXH
2020 2019
28 _T-NF
Hong Kong Global Billion Access Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited
ERRERREBR AT B b REER
RIGEERZE S (R AR AA! PRC HK$14,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Global Bilion Trading (Shenzhen) F 14,000,000/ 1T RAER
Limited) (“Shenzhen Global’)
(TRIBRR])
Yichang Biaodian* (note (a)) PRC RMB58,800,000 25% 25%  Natural gas operations
HERE (HiE@)) HE AR RARER
58,800,0007T
King Sailing International Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
FHERERAE EBRAHES 1% REER
Hong Kong King Sailing Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Inactive and not yet
(note (d)) commenced in business
BETMARAR (M) Bk 18T VEEBREARRER
TR CRY) BB AR PRC HK$10,000,000 - 100%  Design and construction of
(Dihang Energy (Shenzhen) Company new energy power generation
Limited) (“Dihang Energy”) equipment, energy storage
(note (d)) ([ ALaLIR]) (BizE(d)) systems and power equipment,
technology development,
technical services and
technology transfer
HE 10,000,0007% 7T R REEREREERE LRGE
REHRENRE RWHE R
i BR %5 R R T
Shenzhen Energynt (note (d)) PRC RMB25,000,000 - 100%  Commodity trading
R (B () HE AR HmE s
25,000,0007T
LRREREEHERAF PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
(note (d)) (F1&E(d)) R ARE EEEL
30,000,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

26. RIB AR Z2®RE (&)

Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of
establishment registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary and operation capital to the Group Principal activities
BRTR
EMAEL/ BRREX/
WEARAE B RE R TEHER AEEREREE DL TEXH
2020 2019
B2 _T-NF
MIBEBRZEERARAR PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Commodity trading
(“Znejiang Anzhu’) (note (d) Gl AR TRE 5
(DHIZE]) (M) 30,000,0007%
BEZEHERERERAA PRC RMB55,000,000 - 60%  Commodity trading
(note (d)) (FIEE(d)) HE ARE HmE S
55,000,0007T
Charmland Treasure Limited Seychelles US$100 60% 60%  Investment holding
EER 100% T REER
Hong Kong Sunrise Electric Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding (Not yet
Technology Limited commenced business)
ERTAENHRERARA £ 10,0007 7T REAER (mARRER)
Eternal Goal Limited Seychelles US$100 60% 60%  Investment holding
EEM 100X 7T REER
Hong Kong Eternal Goal Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% 60% Inactive
£ 10,000 7T i %7
Heroic Sunshine Limited Seychelles USs$100 60% 60%  Investment holding
EEM 100%7T REER
Hong Kong Central Environmental Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
Technology Limited
BERERERNRARLA & 10,000 7T REER
RERENE (LB)ARAA! PRC RMB10,000,000 60% 60%  Leasing business of the steel
support axial force servo system
HE ARE B EHNRREGEEER
10,000,0007T
R (LE)BHERRAR PRC RMB30,000,000 60% 60%  Dormant
H AR TEEH
30,000,0007T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 26. RfIB AT Z2RE (#)

Issued and
Place of fully paid
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of
establishment registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary and operation capital to the Group Principal activities
BRTR
TMAL BRRE/
WEAREE BIYRE R TEMEX rEEEEREES L TEXH
2020 2019
28 _T-NF
REOMIEER)&ERERDA PRC RMB30,000,000 60% 60%  Dormant
h N HEXL
30,000,0007T
East Perfection Development Limited BVI Us$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
REZERBRAF AERTES 10E7T REZK
East Prefection (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
REZRE (FB)ARAA Bt 10,0008 7T WEEB
Billion Champion Business Limited BVI Us$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
KLZEHEBRAA AERTES 10%7T REZK
Billion Champion (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
Kz (F#)ERADA Bt 10,000/ 7 WEEB
LW Capital Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
MESREBBERLA B 10,0007% 7T REER
LW (Hong Kong) Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Dormant
MiE (BB MBERAA B 10,000/ 7T EEXE
LW Insurance Hong Kong HK$3,687,500 100% - Insurance broker business
MERR B 3,687,500/ 7T RBRELEH
Bright Able Century Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBRAHES E REZKR
Smart Target Billion Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERERRAR B 18T REZK
LW Manin Immigration Hong Kong HK$10,000 60% 60%  Dormant
Consultancy Limited
MEEFHRERARAA &t 10,000/ 7T EEXB
# These subsidiaries are foreign investment enterprise established e ZEWB AR ARBERBEERILH
pursuant to the law of the PRC. INEIRE R E-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Yichang Biaodian is a subsidiary of the Group even though the
Group has only 25% (2019: 25%) ownership interest in Yichang
Biaodian.

The Group has held 25% equity interest in Yichang Biaodian
upon the capital contribution from two shareholders on 4
January 2019. #ILIZE KA RBR A E (‘Hubei Biaodian”), &
HEREREIRER AT, HEESIKRAEMR A and Mr. Li Wanging
(“Mr. Li") (collectively the “Non-controlling Shareholders”) owned
21%, 24%, 20% and 10% equity interest in Yichang Biaodian,
respectively, after the capital contribution and up to the date of
this report.

The Directors, with the assistance of the legal counsel in the
PRC, assessed whether or not the Group still has control
over Yichang Biaodian based on whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities at Yichang
Biaodian unilaterally. In making their judgement, the Directors
considered the Group’s power to affect the board of directors
(the “BOD”) of Yichang Biaodian. The BOD of Yichang Biaodian,
responsible for all relevant activities at Yichang Biaodian,
consisted of eleven directors, of which six were appointed by
the Group while the other five directors were appointed by
the Non-controlling Shareholders. BOD resolutions of Yichang
Biaodian were reached by more than two-third of the attending
directors. In accordance with the terms of a further shareholders’
agreement entered into among the Group and the Non-
controlling Shareholders, in any events where the Group and the
Non-controlling Shareholders have diversed views in the BOD
meetings, the Group, being the single largest shareholder of
Yichang Biaodian, has the power to make the final decision.

Based on the assessment mentioned above, the Directors
concluded that the Group under the terms of the shareholders’
agreement had the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of Yichang Biaodian and therefore the Group has control over
Yichang Biaodian after the capital contribution.

The subsidiary was struck off during the year.

These subsidiaries were disposed on 7 January 2020.

These subsidiaries were disposed on 29 September 2020.

26. RIB AR Z2®RE (&)
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(@)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 26.

Notes: (Continued)

(e) The following table shows information on the subsidiaries that
have NCI material to the Group. The summarised financial
information represents amounts before inter-company
eliminations.

RHMBARZRE ()
Misk: (&)
e TREBARAEEHAEEMEBEAZ

FEEBEECMBARIZER - EW
BERANARMEHEAMNSE-

Yichang Biaodian

HEEZH
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hEF

Principal place of business/country £ 2@ % B BER PRC/PRC

of establishment hEF

% of ownership interests/voting RS e AR

rights held by NCI BEEEHH 75%/45% 75%/45%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE 164,344 413,046
Current assets MBEE 10,036 8,862
Non-current liabilities FnEaE (70,407) (103,586)
Current liabilities mEaE (45,891) (39,224)
Net assets BEFE 58,082 279,098
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

The following table shows information on the subsidiaries that
have NCI material to the Group. The summarised financial
information represents amounts before inter-company

eliminations. (Continued)

26. RIB AR Z2®RE (&)

MisE : (4#&)

(€)

TREATAFBHAEEMSBERZ
FERERIMBARZER -HE
HBEHRRARREHAN SR
(%)

Yichang Biaodian

HEEH
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAEIT
Accumulated NCI RirFFERRERS 43,017 208,882
Revenue W %5 38,001 30,923
Loss for the year/period F/HREE (228,379) (44,560)
Total comprehensive income >EKEBTE (221,015) (56,645)
Loss allocated to NCI AR TFIEERER CER (165,865) (42,484)
Net cash generated from KEXEBSHRFHE
operating activities 4,956 5,303
Net cash generated from/(used in)  &&EBFTE, (FTA)BEEFHE
investing activities 178 (3,865)
Net cash used in financing activities B & EEFT IR & F 58 (4,137) (2,757)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and & RIS EEEEN, CRd ) F58
cash equivalents 997 (1,319)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

27. INVENTORIES 27. 78
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Finished goods 2K 629 183
Raw materials R K 137 187
766 370
28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28. BWWE 5 Kk HARMK
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Current B
Trade receivables (note (a)) FEWE 5 BR A (Fi5E(a)) 8,246 11,291
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)(i) & : JAEE B (M 3E6(0)() ) (4,424) (48)
3,822 11,243
Deposits bl 925 1,279
Prepayments FEF 3B 3,245 9,805
Others EHAh 1,857 456
6,027 11,540
9,849 22,783
Non-current 1)
Deposits for acquisition of W B A RMIES
subsidiaries (note (b)) (P 3E(D)) - 6,830
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continueqd)

Notes:

(@)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Generally there is no credit period for customers of sales of
natural gas as the customers need to prepay before the usage
of the natural gas. For a few specific customers they can use
the gas on credit and the Group allows an average credit period
of 60 days. The Group recognises revenue for natural gas
pipeline installation service when the installation is completed
and the Group allows an average credit period of 30 days upon
completion. For trading of copper and petrochemicals, deposits
were usually required and the remaining balance was usually
receivable approximately within 180 days upon completion of the
transaction. For leasing business, the Group allows an average
credit period of 30 days upon service rendered. For independent
financial advisory, the Group allows an average credit period of
30 days upon service rendered.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period based on goods or services delivered is as

28. EWE S REMERER (&)

GEE

HERRRNBEPATL T ERHEE
Y REAREPERERRARA
BAMNK - AP BAUEETXEAX
RARZBFEEPME ALK ETF6E0
HZFPOEE - REENRETKE
ERRARREELRERF 2B BA
SEAFNTEXEAVAZ FHEER
H-AEBRLOERMS  BER
TERES BRERENRHTRED
180 AWE-BLHERBME - A&
B AR EHREROBZFHER
H B MBERME  NEEAT
RIBHRT230H 2 FHEEH -

RSP RBEAZNEDERSE 2
S| 2 B E SRR DT -

follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
0 to 90 days 0%F90H 1,656 2,837
91 to 180 days 91%180H - 142538
181 to 366 days 1812366 H 2,166 1,188
Over 366 days B iE366 H - =
3,822 11,243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance and
sales management team would assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Credit limits
attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with reference
to past settlement history. The Group’s finance and sales
management team considers trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality as continuous
repayments have been received.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

28. EWE S REMERR (&)

BsE: (&)

(@)

(#&)

R M P Al - AN SR BB 75 I
EEREFENEEERPZREEE
R UEERPZEER -BPZER
HE2ERAENRLENEHETE
Bl AEEMBRHEEEEKRS
MR RERF B EVE T - AT B EE R B
TRARBE UK E SRR ERIFE

7 R R 5 B 2 B DA T 51
A

2020 2019
—E-EE —T—NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

HK$ BT 26 =
RMB AR 3,796 11,243
3,822 11,243

The amount represented deposits paid to two vendors during the
period ended 30 September 2019 for acquiring two subsidiaries.

On 25 July 2019, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with a vendor, who was independent from the
Group, to acquire 100% equity interest in an insurance broker
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liabilities at a
consideration of HK$2,373,000. A deposit of HK$1,400,000 was
paid to the vendor as a deposit for acquiring the shares from
the vendor. The acquisition had been completed on 31 October
2019.

On 20 September 2019, the Group signed a letter of intent
with a private company (the “investee”) established in the
PRC, engaging in development and distribution of healthcare
technologies and products, to invest in the investee. A deposit
of RMB4,900,000 (equivalent to HK$5,430,000) was paid to the
investee as a deposit for capital contribution.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

SHEERARBE_T-NFAA=T
L 5 e W B o ) PR B8 2 RS2 T
FEHTNEE-

RZZE-NAFLtAZ+HEB TEH
H—FET (BINAKEE)FTZLRG
BEEGE  ARBREE MR
DR AR (FREME) 228tk
KB R2,373,0008 T- AKHERE
77 X {F#2£1,400,0008 7T - tERAE
FRERONES - WBFREN-F
—NF+R=+—HERK-

R-EBE-NFEAA-TH K"EHE—
i 72 7 B A 37 7 58 B R A I E A
BEROBEHALERR ([HREF])E
EBMARK UREFRES -AKEE
MR EF Z RS AR 4,900,000
7t (B EH5,430,00087C) * tEAEE
b
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZT

28.

29.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continueqd)

Notes: (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

As the acquisition was not completed before 31 March 2020,
the deposit of RMB3,240,000 (equivalent to HK$3,708,000)
was refunded to the Group during the year, the remaining
balance of RMB1,660,000 (equivalent to HK$1,900,000) was
still outstanding and was included in other receivables as at 30
September 2020.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits, prepayments and
other receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

28. EWE S RHEMERR (&)

BsE: (&)
b (&)

HRKBEBEREN T
=t+—HAIZK R=ZZ=ZTFNA
=+ 8 AR#¥3,240,0007 (HE ®H
3,708,000 L) MIE € E N FNRE
TALEE &% ARH1,660,0007T
(#8% 71,900,000 70 ) AR EEI AT
A EL ftb fE U 3R 0B

i
v

I
N

REBERE - BN A K E M ERFOR
MEEEXZUARBE.

LOAN RECEIVABLES 29. EWRE XK
2020 2019
—B-BF —ET-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Loan receivables, unsecured JEURE 3K - IR IR 22,961 19,802
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)(ii) & : BB &5 18 (B 5E6(b)(i) ) (1,017) (7,003)
21,944 12,799

The Group granted loans to certain independent third parties
during the year ended 30 September 2020, which will mature
between 3 October 2020 to 2 July 2021. Loan receivables are
unsecured and are charged on effective interest rate mutually
agreed with the contracting parties, at a fixed rate ranging from
12% to 20% (period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September
2019: 0% to 12%) per annum. The borrowers are obliged
to settle the amounts according to the terms set out in the
relevant agreements.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loan receivables so as to minimise credit risk. The granting
of loans is subject to approval by the management, whilst
overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the management.

AEERBE_Z-_TFNLA=THIL
FERETBUE=FREHER BEXR
BRZBEZEFT+A-HEE - —F
+tAZHE - -ERERTERR &
HENZTAEEBENERNETE -
BEEFMNZENF12%E20% (B -F
—hWE—A—BE-_Z—AFhA=+
HEAME :0%ZE12%) ~fERABEERE
RIEBABZIER 2 IGEREN SRR

RERSKEE M REBRBRERES
BB URERKEFEERR KD
BERAKEBREIE MBMELRHEE
HEFEAERM-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020
29. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 29. EWE R (4)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s loan receivables are REBRKERZREEN TS
denominated in the following currencies: B:
2020 2019
—ECEF —N&F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
HK$ BT 21,944 12,253
RMB AR - 546
21,944 12,799
30. BOND RECEIVABLES 30. EWES
2020 2019
—BBF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Unlisted debt instruments, at —MEMARIEITZIELT
amortised cost, issued by BT A - R EK AR
a listed company 10,280 3,000
Accrued interest receivables JE UG FE T I B, 655 150
10,935 3,150
Unlisted debt instruments, —ELEmARIEITZIELT
at amortised cost, issued by BT A B HEK A
an unlisted company - 6,500
Accrued interest receivables JE UK FE AT I B - 237
- 6,737
Less: impairment losses B RE R 1R (T FE6 (b)) )
(note 6(b)(ii) (10,935) (77)
- 9,710

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE

“EFAR=+THIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2020

30. BOND RECEIVABLES (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Notes:

On 2 April 2019, the Group subscribed bonds from a listed company
(“Bond Issuer 1”) with principal amount of HK$3,000,000. The bonds
were unsecured and interest-bearing at fixed rates of 10% per annum.
The carrying amount of HK$3,300,000 was receivable on 2 April
2020. The bonds could be redeemed by Bond Issuer 1 at 100% of
the outstanding principal amount, together with accrued interest up to
settlement date. Upon the maturity date, Bond Issuer 1 did not repay
the interest and principal.

On 4 May 2019, the Group subscribed bonds from an unlisted
company (“Bond Issuer 2”), which is a subsidiary of Bond Issuer 1, with
a principal amount of HK$6,500,000. The bonds were unsecured and
interest-bearing at fixed rates of 12% per annum. The carrying amount
of HK$7,280,000 was receivable on 3 May 2020. The bonds could
be redeemed by Bond Issuer 2 at 100% of the outstanding principal
amount, together with accrued interest up to settlement date.

Upon maturity date, Bond Issuer 2 did not repay the interest and
principal. Bond Issuer 1, being the holding company of Bond Issuer 2,
had taken up the obligation by issuing bonds with principal amount of
HK$7,280,000 at fixed interest rate of 12% per annum to the Group on
4 May 2020. The carrying amount of HK$8,153,600 will be receivable
on 3 May 2021. The bonds can be redeemed by Bond Issuer 1 at
100% of the outstanding principal amount, together with accrued
interest up to settlement date.

On 5 June 2020, Bond Issuer 1 announced that it has entered into
liquidation process, the management of the Company considered the
recoverability of these bonds was remote and full impairment was
made accordingly.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bond receivables are
denominated in HKS.

30. EWES (&)

B & -

R-ZE—NEWNA-H A&EEMA—/ L
MAR([EHFETA—])RBELASEAR
3,000,000 T fEH - ZEFEH A TR
12 [E 7 & F FE10%5T 2 - BRTE 83,300,000/
TER-_Z-ZFMNA-—AKE -%EEH
AREHFEITA—RHREELRSEEZ100%
EREEH#EAHEFTZHEER N5 H
B EFBTA—TAREENEREE -

—hWERANB AEBm—HIEL
TRB (EHEBTAZ] BEHBITA—
# BT 8 A A ) 3R HE 2N £ B8 46,500,000 7T HY
EH -ZESEHFAEEM. Ihlmiﬂf
12%5t 8 - BR 17,280,000 T/EN T —
EFRA=ARE -EBEHFITHESFETAZ
REMKEEAREBEZI00%ERBEEAER
HifEst 2 F BB

REHBE BFETA-MREENER
zrk/f BHFEITA— (BEHFBITAZZE

ARNEBBR-_ZE-_TFRAMNBRAA
;‘%l%ﬁwﬂxu%“éiz%zzao,ooo/anlhzlm
FREI2%:T BN EHSAREZEF - FHEE
8,153,600 THR T =-_—F A A=A
M-z SEHFATRBEFBRITARERER
REBEZI00%EREEAEAHE ZF
BHEME -

RZE-—EFNARB BHFBETA—EM
HEEANBREF ARREEERAKE
ZEBEFHAIRRMEMTEY REFREHE
/ﬂTﬁ"

AEBERWES < REENBITAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

31.

32.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES 3. RITRA TR
The carrying amount of the Group’s bank and cash balances is AEEMRITRRGEHZREENLT
denominated in the following currencies: 5| B EHE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT FHET
HK$ BT 1,009 2,824
RMB AR 962 494
US$ ETT 7 7
1,978 3,325
As at 30 September 2020, the bank and cash balances of RZEBE_EFAA=TH UARE:ST
the Group denominated in RMB was HK$903,000 (2019: Bz AEBIRTTRIR$ 4 % £903,000
HK$432,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is BT (ZZF—N4F 432,000 7T) ° A
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations R N B /NE B 8 <7 i B SN E B IR (K
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign BILA R 450 - EERTIEEIRIEE ©
Exchange Regulations.
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 2. 7 EABELHEEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Building (note (a)) BF (M) - 2,304
Leasehold improvements (note (a)) MEFRE (Wik@) - 24
Motor vehicle (note (b)) B (MiFED)) - 393
- 2,721

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE

“EFAR=+THIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2020

32. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Continueqd)

Notes:

(@)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

On 24 September 2019, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party (“Purchaser
1”) to dispose its building located in the PRC together with
associated leasehold improvements at a consideration of
RMB2,150,000 (equivalent to HK$2,382,000). The disposal
was expected to be completed within three months upon
receipt of deposit. No impairment loss was recognised neither
on reclassification of the building and associated leasehold
improvements as held for sale, nor at 30 September 2019 as
the directors of the Group expect that the fair value less costs
to sell is higher than the carrying amount. As at 30 September
2019, the building was pledged to Purchaser 1 for obtaining
an advance of RMB100,000 (equivalent to HK$111,000) to the
Group which was included in other payables and accruals.

On 8 July 2020, the Group received a preservation order from
the court, which preserve the building from being sold by the
Group. Details of the litigation are set out in note 47(b). The
directors considered that it may take a period longer than a year
for lifting of the preservation order by the court and the sale may
not be highly probable as at 30 September 2020. Accordingly,
the carrying amounts of the relevant building and leasehold
improvements are reclassified to property, plant and equipment
(note 21).

On 24 September 2019, the Group entered into a motor vehicle
transfer agreement with an independent third party (“Purchaser
2”) to dispose one of its motor vehicles at a consideration of
HK$1,500,000. The disposal was expected to be completed
within 90 days after the date of transfer agreement signed. No
impairment loss was recognised neither on reclassification of the
motor vehicle as held for sale, nor at 30 September 2019 as the
directors of the Group expected that the fair value less costs to
sell would be higher than the carrying amount.

On 7 January 2020, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with Purchaser 2. The Group disposed the motor
vehicle by way of disposal of its entire shares of the subsidiary
holding the motor vehicle.

2. 7 EAFELEEE &)

GEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 33. ERNEZRHEMEN
2020 2019
—E-ZF —NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FE T
Trade payables (note (a)) FEAE SRR (K@) 855 1,670
Payable for construction in progress  7£ & T2 [ BR 7% 32,352 32,859
Receipt in advance (note (b)) TE YR IE (M3 (o) ) 1,946 2,884
Other payables and accruals HEtEERR R ETTE R 8,002 13,124
43,155 50,537

Notes:

Generally, there is no credit period for suppliers of natural gas as
the Group need to prepay before the purchase of the natural gas.
For liquefied natural gas, the credit period granted by supplier
to the Group was 30 days. For other business, the credit period
granted by supplier to the Group ranged from 60 to 180 days.

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on date of receipt

B &L -

—RWME  RARREEFLERHEER
H REASKEEANEEXARAIR
ENF - RBIERARNE - HHIERHR
$‘§IE’]1§§HH7%SOEI AR TS
5 HEBRETARENEESN T
60;|:18OE

$ETJ“W$Z N& mm A HEEEUE’JFH%’%BE

of goods, is as follows: FEERE AT A
2020 2019
—E-EfF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 38 -
31 to 60 days 31&£60H 115 1,149
Over 60 days HBiE60H 702 521
855 1,670
The trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled ERE SRS 7%7&% 8 RiEEARI0

on 30 to 180 days terms.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &

Z180H B N {E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continuead)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)  (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

33. ENEZRHEAMRR (&)

MizE: (&

AEERNE SRR ZEREETIAT

denominated in the following currencies: HIE A :
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
HK$ BT 113 15
RMB AR 742 1,655
855 1,670

(o)  The amounts represented deposits received for disposal of
building (2019: building and motor vehicle) of the Group, as

disclosed in note 32, from an independent third party.

34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

L) HEERHEAEEZT(ZZT—N
FREFRTE) MBELE =T WIS
7e (WERKEEI2) -

34. EHNAEE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT

Billings in advance of [EESBERNE O

performance obligation

— Sales of goods —HEE® 5 5
— Sales of natural gas —HEXAR 2,212 1,996
— Pipeline installation services —EBLRERK 1,515 395
3,732 2,396

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 4. ERNEE (2
Contract liabilities relating to sales of goods, sales of natural HEEEm HERARREBLER
gas and pipeline installation services are balances due to BEBNEHNABEDIREREEESH
customers under goods sales contracts, natural gas sales AARHEEEHNRBEBLR Hﬁﬁ%/—\”ﬂﬁﬁ
contracts and pipeline installation services contracts. They NEFPHWEHR BREFPINBEBE
arise because customers pay deposits for the contracts which BRzZWENENES Eﬁ(tﬁfﬁiu%
exceed the revenue recognised to date. e
There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities RBEHRN cHBEERTEERE
balances during the reporting period. go
Movements in contract liabilities: BHBENEZE:
2020 2019
—E-E2HF —ZET-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FRET
Balance at beginning of year/period £/ Bi¥ 45 ¢4 2,396 2,852
Decrease in contract liabilities as AFARRM =GR
a result of recognising revenue BRBERDFT AR
during the year that was included EHBE
in contract liabilities at the
beginning of the period (2,168) (2,756)
Increase in contract liabilities as HEERARREERE
a result of billing in advance of AR 7 TR SRIB B 2L
sales of natural gas and pipeline SRBEEEM
installation services 3,497 2,303
Exchange differences E N =58 7 (3)
Balance at end of year/period F RS 3,732 2,396
There is no billings in advance of performance received that is ?EEHE?HEAEL FlrmRrnBANE
expected to be recognised as income after more than one year AENREBE(ZE-—NF &) -
(2019: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

35. LEASE LIABILITIES 3. HEEE
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
REAERR BEAERNRZEAE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF —ECEF “E-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FTHBL THET FTAT
Within one year —FR 1,203 2,837 1,103 2,705
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F-FEFRF
(BEEEME) 415 546 393 540
1,618 3,383 1,496 3,245
Less: Future finance charges W R KEE B (122) (138) N/ATEA N/A 33 F
Present value of lease obligations HEERACHE 1,496 3,245 1,496 3,245
Less: Amount due for settlement W ARN12EARER 2 HR
within 12 months (shown (RRBEREETIR)
under current liabilities) (1,103) (2,705)
Amount due for settlement A2 REEEZFE
after 12 months 393 540

The carrying amount of the Group’s lea

se liabilities is

AEEBEEREZIREAERATER

denominated in the following currencies: B
2020 2019
—E-BE —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAET
HK$ BT 1,496 3,090
RMB ARE - 155
1,496 3,245

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

36.

37.

DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS

36. ENEEMIEA

ENEEFEARBEER REREARE

SKEFEE -

. AABRRES

2020 2019

- —E—NF

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

FE T FAT

Non-convertible bonds Tal# & E 5 58,896 34,885
Analysed as: DHWT:

Current liabilities mEBaE 56,190 31,885

Non-current liabilities ERBEE 2,706 3,000

58,896 34,885

From 18 October 2018 to 9 November 2018, the Group
issued fixed rate non-convertible bonds with total principal
amount of HK$9,500,000 to independent third parties. The
non-convertible bonds are unsecured and interest-bearing at
fixed rates ranging from 12% to 14% per annum in arrears
and will be repayable on dates ranging from 17 October 2019
to 8 November 2019. The aggregate outstanding balance
as at 30 September 2020 amounted to HK$6,500,000
(2019: HK$9,500,000). As at 30 September 2020, amount
of HK$3,500,000 in aggregate has been overdue as of 30
September 2020 while maturity date of HK$3,000,000 bonds in
aggregate was further extended to 8 November 2020.

On 29 November 2018, the Group issued fixed rate non-
convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$3,000,000 to
an independent third party. The non-convertible bonds are
interest-bearing at fixed rate of 12% per annum in arrears
and will be repayable on 28 November 2020. The bonds were
unconditionally and irrevocably secured by personal guarantee
provided by a former director of the Company.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

RZE—NEFE+A+NBE=ZZ—N
F+—ANB FAEEERBLE=S
B 17K % 48 %8 /59,500,000 ST Y & F
MERAIRBES - T RRES AE
WL IEN FEFE12%E14% 2 BFER
HAEFE - BARNFE—NFT+A
+t+tAE=ZE—-AF+—A/NBZH
HEE-R_TE-FTFNLA=TH X
18 12 45 #4488 56,500,000 L (= F
— % :9,500,0008 ) RZT_F
FNA="+18 " &#3,500,0008LE =
—ZE-ZTFNAZt+HERY meH
3,000,000 TEHMEHAE—F T
REZZ-ZFF+—HANR-

R-ZE—N\F+—A=-+thB XEH
M%7 % =77 317~ % # /3,000,000
S TCRIE E A R AR E S - T A3k
REHFESF12%2 EFE R KF R
B ARZZE-_ZTF+—A=-+N\RHE
B ESHARR—ZRESRREZE
A TE RS G I B J [ /O 338 o
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37. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 37.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

From 14 February 2019 to 23 September 2019, the Group
issued fixed rate non-convertible bonds with principal amount
in aggregate of HK$20,561,000 to certain independent third
parties, of which bonds with principal amount of HK$2,000,000
were unconditionally and irrevocably secured by personal
guarantee provided by a former director of the Company. The
non-convertible bonds are unsecured and interest-bearing at
fixed rates ranging from 6% to 20% per annum in arrears and
will be repayable on dates ranging from 22 December 2019
to 9 September 2020. The aggregate outstanding balance as
at 30 September 2020 amounted to HK$18,906,000 (2019:
HK$20,561,000). During the year, bonds with principal amount
in aggregate of HK$9,360,000 have been further extend by
six months to two years upon maturity, while principal with
aggregate amount of HK$9,546,000 was overdue as of 30
September 2020.

On 4 June 2020, as set out in note 40, the convertible
bondholder and the Company agreed to settle the outstanding
convertible bond by way of issuance of a tranche of non-
convertible bonds of principal amount of HK$20,800,000
with interest rate of 6% per annum and maturity date on 3
December 2020.

From 16 October 2019 to 28 August 2020, the Group issued
fixed rate non-convertible bonds with principal amount in
aggregate of HK$7,262,000 to certain independent third
parties, of which bonds with principal amount of HK$1,000,000
were unconditionally and irrevocably secured by personal
guarantee provided by a former director of the Company. The
non-convertible bonds are unsecured and interest-bearing at
fixed rates ranging from 6% to 18% per annum in arrears and
will be repayable on dates ranging from 15 October 2020 to
27 August 2021. The aggregate outstanding balance as at 30
September 2020 amounted to HK$7,262,000.

rUBRRES &)

BEZE—NWFZATHHEZ=ZZ—AN
@ﬂﬂf‘f‘:ﬁ'zﬁéﬁrﬂa?ﬁﬁ%
=H TR LT R20,561,000% T
WEEMETBMBES HPASHE
2,000,000 ST AT R EH B AR A
—ZHESRHEZEABEREEGHE
T HEMEE - T R ESF A E
I EN T HFF6%E20%M E JE XK
MEHE - BARNFZE—-—NF+ZA
—+=ZHE=-—ZTE=-_ZTFNANBZH
HEE- R_E-TFHLA=TH "X
BB 455748 %8 518,906,000 T (=&
— A4 : 20,561,000/ 7T) - £ R - 7 HA
1% 7K & 4858 59,360,000/ 7T B9 (& 5 19
FAE—SERANEAEME  MA
% 4858 59,546,000 THEAH ZE
T-_TFEAA=t+RHEBH-

RZTBZZFRXAMAB - Wk 4007
BoAUBmREFIFBEARRNAARES
BET—HAEHE 7%20 800,000/ 7T
FRRBURIR T _TF+_F=
HEB T RESN SN EE R
N A MR ES -

BE-ZE—-NF+A+"BE=Z=_F
FNAZTNR AEBMETEILE
= BITA S BEE /7,262,000 7T B
EEMEAATBRRES ER AT
1,000,000 Tt N A AR EH H AR 7
—HAEEREECEABRERGRER
TR B H R - DA R E S A EE
1B IZEN T B F6%E18% M) B E KK F|
R B AN TFE_EF+A+H
BHEZZ-— N \A=Z+tHAZAHE
B-RZZTE_TFNLA=+H KEE
KRR EE 57,262,00008 T ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ %



e SRR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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37. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 37. FAIRRES (2)
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, holders of non- REEHIRE - A& B4 /33,186,000
connertible bonds with principal amounts of approximately Bz AR ESFEADBARQF
HK$33,186,000 have signed letters of intent with the Company HEENE BENESFIHEBEE
agreeing to extend the maturity dates by a year once the bonds HER—F-
mature.
The carrying amounts of the non-convertible bonds issued EBTZIABRRES CREEERER
approximate their fair values. FEEE -
Non-convertible bonds issued at fixed interest rates expose the RETEHNERET2ATBRBESSAE
Group to fair value interest rate risk. EEBRAFERNEER-
The carrying amount of the Group’s non-convertible bonds is AREBTAHRRESZEREENATIE
denominated in the following currencies: WETE:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hnF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TERT FET
HK$ BT 51,226 29,367
us$ ETT 6,483 5,518
RMB AR 1,187 -
58,896 34,885
38. BANK BORROWINGS 38. RITEE
2020 2019
—EZRF —ZE-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
Bank borrowings (note (a)) |ITEE (Wik@)) 20,601 17,729
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38. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 38. IRITRE (&)

198

The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: RITEEAEEBRUATHFAEE:
2020 2019
—BRCERHF —EF-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Within one year —FA 8,012 2,216
More than one vear, —F L\ HETBBME
but not exceeding two years 4,578 3,324
More than two years, MEL EBETBBAF
but not more than five years 8,011 12,189
12,589 15,518
20,601 17,729
Less: Amount due for settlement B AR1218 A REE 2 5KIB
within 12 months (shown (RmEBAaEETIIR)
under current liabilities) (8,012) (2,216)
Amount due for settlement A28 R85 B 25 E
after 12 months 12,589 16,818

Notes: B 5 -

()  Bank borrowings of HK$16,023,000 (2019: HK$17,729,000) are (a) RITEE16,023,0008 L (=ZE—Hh
secured by several properties owned by non-controlling interests F 117,729, OOO/%E) AH 813 IEE
of Yichang Biaodian, including Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”), Rz (RIEEESFATZEEASRE
a key management personnel of Yichang Biaodian (2019: a ﬁf%f‘ii((ﬁ%f’ii” (ZE—N%F:
director and legal representative of Yichang Biaodian), and his ERBR—FZEEREFEREA) RE
spouse, and a company held and controlled by Mr. Xiong. The EE1%)T§E€Z%$%¥M&EE§?§‘EHET%
bank borrowings are also jointly guaranteed by non-controlling B RIEHIE —H A REER - RITEE
interests of Yichang Biaodian, including Hubei Biaodian, Mr. )TEE* R FEEAR R A (B 3EME
Xiong and his spouse and Mr. Li. EH AR A REBA RIS E)H

HB%‘%
Bank borrowings of HK$4,578,000 (2019: Nil) are secured by a R 178 E4,578,0008 L (=& — N
property owned by non-controlling interests of Yichang Biaodian, FE)VNEEFRHRIEERER (B
including Mr. Xiong and his spouse. The bank borrowings are RRAEA REECE) VR 2 S EHE R -
also jointly guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Group and the non- RITEETHAEE —HHEBE QA&
controlling shareholders of Yichang Biaodian. HEFHAITERR R AR ER -

(b)  The amounts are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in (b) ZELBEDNERSERIHEEHOT
the respective loan agreements. gE A A

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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38. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 38. RITHE (&)

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank borrowing balance is AEERITEELARBEEBNIRAR
denominated in RMB. ®EtE-

The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank borrowings is REBRITEENERENERT10%E
7.10% to 8.01% (2019: 8.01%). 8.01% (ZZT—NF:8.01%) °

The Group’s bank borrowings carried interest based on the RAEFEFERN AEERITEENUSD
benchmark interest rate issued by the People’s Bank of BMARBITEMOHEER KB i
China during both vyears. Interest rate will be adjusted if the BEEMNEEH FEESELAE-
benchmark interest rate changes, thus exposing the Group to At AEBHEEIR S REF KRR -

cash flow interest rate risk.

39. DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 39. BN —REME AR ZHFEZERRK
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND RRHEBEB R FHE
ITS RELATED PARTIES
Particulars of the amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FEAS — BT 8 & B FE4E AR IR o1 I L B Bt
of a subsidiary and its related parties are as follows. FZEFIBEFBWT -
2020 2019
—EC_EF —E-hF
Name Relationship HK$’000 HK$’000
wE /AR 2EES FHE T FET
Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiaries note (a)
LR E I HH 1 R Bt 5t (@) 26,160 25,439
Mr. Xiong and his controlled entities note (b)
RREENHEHER Bt 5 (b) 14,281 18,150
40,441 43,589
Notes: B 5 -
(a) Hubei Biaodian is the 21% (2019: 21%) non-controlling (@ HItIZHABREESIZM21%IE (=

shareholder of Yichang Biaodian.

T—NF:21%) Z FFIERAE -

(b)  Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of Hubei Biaodian. (o) FREEEAMIIZHE AR R -

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = 2R & i &= @ 5 [R

/D\

5
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HE_ZT

39.

40.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND
ITS RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Amounts due to Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiaries and Mr.
Xiong and his controlled entities represented advances for
Yichang Biaodian’s capital expenditure purposes and were
non-trade in nature. They are not repayable within 12 months
from the date of this report. These balances are unsecured
and interest free. These amounts are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, with an effective interest
rate of 10% (2019: 10%).

CONVERTIBLE BOND DESIGNATED AT
FVTPL

On 4 June 2018, the Group issued one tranche of convertible
bond with principal value of HK$20,000,000. The convertible
bond bore 10% interest per annum payable annually and had
maturity period of two years from the issue date to 3 June
2020. Any convertible bond not converted would be redeemed
on 3 June 2020.

The convertible bond entitled the bondholders to convert
the bonds into new ordinary shares of the Company at
conversion price of HK$10.8 (Note), subject to any anti-dilution
adjustments and certain events such as share consolidation,
share subdivision or reclassification, capitalisation issue, capital
distribution, rights issue and other equity or equity derivative

issued, etc.

The maximum number of ordinary shares to be converted was
1,851,852 shares (Note) and none of them was converted up
to 3 June 2020.

The entire convertible bond was designated as a financial
liability through profit or loss and classified as current liability as
at 30 September 2019.

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

39.

40.

B — BB AT EERR
RRHBEBERE &)

FEAT AL AR B I HOB /BB A Bl A R AR ST A&
REZHERFBAARESZHRE
AAZZERZRRBIFESME - BEAR
Iﬁﬁ/,ﬁak#&iaﬁﬁmﬂzmﬂ N E
B-ZERAREERAREE ZES
BHRABTRANEEREEXATE B
BFIEEI0% (ZF—HF 10%) °

BERDFEFARD Z AR
K&z

RZE-NFANANB RNEFET—
£ 558 /520,000,000% 7T & 7] # IR (&
F o AR B 5 R F ) XT10%:t B &
BEXN-FNHABRABEHTEHEC
T-EFRA= EE’UW¢ EfIARE
WA BRRESER _E-TFA=H
FEE -

AR ESE TESRHE ARN A8
#®E10.88 T (M) BEFERRAR
AT E B A MR R R R EE AR
EETEH (Pl a6t R F
AREHDE BMBET EADE
HEFEEMERITRANESRITETA
F)RR -

AlEH B E & & A1,851,852%

(M'Jluf) BEE-_ZE-_ZTFAA=ZH #%

%15 I fE B R o
RZZFE-—NENA=TH 2ZAMLK
%%?a R AERZRBETEE
RmEN B E -
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40.

CONVERTIBLE BOND DESIGNATED AT
FVTPL (continuead)

The fair value of the convertible bond designated at FVTPL at
30 September 2019 was approximately HK$19,771,000 which
was estimated by an independent valuation expert by using
trinomial tree model with the following key assumptions:

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

40. FEE QX FE ARGR 2 R

BRES #)

RZZE-—NFHLA=1+B EETRLAF
Bt \BRzBREHFQ2FELNA
19,771,000/ 7T + JH FA 78 37 (b B A 38 A
EXEEREITHE ERPERAZEE
BREWT :

30 September

2019

—E-hEF

hB=+8

Share price of the Company (Note) AAEIRE (KEE) HK$4.827% 7T
Conversion price (Note) BARE (M 5E) HK$10.8/8 7T
Expected volatility & B 1 39.47%
Time to maturity FERRF 0.68 years
Risk-free rate 7 3 B A1) & 1.87%
Dividend yield e B as & 0.00%

Note: The number of shares and share price have been adjusted
pursuant to the share consolidation effective on 24 August
2020.

The measurement of the fair value of convertible bond
designated at FVTPL was within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

The significant unobservable input in the fair value
measurement was expected volatility. As at 30 September
2019, it was estimated that with all other variables held
constant, an increase/decrease in the expected volatility by
5% would increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax by
HK$25,000/HK$12,000 as a result of change in its fair value.

On 4 June 2020, the bondholder did not exercise the rights
to convert or redeem the convertible bond. The bondholder
and the Company agreed to settle the principal amount and
accrued interest of the convertible bond by way of issuance
of a tranche of non-convertible bond of principal amount of
HK$20,800,000 with interest rate of 6% per annum (note 37).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

fisE: BOHBBERREEREBR_-_Z_ZF
NAZ+ B AEME DA GHEL
2o

AMRESRZ A FEFEBR A FERE
ME=M-

NREEFEMKAZERTATE RS
ABEABEHERB - R_ZE—NLFNA
=R ERAABTRERES T

SR T WIBER IR L BRI1K5% 0 B
B AEERBEBEEATES
#4094 425,000 7T, 12,0005 T °

RZZEZZEFNANA EHEFFAL
TR B R PR E S ER
BHFFBAEARAARIREHBET It
K458 /520,800,000/8 7T « FFIE 56%
WA R ES R A EE T RRES
BARE K ERTF S (KEE37) o
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40. CONVERTIBLE BOND DESIGNATED AT 40.

FVTPL (continuead)

The movements of the components of the convertible bond are

as follows:

BEZEAFEFABRZ2#E
BRES 2)

AR B Z AR B AN T

Convertible

bond

GE:Y 3¢

HK$’000

FHET

Balance at 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—NF—A—H2&% 24,186

Gain arising on change of fair value NEEEHELE 2 K (3,940)

Exchange differences b W Z%8 (475)

Balance at 30 September 2019 RZZBE-NAFNA=THK

and 1 October 2019 ZZE-NETA-RZ&EH 19,771

Loss arising on change of fair value NEEEYELEZEE 399
Transfer as non-convertible bonds REHZEETAIARES (MH5E37)

upon maturity (note 37) (20,000)

Exchange differences bE =58 (170)

Balance at 30 September 2020 RZZBE_ZEFNA=tTHZEH -

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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BHE-_Z-_ZFAA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2020

41. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 41.
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised

and movements thereon during the current year and prior
period:

EEHEAEE

AT RRAFE BT REERNEE
BELEHRRABENREABES:

Revaluation

of assets

BESEM

HK$’000

FH T

At 1 January 2019 RZE—-—nF—H—H 50,682

Exchange differences ME =R (1,198)

Credited to profit or loss (note 13) T ABE (H3E13) (5,000)
At 30 September 2019 and 1 October 2019 RZZE-—NAFNALA=THRK

—NE+H—H 44,484

Exchange differences N ZER 1,241

Credited to profit or loss (note 13) FrABE (MEE13) (28,348)

At 30 September 2020 N_ZE_TFNLHA=1H 17,377

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$216,194,000 (2019: HK$221,932,000) available
to offset against future profits. The unrecognised tax losses
of HK$184,379,000 (2019: HK$184,675,000) can be carried
forward infinitively. The remaining HK$31,815,000 (2019:
HK$37,257,000) related to tax losses in the PRC which will
expire in one to five years.

No provision for deferred tax assets has been recognised in
respect of tax losses and other temporary differences due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &

RBEESHMR AEEARPBZHEE

18 5216,194,0008 7T (=& — L4
221,932,000/8 7T ) © A 3K 85 K 2K &

F o 5K W 52 T4 18 85 38184,379,000/% 7T
— JL%F : 184,675,0007 JtT ) Al &
FREFAEEE - 82 T 231,815,000/ 7T (=
T — A% :37,257,000/8 70) E A B F
BEEEEH EER—ERFREm-

F 7 T BE FEDRIR R M - R L A
BARIEERE R AT EERRIRT
MIREERR-
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TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

42. SHARE CAPITAL 42, IR AR
2020 2019
“ECEE —hE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
15 & B kx| B2 g &8
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’'000
T THER T FTET
Authorised: ET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each SRR E{E0.025/8 T2 i E A 3,200,000 80,000 3,200,000 80,000
Share consolidated (note (c)) BA Bt (HEE(C)) (3,040,000) - = =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 BRAEBESAETL(ZE—AN
(2019: HK$0.025) each F:0.025% ) 2 A% 160,000 80,000 3,200,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR:
At beginning of year/period RE /81 1,308,440 32,586 1,303,440 32,586
Placing of new shares (note ()) BLEFTRD (M) 260,000 6,500 = =
Placing of new shares (note (b)) REHRR (MiEb) 260,000 6,500 = =
Share consolidation (note (c)) B E Bt (M) (1,732,268) - = =
At end of year/period RE/BR 91,172 45,586 1,303,440 32,586
Notes: B3 -
(@)  This represented an aggregate of 260,000,000 placing shares (@ EHiER —EF=A=-++tH

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

issued on 27 March 2020 at a price of HK$0.05 each, resulting
in a credit to share capital and share premium by HK$6,500,000
and HK$5,680,000, netting off the placing cost of HK$820,000,
respectively.

This represented an aggregate of 260,000,000 placing shares
issued on 5 May 2020 at a price of HK$0.029 each, resulting in
a credit to share capital and share premium by HK$6,500,000
and HK$526,000, netting off the placing cost of HK$514,000
respectively.

On 24 August 2020, every twenty issued and unissued shares
of HK$0.025 each in the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.5 each.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ %

?&iﬁxo 05/’§7EZFT§§§TTZ &
260,000,0008% Bt & A& 17 * BB EH AR
B A R BR 19 5 8 9 Bl 56,500,000
7T %.5,680,000/% 7t ( B2 1Bk AL & AKX
820,000/ 7T) °

HER T _ZTFRAAAESE
fR0.0290B T2 BB BETZAH
260,000,0008% Fid & A% 17+ B BET A K
B A R BR 15 5 8 9 Bl 56,500,000
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BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

42. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 42, BA& (&)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new
debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital risk management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 30
September 2020.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

AEEEAEEZEGREEARE L
FERERN LB BEERERE
FamMARRTREEDH -

AEEZRBRLIIREERNEE AE
EREBEEERR BN EBEEZR
RREH EREARBAMAAE S
MR SGAREARE  AEEAARIK
RS BITHA  MERD  BEFE
% BOREEFXNHEEENREE
% o

AEEERRBRER 2 TEBFERER
AEERKBEEZRNERERENE
AR AT R HEZB L R AR ERITIR
R{EME-

7S T A AR YR AR
LY E AR B AR RAEE A
i AEEREHETHFRELB
BBERREAREAHR -BE=
T-ZFARSHALFE BE K
IR I K A o
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42. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total equity of the Group. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and convertible
bond, less cash and bank balances and excludes discontinued
operations. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

42,

BRA (%)

rEBEREERBLRERELN &
REELRTVIRAEEFRERAGRE
St E FRAERENERITREME
EURABRES  RR S RIRITER
AT RERIERERB -BXABREA
RAFBARERZ RBESHREE
BELERNT:

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZET-NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
Lease liabilities (note 35) HEBE (MiE35) 1,496 3,245
Due to related parties JiE {<F A BSt 5 3R IA 2,254 554
Due to directors (note 36) FETE = 5KE (MI5E36) 3,969 347
Non-convertible bonds (note 37) AR ES (M 5E37) 58,896 34,885
Bank borrowings (note 38) RITEE (37E38) 20,601 17,729
Due to non-controlling shareholders  Eft — I B Qa2
of a subsidiary and its related FEFERR AR R K
parties (note 39) H g 75 5)I8 (B EE39) 40,441 43,589
Convertible bond designated BEZEAFEFAEBERZ
at FVTPL (note 40) AR & 25 (FEE40) - 19,771
Total borrowings BEEHE 127,657 120,120
Less: Bank and cash balances B ERIT IR & AR (FIEEST)
(note 31) (1,978) (3,325)
Net debt B %R 125,679 116,795
Total equity BB 33,747 277,783
Gearing ratio BEBMELE 372% 42%

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

The significant increase in the gearing ratio during the year
ended 30 September 2020 resulted primarily from increase
in due to related parties, due to directors, non-convertible
bonds and bank borrowings, and significant decrease in equity
attributable to significant impairment losses recognised during
the year (note 24(a)).

HE-_Z_ZTFAA=ZTRHLEEFE"
BEABLERNBBEMDEZHRE
NEs A RIE ENESHRE TR
RES RBITHEEL N A RFAER
BARBEBEIBER AR D (T
24(a)) °
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42,

43.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing
the non-public float through the Stock Exchange’s website
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. At 30 September 2020, 95.28% (2019:
89.47%) of shares were in public hands.

Apart from above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
issued by the Company and the fair value allocated
to the separable net assets of the subsidiaries
at the date of acquisition arisen from a group
reorganisation in March 2000.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

42,

43.

BRA (%)

SNERHEINEOME —BEARER D - BERA
SERBIXMET EVABRBEED

25% MR A RIFRE -

AEBEFBYIMPMBZBERBRIED
BREREOREROER  HBFHNE
EEEHELET%RE-R_E_F
FNAZ=Z+TH 95.28%EH (=T — A
F:89.47% ) HAREER o

B Eatoh ARFREKBAR
SNER b AN 2 B AN IR o

it

ISR

(@) #&£H

AEENHEBESRREZHNE
cRakEMEEKERRES
REEHERANZT-

25

\

(b) REEEREHN
(i) EBXEE

BARBEARADBEITR
AEER_TTTF=-AZ
SESEMEEDEENE

ARl BB EFERNEE
Bz R FEZEZHE-
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43. RESERVES (Continuead)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the difference
between the book values of the underlying net
assets of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC., DIGITAL
COMMERCE LIMITED and Digital Hong Kong
Limited at the date on which the shares of these
companies were acquired by the Company together
with the acquisition of a shareholder’s loan of
HK$7,640,000, and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition. The
special reserve is available for distribution under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium

Share premium represents the amount of the excess
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par
value.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents deemed capital
contribution arising from non-current interest-free
loan from shareholders and the loss on disposal
arising from deemed disposal of 24% equity interest
in Yichang Biaodian.

Translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

43. B (&)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ %
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 44, LR AEBRHONAR

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Old Scheme”). The purpose of the Old
Scheme is to attract and to retain quality personnel and other
persons and to provide them with incentive to contribute
to the business and operation of the Group. Under the Old
Scheme, the Directors may grant options to any eligible
person of the Group, including (i) any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or (ii)
any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include any
director, employee or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary
or an affiliate; or (i) a company beneficially owned by any
director, employee or consultant of the Company, a subsidiary
or an affiliate; or (iv) any person or entity whose service to the
Group or business with the Group contribute or is expected to
contribute to the business or operation of the Group as may be
determined by the Directors from time to time, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. Options granted are exercisable for a
period of up to ten years from the date of grant of the option as
decided by the board.

The exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the Old Scheme is equal to the highest of
(i) the nominal value of share; (ii) the closing price per share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant of the option, which must be a business day
and (iii) the average closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which the options may be
granted under the Old Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of approval
of the Old Scheme. However, the total maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time. The number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any one grantee
in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue on the last date of such
12-month period from time to time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &

RZE—ZF+—A=+AH xRQAEK
M—IEERESE (TERHE]) &5
ElZEMTRRARBEEBRFAERR
AT BEUSBRERERTIEE 2 X7
REBEFEHER -REEHE E£7
MASBEFMEERATEDERE:
BEO)AAF MBARNBMBEARZ
FRMES -EBEXEM: L2 ETE
HRBEARQT B QRSB AT
ZEMNEF EEIBERCEMEZERS
A (1) P NN L = R/N Ko = N
ZENEE EEXEREREB LA
A B (VEE IR TEERIEREZEM
ATHER HARNEBREREIE
B TEAE A RE 2 ETENE BB
R UARBEARAIRD REBESS
R ERERT R ERER D AR
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (continuea)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by grantee.

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company in the extraordinary general meeting held on 30 July
2020, the Old Scheme was terminated such that no further
options could thereafter be offered under the Old Scheme but
in all other respects and provisions of the Old Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect, while a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme”) was approved and adopted on 20 August
2020 and, the board of directors may, at its discretion, grant
options to the eligible persons as defined in the New Scheme.

On 30 September 2019, 16,400,000 shares of the Company
available for issue under the Old Scheme adopted by the
Company on 30 November 2012 of HK$0.025 each in the
share capital of the Company, representing approximately 28%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors, there is no minimum period
required under the Old Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised. There is no consideration for the
application or acceptance of an option under the Old Scheme.
On 20 August 2020, all remaining share options under the
Old Scheme were cancelled upon the adoption of the New
Scheme.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

44,

UG ABERNSTR2)

REXDBRETNZE B HFT21H
N AARARINEEREARIUET
7 22 49

REARRRRER-_F_ZFFLA
=T HBTHERRFNIAS LBBMAR
wmECBEREMARL UABERLTER
BREMERZE-—SERE BERME
Hipoym - Bt 3 EXDE+RM A
KRR - mn R AR &) ([t 8] ) R
TECTFENAZTAEAES R
EXZeBRBRRAERAL (EBAH
ArED R LB

R-ZE—AFENA=1+H KAFKK
#16,400,0000% & % T {80.025/4% 7T 2
BROREBEARARR-_TE—=—F+—A
=+ BERMZETEN TET AR
BB BITIRANK28% - RIEEERTTE]
BASN - B ST BN AR E IR AE R AT 1T
AIAHAZ ZEHE -RIFEAEHE
IENEREBERE- RS _ZF
NAZ+HB EsffEIETHRERTE
P& PA BR AN T 5T B B B 8 o

RS EEAFROT

Year Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price
F4 R A8 BEH TEH T8
2017 21 December 2017 N/A 21 December 2017 — 21 December 2019 HK$11.12
(note (a))

e o2 “Z—+tF+-A=+—H ik —E—+F+-_A-F+-HE 111287
—E-NE+ZAZT—H (Ktz(a))

2018 18 January 2018 N/A 18 January 2018 - 18 January 2020 HK$15.7
(note (a))

—E-N\5F —E-\E—ATN\H TER —E-N\E-ATNRZE 15,787
“E_ZF—A1+N\H (HieE ()

2018 9 October 2018 N/A 9 October 2018 - 9 October 2020 HK$9.32
(note (a))

—Z-N\% —Z-\¥+ANA NER —2-\§¥+ANBZE 9.328 7T
—Z-_ZF+ANA (ftE(@))
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (continuea)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

share options held by employees during the year/period:

Outstanding at
1 October

44, LR BEBNSTR #)

TREEF HANESMHEALAER

M2
(Exercised)/ Forfeited

Granted during during the

Cancelled  Outstanding at
during 30 September

2019 the year  year (note (b)) the year 2020

—E-hE R-B-E&

+H-H £R FREK hA=tA

Option type BRERR e RATHE THE) /B (Fit5E () ERTEH I RATEE

2017 i 390,000 - (390,000) - -

2018 “E-N\F 1,720,000 - (20,000) (1,700,000) -

2,110,000 - (410000  (1,700,000) -

Exercisable at the end of the year RERTTE 2,110,000 -

Weighted average exercise price (note (a)) I 51T E (M) 9.72 - 11.34 9.32 -

Forfeited

QOutstanding (Exercised)/ during QOutstanding

at 1 January Granted during the period  at 30 September

2019 the period (note (b)) 2019

RZF-1&E RZZE-hE

—A—H HR (178) LR L NA=+A

Option type BRESE W RATEE Vg b (Fw) W RITHE

2017 “T—tf 450,000 - (60,000 390,000

2018 “Z-\& 2,480,000 - (760,000) 1,720,000

2,930,000 - (820,000 2,110,000

Exercisable at the end of the period RERATE 2,110,000

Weighted average exercise price (note (a)) MEFHTEE (K@) 10.94 S 1412 9.72
Notes: B -

()  The number of share options and the exercise price have been @ BREHERTEESRERZ=-_Z=

adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation effective on 24 TENA-TOBERNRGDE HHE

August 2020. A

(b)  The forfeiture represented the share options granted to the
eligible participants of the Group, which were forfeited upon their
resignations during the year/period.

L) RUREERTAEESEKRZEE.
W A 555 B H 9 B T 0% W R

Pt o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. AR MBERRR L FEEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) ZA2FBBEMRRE
2020 2019
—E_EF S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment 12 - [ &E & & 55 82
Right-of-use assets EREEE 389 893
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z®/E - =
Deposits for acquisition of WM B ARMIES
subsidiaries - 5,430
444 6,405
Current assets RBEE
Prepayment, deposits and ENFIE - EHE Rk
other receivables JE U H b BR 3R 1,842 472
Loan receivables R E 5k 21,944 12,253
Bond receivables e E % - 9,710
Due from subsidiaries JE W Bt /B A R R IA 22,262 83,241
Due from a director B —REEHRIA - 426
Bank and cash balances RITRIBEER 661 2,440
46,709 108,542
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables FERT B AL BR X 4,277 4,921
Lease liabilities HEBE 249 926
Due to subsidiaries JE AT B /B A B ZRIB 675 =
Due to directors BT ESE IR 885 145
Convertible bond designated BEEAFEFABREZ
at FVTPL AR &5 - 19,771
Non-convertible bonds DA ] R & FH 56,189 31,885
62,275 57,648
Net current (liabilities)/assets 78 (&&) EEFE (15,566) 50,894

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A & ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

45. XP A BEMRR R R EEEE

(%)

(@) E2ABBMRREK(F)

(Continued)
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Total assets less current HEERRBARG
liabilities (15,122) 57,299
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 158 -
Non-convertible bonds N E 5 2,706 3,000
2,864 3,000
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) EEFE (17,986) 54,299
Capital and reserves EXRFiE
Share capital & 2 45,586 32,586
Reserves @& (63,572) 21,713
TOTAL (CAPITAL (EXEBH) EREHE
DEFICIENCY)/EQUITY (17,986) 54,299
Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 December RZEZEF+-_A=-+=-HE
2020 and are signed on its behalf by: EFeHETHTINESERESE
=
Wang Wenzhou Wu Guoming
EXAE REHH

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. XA R BRI KRR FEEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

(%)

(b) ARFZHEHEEE

Share
Capital Special Share Other Translation option  Accumulated
reserve reserve premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ERGR BHRE KB EE ERE RERE  BRERR 23 ER Eh)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TR T Thn Thn TR ThT TR
note430)  (ote43)fi)  (ote 4300} (note 43pJi)  (note 43(bj) (note 44)
(HsEas)i)  (BEEEadli))  (PEER4S@)i))  (PHEE43b)v)  (BEEE43()Y) (HizE44)
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-h&-A-H 7,640 1,971 287,434 6,734 (1,282) 9457 (212,793) 99,211
Loss for the period HREE - - - - - - (73,563) (73,563)
Other comprehensive income HREf2EkE
for the perod . . L E (39%) . = (3,93
Forfeiture of share options granted R E K it i i - - - - - (3.491) 3,491 -
At 30 September 2019 and RZF-NFNAZTAR
1 October 2019 “E-NE+A-R 7,640 197 287,434 6,734 (5,167) 5,066 (282,865) 21,718
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (95,595 (95,595)
Other comprehensive income FREMRENE
for the year - - - - 4,104 - - 4,104
Issuance of ordinary shares BLak - - 6,206 - - - - 6,206
Forfeiture of share options granted R B IR HEER 2 - - - - - (1527) 1,827 =
Cancellation of share options granted T 1R it B8 T - - - - - (4,439) 4439 -
At 30 September 2020 HNoE-ZEAA=1H 7,640 1,971 293,640 6,734 (1,063 4 (372,494) 63572

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

46. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (a)

On 31 October 2019, the Group acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of LW Insurance at a consideration of
HK$2,373,000. LW Insurance was engaged in acting as
insurance broker during the year. The acquisition is for the
purpose of actively explore local sources of revenue with
the insurance brokerage business.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of LW
Insurance acquired as at the date of acquisition are as

46. IFREREREBRME

WE—-EHELQR

R=ZF—NAF+A=+—H8 4%
4% X (82,373,000 7T W B8 Fl 32
RE100%8) B B ATIRAS c RN
B FERBRIUESRBCLER-
ZREEENENEBREBERERRA
Hb AR B2 45 40 ZE 75 B0 U 5 BRORR

P U5 B8 B0 ) 22 AR B AT 8L Bl B EE e
BEREEBEHOHRFENT

follows:
LW Insurance
FIZE R B
HK$'000
FET
Net liabilities acquired: Fric B o) 8 (5 558
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 I H M BR 3K 16
Bank balances RITHE R 213
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 R H MR (393)
Current tax liabilities ENVHAT IR B J (1)
(165)
Goodwill (note 24) & (PfsE24) 2,538
2,373
Satisfied by: BIATHAERN:
Deposits for acquisition I —fEW B AR iEe (H5E28)
of a subsidiary (note 28) 1,400
Cash consideration ReRE 973
PASIES
Net cash outflow arising on acquisitions: WHEEEEA RS RLFE:
Cash consideration paid BERNBESKE (973)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BENERSEREEE 213
(760)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EEFR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

46. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

Acquisition of a subsidiary (Continued)

The fair value of the trade receivables acquired is
HK$9,000.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of LW Insurance
is attributable to the anticipated profitability from certain
potential material insurance contracts will be handled
through LW Insurance on behalf of its clients. Acquisition-
related cost of HK$32,000 has been charged to general
and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

LW Insurance contributed approximately HK$499,000
to the Group’s revenue for the year for the period
between the date of acquisition and the end of the
reporting period. LW Insurance contributed approximately
HK$1,017,000 to the Group’s loss for the year for the
period between the date of acquisition and the end of the
reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 October
2019, total Group revenue for the year from continuing
operations would have been HK$42,764,000, and loss
for the year from continuing operations would have
been HK$266,924,000. The proforma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 October 2019, nor is
intended to be a projection of future results.

46. mEHRERERME 2)

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ %

WiE—EMELR (&)

PrRERKE BRI A FER
9,000/ 7T ©

EEFERRBEANBEFEAR
EHEETEEERRREG HE
FHRANEE R ERRRER
P EREE - BRI AE AR R Y A 432,000
BTERGEERRAMEEK
mERAE— M RITERFAZ R -

PULHE B HA = 3R B R B9 - A
ERBRAEETRFEAREL
499,000 Lo MU EE A HAZE = &
HIREAE - FIERBSFAREE
4 E5 18 491,017,000 7T ©

HKBEBEDIR _Z—hLETA
— AT AIREEREFELE
EBHFE ALY = A42,764,000
B REFELEEENTANE
18 /5266,924,0005 7T © #5 £ B &
EBHFER RURTMEESER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

46. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

46. RERERE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

Disposal of discontinued operations

As referred to in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 29 September 2020 the Group
discontinued its businesses in trading of copper and
trading of petrochemicals at the time of the disposal of
its subsidiaries, Hong Kong King Sailing Limited and its

subsidiaries.

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

R &)

(b) HEEBRILLEER

BAnsR & B R AR M R 18P AL -
—ETFEAAZ+TNAB KEE
REEEMBLRRAEETMER
REREMBRARRR ERER
BEERLEERLERES-

REERMEEFENT:

HK$’000
F& T
Property, plant and equipment L ES S e 12
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 I H M BR 3K 12,373
VAT recoverable AT el g (B R 126
Current tax assets BNERFR TR & B 166
Bank and cash balances RITMIR S 103
Trade and other payables BAE S REMER (5,947)
Current tax liabilites BNEARIIE B (& (4,974)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR B 13
Net assets disposed of FriEmEESFE 1,872
Release of foreign currency translation BERR NS IR E
reserve (731)
Loss on disposal of discontinued HEDKIEEEEBREE (HiE18)
operations (note 18) (1,041)
Total consideration BB 100
Consideration satisfied by ITFE A ZAHRE
Cash B 100
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HESEEA RS RLFE:
Cash consideration received BB SKE 100
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERSEREEHE (103)
(3)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIRE R EEFR A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_Z-_TZFAA=+THIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2020

46. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (c)

On 7 January 2020, the Group entered into a share
transfer agreement with a buyer, which was independent
from the Group, to dispose 100% equity interest in
Digital Commerce Limited. Digital Commerce Limited was
engaged in investment holding during the year.

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

46. mEHRERERME 2)

HE—BHWEAA

RZZEZZEF—A+tAH 4A5H
Eﬁi ZEH (BIRNAEE)T
% 15 8 3% % &% - M B & Digital
Commerce Limited#) & #f i%
# o R £ [Z - Digital Commerce
Limited{t FRK B £

REERMHEERENT

HK$’000
F&T
Property, plant and equipment W% WERZE 98
Intangible assets mEEE 750
Prepayments TET IR 8
Bank balances RITH B 73
Other payables and accruals ERNHEMERRESER (5)
Net assets disposed of FTHENEEFE 924
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 10) HE—ERBAaMKE (HE10) 1,576
Total consideration BRE 2,500
Consideration satisfied by ATEERAZAHRE

Cash Re 1,500
Receipt in advance AW FRIE 1,000
2,500

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: PEFBEEEAZRERAFRE
Cash consideration received BUFESKE 1,500
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEREEREEHE (73)
1,427

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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HE—ZT—

46. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

46. %

EEERERME 2)

Major non-cash transaction d FEXBEERS
Imputed interest of approximately HK$1,760,000 charged REBEZZ-_TFNA=1THIF
for the year ended 30 September 2020 (period from 1 EE Nk zHEF B 491,760,000
January 2019 to 30 September 2019: HK$3,421,000) BT(BZZE-—NEFE—-—H—AHZE
was accrued to a non-controlling shareholder of a ZE-NAFRAA=THHH:
subsidiary and its related parties. 3,421,000 L) E st e = — MW
NG 2 ey )
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (e) METBHFELEABZHE
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TREFMAGERNEBREERFAAN
arising from financing activities, including both cash EXBEcEE BiERe KIER
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing CEH -METHMELBERN
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future REBGRERERERADEAS
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated BMEERHAELEZHEESREL R
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing KREREZAE-
activities.
Interest Non-cash Exchange 30 September
1 October 2019 Cash flows expenses movement differences 2020
—E-hE it i 33
+A-H RERE FEEX ¥5e28 ERZE NA=TH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL T TERL TR TEx TERL
Bank borrowings (note 38)  SR{TEE (Fi{7£38) 17,729 791 1,450 - 631 20,601
Due to non-controlling EN-HRBAR
shareholders of a FERRER
subsidiary and its related ~ E BB HHE
parties (note 39) (Ft5E39) 43,589 (6,378) 1,760 - 1,470 40,441
Convertible bond designated ¥ E &2 FE A
at FVTPL (note 40) B2 THRES
(Hi340) 19,771 (548) 1,348 (20,401) (170) -
Non-convertible bonds Ta#RES
(note 37) (FtzE37) 34,885 (429) 3,681 20,800 (41) 58,896
Due to directors (note 36) BN EEHE
(Kt3%36) 347 3,557 - - 65 3,969
Lease liabilities (note 35) REEE (H735) 3,245 (2,668) 207 11 1 1,496
119,566 (5,675) 8,446 1,110 1,956 125,403
GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BIREiBSEEAR AT  ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

46. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)

(e) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (e)

activities (Continued)

46. MEBERERMT (2)

METHFELEREZHER
(%)

Interest Non-cash Exchange 30 September
1 January 2019 Cash flows expenses movement differences 2019
—E-NE —E-nE
—A—H Reme FSFA% FReE ERES NA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL THL T FHL FHL FHL
Bank borrowings (note 38) ST E (Fi:38) 19,358 (2,336) 1,176 o (469) 17,729
Due to non-controlling ER—EIBARZ
shareholders of a FERBRRER
subsidiary and its related  H EH 7 7B
parties (note 39) (Ft5E39) 39,650 (1,598) 3,421 (333) 2,449 43,589
Convertible bond designated #£F & AFET A
at FVTPL (note 40) BBk ES
(Fit5k40) 24,186 - 1,497 (5,437) (475) 19,771
Non-convertible bonds TagkES
(note 37) (Fitzk37) 12,747 20,452 1,881 - (195) 34,885
Due to directors (note 36)  EREEFUA
(t3£36) 2,105 (1,757) = = (1) 347
Lease liabilities (note 35) A& & & (F17£35) - (2,389) 228 5,407 (1) 3,245
98,046 12,372 8,203 (363) 1,308 119,566
(/) Decrease of interest in subsidiaries without loss of ) RHEBLI 2RI EL

control

On 4 January 2019, the Group
shareholding from 49% interests to
Yichang Biaodian. The effect of the

decreased the
25% interests in
decrease on the

equity attributable to the owners of the Company is as

REFIE

R-Z—NG—ANA KEBE
R E B B S 24 P 40% R B
25% o A FHA A BAE RIS
MY BT

follows:
HK$’000
FHET
Carrying amount of non-controlling BEHEZFEEREREREA
interests disposed (35,055)
Consideration received from B IEE R = WL 2 R (B
non-controlling interests —
Loss on disposal recognised directly in equity B R #E RN H & E5E (35,055)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

46. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 46. FEBRERERWETE (2)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(g) Total cash outflow for leases (9 HERLSRHANE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases HABERSREXENSERE
comprise the following: AT&IE:

Period from
Year 1 January 2019
ended to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
B-ZT—hF
HZE —H—B=z
—E_EF —ENF
hA=+H TlyE = |7
LEE il
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
Within operating cash flows KERSREN 70 10
Within financing cash flows BERSREAN 2,668 2,389
2,738 2,399

These amounts relate to the following: ESFEE Y AR :
Period from
Year 1 January 2019
ended to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
B-ZT—hF
BZE —HA—BZ
—E_EHF —ENF
hA=+H NA=+H
LEE HA A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
Lease rental paid ENEERS 2,738 2,399
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

47. LITIGATION 47. {FFA

222

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Yichang
Biaodian entered into disputes with one of its suppliers
regarding the quality of work performed by such supplier.
Legal proceedings were initiated by the supplier (the
“Yichang Plaintiff”) and on 14 December 2018, pursuant
to the application from the Yichang Plaintiff, the Court
in Yichang granted an order to preserve the bank
deposits of Yichang Biaodian amounted to approximately
RMB478,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$544,000).

On 13 March 2019, the Court issued civil mediation
agreement which set out that the Yichang Plaintiff and
Yichang Biaodian agreed with the repayment terms in
relation to the aforesaid amount. Yichang Biaodian is
required to repay RMB200,000 on or before 30 April
2019 and an order could be applied to unfreeze the bank
accounts; and Yichang Biaodian was required to settle
RMB2,000,000 on or before 30 September 2019 and the
remaining outstanding amount on or before 30 March
2020. The Yichang Plaintiff has the rights to apply for a
court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian to settle all its
debts if it fails to repay RMB2,200,000 to the Yichang
Plaintiff on or before 30 September 2019. Amount of
RMB8,787,000 (equivalent to HK$10,006,000) are fully
provided as liabilities of the Group at 31 December 2018.
The restricted bank balance was released on 11 April
2019 upon agreement between the Plaintiff and Yichang
Biaodian.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZT

TENA=ZF+HIESEE For the year ended 30 September 2020

47. LITIGATION (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 20 November 2019, the Yichang Plaintiff has
exercised its rights to apply for a court order to enforce
Yichang Biaodian for settlement of amount overdue.
Yichang Biaodian only repaid RMB200,000 up to 30
September 2020. The management of the Group was
assessing the possible outcome that bringing to Yichang
Biaodian. The directors of the Company considered
that as the full amount of the debts of RMB8,587,000
(equivalent to HK$9,828,000) claimed by Yichang Plaintiff
are fully provided as liability of the Group as at 30
September 2020, no further liability will be incurred.

During the year ended 30 September 2020, Shenzhen
Global has been in dispute with a former director of the
Group regarding the ownership of the building located
in the PRC classified as held for sale (note 32(a)). Legal
proceedings were initiated by the former director (the
“Shenzhen Plaintiff’) and on 8 July 2020, pursuant to
the application from the Shenzhen Plaintiff, the Court
in Shenzhen granted an order to preserve the building
classified as held for sale of Shenzhen Global from being
sold by the Group during the period from 9 July 2020 to 8
July 2023.

Since the case was at preliminary stage, the management
of the Group was assessing the possible outcome that
bringing to Shenzhen Global.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED = BR & i &

47.

EHRA R

AZE-NF+—A=Z+H HSE
RECTEEBEMNBFERES
M EEEHAERINIE-HE
—E-TFNA=1+H HEIEH
£ 838 A R#200,0007T - A& E
EEELEEFGHE E?\E’ﬂab
HER-ARAEZRR NZTZ
TENA=Z+H BEEREHFERN
B 2 RIEARMES,587,0007T
(#8% 129,828,000 7T ) & & S

BRAKEZAE BMAEELH
fBfE-
BE_FT_FTFEAA=THLHF

JZ /xﬂ\\iﬁiﬂiéﬁil‘%‘%—% AIEE
SERLUD AT ABRURTEA
DERFBFLENET 2 HER
(KfaE32(a)) ~AIEES ( RN R
FNERBZAZERF RZ-2FZ
ZELANE  RERYREH S
A RYITEBR B S REIRYIERIR
TRABELENET R_T=
ZELANBE_ZT_=F+A
NEAREERETFIALE -
BHRZERER TR WAL
I%E BEEAFERIRRNT
ERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

48. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 48.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for car
parking spaces. As at 30 September 2020, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases
to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in note 22.
As at 30 September 2020, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these car parking spaces is HK$66,000 (2019:
HK$39,000).

49. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 49,

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

REHERH

AEBEPREEMZEHAE- R
“ECEFNAZ=tTH EHEERE
HEREHRERTERNAKF208
HESREASHEE RS _TFN
AR=1TH SzZEEFEMEHRNRESR
& #3E 566,000 T (Z T — LF:
39,000 7T) °

EARERE

AEBRBEPRZEAREENT -

2020 2019
—EZRF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the EEEEWE WMELEBHEIUR
acquisition of property, plant and R NIRRT RRE
equipment, development of systems & A X
and networks
— contracted but not accounted for —BRT4E KR AR 9,567 7,102
50. OTHER COMMITMENTS 50. H & E

At 30 September 2019, the Group had a commitment of
HK$973,000 in respect of the outstanding consideration for the
acquisition of a subsidiary as disclosed in note 28(b).

28T HE - R_E—hLFENA
Zt+H AEEEBWE—RKNBAFR
Z AR RE Ry #EIE /973,000 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

51. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Related party transactions (a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year/period:

51. BB RS

BBATR5

Frax EM B mR T EMEB oAl
2RI REBRE,BAES
ATEHEBTZEARS:

Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZE B-Z—N%F
—EC-EH = 3| =— [E]ES
hA=+H —ZET-NEF
EFE NA=1+HHM
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHT
Finance costs incurred in kB —HNBRARER
respect of loans from a senior EEEBABRE@EB S 2
management personnel of a BNRE £ 2R A
subsidiary and the
related parties 1,760 3,421
Purchase of natural gas from m— B A
companies controlled by SREREBABES 2
senior management personnel  HEARIBEXAR
of a subsidiary 3,568 15,709
Sale of natural gas to a M—HNBRAR e RERE
company controlled by ANB S 2 —FERAF]
senior management personnel  HERXAR
of a subsidiary (85) -
Details of guarantees provided by related parties for bank (b) BEBABAIRETAEEZIRTT

borrowings granted to the Group are as set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED RIRE R BB R A &
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FA TS ¥R R M1 7E38 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

51. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c)

The details of remuneration of key management
personnel, represents the emoluments of directors of the
Company paid during the year/period and set out in note

16(a).

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

1. B A R 5 (&)

Mf3E16(a) ©

TEEBABZHM

TEEBABZHFMFBEF
HABNARBEEME - L HN

F/AHNEERRLEREHEM

management during the year/period was follows: MEZ &M T :
Period from
1 January
Year ended 2019 to
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
BZ BE-_Z—NF
—E_EE —HA—B=z
hB=+H —E-hF
IEFE NA=Z1+HHM
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Short term benefits EHIEA 1,509 1,028

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE-_ZT-_ZFNA=+THILFE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

51. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continvea) 51. B¥ B RX 5 (&)

(d)

Amounts due from/(to) related parties

(d) MW (1) BAR S KR

Name of related party Relationship Terms 2020 2019
HEE AR % 3N =t 33 —E-hE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
FEEAEWIRAEMBRAR  Controlled by a director  Unsecured, interest-free (572) (554)
of the Company and repayable
on demand
BARE—ZEEEG BEER 2ER
RERER
REER Son of a director Unsecured, interest-free (537) -
of the Company and repayable
on demand
ARF—REFZT EER 2ER
RERER
#E Daughter-in-law of a Unsecured, interest-free (1,145) -
director of the Company and repayable
on demand
ARAI—LEZZRE EER 2ER
RERER

52. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Apart from as disclosed in elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any other Gh
significant contingent liabilities at 30 September 2020 (2019:
Nil).

52. ZAREE

BSGRAaMBRREMBOMKES
NV RZFZFFNAZ -I—EI $'§I
Y EEMEMERKIARE =
FE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE-_ZT-_ZTFNA=1THILFEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2020

53.

54.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRERE R BB R A &

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 20 November 2020, the Company proposed to implement
the capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”)
involving (a) the reduction of the issued share capital of the
Company by cancelling the paid up capital to the extent of
HK$0.49 on each of the then issued existing shares such that
the par value of each of the then issued adjusted shares will be
reduced from HK$0.50 to HK$0.01 (the “Capital Reduction”);
and (b) immediately following the Capital Reduction, each
of the authorised but unissued existing shares of par value
HK$0.50 each be sub-divided into fifty (50) ordinary shares of
par value of HK$0.01 each. At the same time, the Company
proposed, subject to the Capital Reorganisation becoming
effective, to implement the Rights Issue on the basis of four
(4) rights shares for every one (1) adjusted share held on the
record date at the subscription price of HK$0.16 per rights
share, to raise approximately HK$58.35 million by issuing
364,688,000 rights shares to the qualifying shareholders.
Details of the Capital Reorganisation and Rights Issue are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 20 November
2020.

On 25 November 2020, the Company was informed that a
hearing for a winding-up petition against Hong Kong Hao Yue
International Trading Co., Limited, the substantial shareholder
of the Company (the “Substantial Shareholder”), has been
convened and the High Court of Hong Kong ordered that the
Substantial Shareholder be wound up. For details, please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 25 November 2020.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been re-stated or reclassified
as a result of presentation of discontinued operations and
share consolidation happened in current year.

53.

54.

BEHMREE

RZZEZEF+—HAZ+TH ARA&E
BEREAEA([EREMH]) EF
B R(FETHEREREHTRAERS
0498 L2 W REBRAMBEARR 2B
BITRA UBERERFDHITLARE
{19 2 E{E 4% B30.50%8 T8 4> Z£0.01%
TT(TEREIR]) R (o)R BEE A HI R
% - FIRAE0.50/8 L WA BB R B1T
IR A RMDWIRAE AR T GOKZ/RE
B0 T o ERAR AR NAaE&
HOREAEAENE URBESR
TR0 168 iR S A B A —
(1)IR 48 FHEE IR 10 FE 35 1 (4) AR AR AR IR 19 2
BEEEHHEK BBRAEERRRET
364,688,000% iz i 17 + % & £958.35
BEBT - BAEARERZFBEIR
AR AZSE-_EF+—A=+H

EOFNE

N=B-BE+—A-+ER ARA
EEERBANAL L ERRESHE
BEREERAT ([ZERRI)
BREFRA AEERSERASE
ERFEL HEFLNALARMA
SE-TE+—A-+EANAE-

N

LB F

HRAFEE 2N DR UIERERBT M
TROAM METERBEFEEIIRX
BE#OE-
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